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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 07 NOVEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Ms Hofmeyr,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Good morn ing  Ms Kwinana.   

Okay.   A re  we ready?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We are  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  aga in  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  10 

MS KWINANA:   Yakhe Kwinana.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MS KWINANA:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  

w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e l se  bu t  the 

t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say,  so  he lp  20 

me God.  

MS KWINANA:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morn ing  Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   Good morn ing  Advocate .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana I  wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta r t  today i f  

we may by  jus t  go ing  back fo r  a  moment  to  the  dec is ion  

tha t  the  board  took to  award  the  components  tender  to  the  

Jo in t  Venture  o f  AAR and JM Av ia t ion .   

 You w i l l  reca l l  in  your  ev idence on  Tuesday you had  

been drawn –  your  a t ten t ion  had been drawn to  the  fac t  

tha t  they ac tua l l y  shou ld  have been d isqua l i f ied  f rom the  

b id  and in  fa i rness to  you Ms Kwinana you – you conceded 

in  the  end tha t  they ought  no t  then to  have proceeded and  

i f  they  had –  tha t  had been known to  you a t  the  t ime you  10 

accepted tha t  they cou ld  no t  have been awarded the  

tender.  

 What  I  d id  no t  t raverse  w i th  you  was the  board ’s  

ac tua l  dec is ion  a t  the  t ime to  award  the  cont rac t  to  the 

Jo in t  Venture  o f  AAR and JM Av ia t ion  and so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

jus t  dea l  w i th  tha t  b r ie f l y  because I  jus t  want  to  be  –  to  

exp la in  why.  

 As  I  unders tand your  ev idence a t  the  t ime you had 

no idea about  the  fac t  o f  the  communica t ions tha t  they had  

had w i th  Ms Memela  and so  you  d id  no t  know tha t  they  20 

ought  to  have been d isqua l i f ied ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  the  reasons the  

board  gave fo r  ac tua l l y  approv ing  the i r  appo in tment  fo r  the  

cont rac t .   And we need to  go  there  because what  had  
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happened was you have got  a  recommendat ion  have you 

not  f rom the  ac t ing  CEO which  was not  to  award  the  

cont rac t  to  AAR and JM Av ia t ion .   I t  was to  award  the  

cont rac t  to  A i r  France,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Sor ry  I  can hard l y  hear  you can someone 

reduce the  –   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh the  a i r  cond i t ione r.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   They  w i l l  a t tend to  tha t .   Ja  

somet imes i t  makes i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  hear  peop le .  10 

MS KWINANA:   Sor ry  can you repeat  you r  quest ion  Cha i r?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cer ta in ly.  So. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sa fdas [? ]  maybe do not  sw i tch  i t  o f f  

comple te l y  in  case i t  becomes too  ho t  bu t  you know le t  i t  

be  low.   Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I s  tha t  c leare r  fo r  you Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA:   Not  the  a i r  cond i t ioner  Cha i r  bu t  the  

sound.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You need the  sound a  b i t  louder  do  you? 

MS KWINANA:   No the  sound a  b i t  h igher.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh too  loud.  

MS KWINANA:   Too ha rd  yes.   I t  seems as i f  i t  has  go t  an 

echo Cha i r.   Echo .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV HOFMEYR:   I s  th is  a  b i t  be t te r?   Can you hear  me  
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be t te r  now? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  w i l l  a lso  t r y  and drop my vo i ce  maybe a  

b i t .  

MS KWINANA:   Not  too  much.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Not  too  much,  no  indeed because I  have  

to  reach i t  there  and  –  so  Ms Kwinana  what  I  was jus t  

conf i rm ing w i th  you was the  dec is ion  was taken as  I  10 

unders tand i t  on  the  9  May 2016 ,  does tha t  acco rd  w i th  

your  memory?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And what  happened is  be fore  you  a t  that  

board  meet ing  as  I  unders tand i t  you had a  BAC 

recommendat ion .   You had a  recommendat ion  f rom the  

ac t ing  CEO and by  tha t  s tage the i r  combined  

recommendat ion  was tha t  the  cont rac t  shou ld  go  to  A i r  

France,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  you  w i l l  jus t  speak a  l i t t le  b i t  louder  so  

tha t  the  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And remember  to  look  th is  s ide .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  they were  recommending A i r  France 

but  in  tha t  meet ing  on  the  9  May 2016 the  board  dec ided –  
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we w i l l  ge t  to  the  reasons in  a  moment  to  award  to  a  AAR 

and JM Av ia t ion ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now Ms Memela  tes t i f ied  prev ious ly  and I  

jus t  want  to  check tha t  you can conf i rm th is  par t  o f  her  

ev idence.   When those submiss ions come to  the  board  you 

do not  ge t  a l l  o f  the  b id  documenta t ion  or  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t  

do  you?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r  we do not .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  you have rea l l y  jus t  go t  the  10 

submiss ions and is  tha t  a l l?  

MS KWINANA:   Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   The submiss ions.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay so  you have got  the  BAC 

recommendat ion ;  you have got  the  ac t ing  CEO’s  

recommendat ion  and a t  th is  meet ing  you dec ide  to  no t  go  

in  accordance w i th  the i r  recommendat ion  bu t  to  go  to  –  fo r  

AAR and JM Av ia t ion .   Can you exp la in  to  us  why the  board  

took tha t  dec i s ion? 20 

MS KWINANA:   The reasons Cha i r  in  fac t  A i r  France was  

number  3 .   Lu f thansa was number  1 .   And AAR was number  

2 .   And then there  was a  recommendat ion  o f  number  3 .   

Now we asked quest ions as  to  why not  number  1  and 

management  gave reasons fo r  no t  se lec t ing  number  1 .   And 
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then we asked why not  number  2 .   Why are  you jumping to  

number  –  to  number  2?   And then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To  number  3 .  

MS KWINANA:   To  number  3  yes.   And then they s ta ted  the  

reasons wh ich  bas ica l l y  were  no t  acceptab le  to  the  board .   

I t  –  f rom top  o f  my head w i thout  look ing  a t  the  m inu tes  bu t  

one o f  the  reasons was tha t  AAR never  d id  bus iness a t  

SAA and there fo re  they do  not  know SAA.    

And we sa id  then  i f  tha t  was one o f  the  cr i te r ia  they  

shou ld  have sa id  i t  f rom the  beg inn ing  when the  tender  10 

was go ing  out .   So we re jec ted  tha t  reason.   And then the  

o ther  reason was  tha t  AAR had a  lower  p r ice  – much lower  

p r ice  compared to  A i r  France and then there  was a  concern  

tha t  AAR may be low ba l l ing .    

And then the  board  requested fo r  a  m i t iga t ion  to  say  

is  there  a  m i t iga t ion  i f  fo r  ins tance  they are  low ba l l ing  can 

we not  f i x  the  pr i ce? And then we  sa id  –  then th i s  shou ld  

be  awarded to  AAR sub jec t  to  them f i x ing  the  pr ices  i f  tha t  

i s  the  low ba l l ing .    

And we gave i t  back to  management .   That  was the  20 

reason bas ica l l y  why AAR was se lec ted .   But  maybe I  need  

to  go  back to  what  we ta lked about  in  respect  o f  the 

proposa l  –  the  a t tachment  o f  the  p roposa l  tha t  was sent  to  

Ms Memela .    

And I  had an oppor tun i ty  o f  aga in  read ing  the  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 9 of 243 
 

t ranscr ip t  o f  what  was the  reason ing  fo r  Ms Memela .   And 

the  reason fo r  Ms Memela  bas ica l l y  was tha t  –  oh  in  fac t  I  

do  no t  even have  to  s ta te  her  reasons aga in .    

But  she sa id  the  –  she is  no t  par t  o f  the  cross-

funct iona l  team and there fo re  there  is  no  way tha t  she 

shou ld  have seen the  –  the  l ine  in  the  tender  document  

tha t  says b idders  can on ly  contac t  the  pro jec t  managers  –  

the  pro jec t  manager.    

And there fo re  because tha t  i s  no t  a  po l i cy  a  SAA 

po l i cy  i t  i s  a  po l i cy  w i th in  a  spec i f i c  se t  o f  peop le  wh ich  is  10 

the  cross - funct iona l  team.   So bas ica l l y  as  I  was say ing  i t  

wou ld  depend on the  c i r cumstances.   Thank you Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana tha t  i s  aga in  a  reve rs ion  to  a  

vers ion  tha t  you  gave on Tuesday tha t  we moved  past  – 

you had g i ven your  fa i r  concess ion  tha t  i t  shou ld  no t  have 

been awarded in  the  c i r cumstances I  am not  go ing  to  go  

back to  tha t .   I  am in te res ted  in  the  dec is ion  fo r  wh ich  you  

were  respons ib le  wh ich  was the  board ’s  dec i s ion .  

 So le t  us  go  to  the  m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  i f  we  

may?  For  tha t  pu rpose you w i l l  need Bund le  DD22[ f ] .   I  am 20 

jus t  go ing  to  ask  my co l league to  ass is t  you.   [ f ]  yes  and  

we w i l l  be  open ing  i t  a t  page 2304.   Cor rec t .   And Ms 

Mban jwa i t  w i l l  be  page  2304.   Ms Kwinana do you have 

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   And Ms Mban jwa  have you got  i t?   Okay.   

So Ms Kwinana th is  i s  m inutes  o f  the  spec ia l  mee t ing  o f  

the  South  A f r i can  A i rways Techn ica l  SOC L im i ted  board  o f  

d i rec tors  201603  he ld  on  Monday  9  May 2016 a t  8 :30  and  

in  a t tendance i t  seems to  ind ica te  tha t  you were  present .   

Can you conf i rm tha t  you were  p resent  a t  th is  meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then i f  you go ove r  f rom tha t  f i rs t  

page to  page 2305 you w i l l  see  there  is  an  i tem there  

under  4  Mat te rs  fo r  cons idera t ion  or  approva l ,  do  you see 10 

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now tha t  i s  where  the  issue  o f  the  

award ing  o f  the  components  cont rac t  was dea l t  w i th .   And I  

wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  read in to  the  record  a lso  fo r  you r  benef i t  

to  re f resh your  memory  what  i s  m inuted here  as  be ing  the  

bas is  fo r  the  board ’s  dec i s ion .   I t  reads as  fo l lows:  

“The submiss ion  was tab led  and cons ide red.   

Accord ing  to  the  submiss ion  management  

recommended tha t  the  tender  awarded to  A i r  20 

France.  A d iscuss ion  on  the  mat te r  ensued and 

the  board  made the  fo l low ing comments :  

a .  Management  ra t iona le  fo r  recommendat ions  

a t  A i r  France be  awarded the  tender  was  

not  substant ive .   Cons ider ing  the  b idders  
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res i s tance to  a l ign  i t se l f  to  SAAT’s  

deve lopmenta l  agenda i .e .  supp l ie r  

deve lopment .   Fu r thermore  the  benef i t s  as  

ou t l ined by  the  submiss ion  as  a  resu l t  o f  

se lec t ing  A i r  F rance where  no t  compel l ing  

enough to  pos i t ion  the  la t te r  as  the  

pre fe r red  b idder. ”  

And then i t  goes on  

“The concerns regard ing  JM/AAR espec ia l l y  

management ’s  v iew tha t  th is  b idder  was low  10 

ba l l ing  cou ld  be  mi t iga ted  by  reduc ing  each  

par t ies ’ ob l iga t ions as  we l l  as  te rms and 

cond i t ions  to  wr i t ing . ”  

And the  reso lu t ion  is  recorded.  

“Reso lved tha t  the  request  fo r  the  approva l  

o f  the  award  o f  a  tender  fo r  the  a i rc ra f t  

components  suppor t  and se rv i ces  on  ATA 

chat te r  fo r  bo th  the  Boe ing  and a i rbus f lee t  

fo r  a  per iod  o f  f i ve  years  to  JM/AAR be and 

is  hereby approved sub jec t  to  the  m i t iga t ion  20 

o f  a l l  the  r isks  h igh l igh ted  in  the  

submiss ion . ”  

So I  wou ld  l i ke  to  focus jus t  on  one or  two aspects  there .   

As  I  read th i s  recorda l  one o f  the  reasons fo r  no t  go ing  

w i th  management ’s  p roposa l  i s  re f lec ted  the re  as  A i r  
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France ’s  res is tance to  a l ign ing  i t se l f  to  SAAT’s  

deve lopmenta l  agenda i .e .  supp l ie r  deve lopment .   What  

was tha t  reason based on Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:   One o f  the  cr i te r i a  Cha i r  was tha t  the  –  the  

b idders  shou ld  have –  shou ld  comply  w i th  BEE and  

there fo re  bas ica l l y  A i r  F rance in  fac t  shou ld  no t  even have 

been there  because they d id  no t  have the  BEE.   So 

bas ica l l y  A i r  France was not  even supposed to  he re .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   What  does have BEE mean? 

MS KWINANA:   L ike  to  be  BEE compl ian t .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes tha t  was a  requ i rement  o f  the  tender  

–  they were  BEE compl ian t .  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  how cou ld  you poss ib l y  have re jec ted  

them on the  bas i s  tha t  they d id  no t  have the  requ is i te  BEE 

s ta tus?  

MS KWINANA:   That  was the  c r i t i ca l  c r i te r ia  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  So they cou ld  no t  have… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am not  sure  i f  you  are  no t  speak ing  a t  

c ross-purposes.   You sa id  Ms Kwinana tha t  you re jec ted  20 

the  recommendat ion  tha t  A i r  France awarded the  tender  

because they d id  no t  have e f fec t i ve l y  BEE credent ia l s  

wh ich  were  requ i red .   And then Ms Hofmeyr  sa id  to  you but  

what  does tha t  mean?  And I  th ink  you agreed  tha t  i t  

means i t  re la tes  to  be ing  BEE compl ian t .   So she says to  
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you ,  bu t  they were  BEE compla in t  so  what  were  you  ta lk ing  

about?   That  i s  where  she is .   So how cou ld  you re jec t  

them on the  bas i s  tha t  they were  no t  BEE compl ian t  when 

in  fac t  they were  BEE compla in t?  

MS KWINANA:   I  –  Cha i r  my unders tand ing  accord ing  –  

a lso  accord ing  to  th is  i s  because they –  they were  no t  BEE 

compl ian t .   So i f  fo r  ins tance they were  BEE compl ian t  then  

I  wou ld  have to  go  fu r ther  and check what  score  d id  they  

ge t  in  respect  o f  BEE.   And second ly  Cha i r  tha t  was not  the  

on ly  reason why A i r  France was not  se lec ted .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay tha t… 

MS KWINANA:   A i r  France was in  fac t  number  3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay le t  –  be fore  we go in to  o the r  

reasons le t  us  jus t  make sure  we are  a l l  on  the  same page 

on th is  one.   So i f  i t  can  be shown tha t  they were  BEE 

compl ian t  wou ld  you accept  tha t  the  reason re f lec ted  he re  

is  the  reason why the  board  re jec ted  them?  Or  the  reason  

wh ich  you gave tha t  they were  no t  BEE compl ian t  wou ld  

there fo re  no t  be  app l i cab le  i f  in  fac t  they were  compl ian t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.   Yes Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Ms  Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.   I  am go ing  to  –  the  

reason why I  asked you what  does  –  were  no t  BEE mean is  

because the  way  tha t  tha t  requ i rement  p layed ou t  in  th is  

tender  was in  a  par t i cu la r  way tha t  we spent  some t ime 
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t ravers ing  in  Ms Memela ’s  ev idence.   But  what  you d id  you 

have before  you was the  CEO’s  submiss ion  wh ich  gave you 

a  summary o f  the  rank ings o f  the  b idders  on  th is  aspect .   

R igh t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  tha t  fo r  a  

moment  because  i t  i s  jus t  fu r ther  back in  the  bund le  you  

have DD22[ f ]  and we jus t  need to  go  back to  page 2274.   

Do you see tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now tha t  i s  the  ac t ing  CEO of  SAAT 

recommendat ion  to  the  SAAT board  da ted 26 Apr i l  2016 

and th is  i s  where  the  recommendat ion  is  made tha t  A i r  

France Indust r ies  be  awarded the  tender.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

take  you to  what  was reco rded there  as  the  rank ings on  

pr ice  and BEE eva lua t ion  fo r  the  tenderers  and you w i l l  

f ind  tha t  a t  page  2280.   As  I  unders tood your  ev idence a 

moment  ago Ms Kwinana –  sor ry  you get t ing  there .   You 

sa id  AAR was –  sor ry  A i r  France  was not  BEE compl ian t  

and so  they shou ld  no t  have even proceeded th rough the  20 

tender  p rocess,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes tha t  was your  unders tand ing  a t  the  

t ime.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  tha t  was so  i f  o ther  tendere rs  were  no t  

BEE compl ian t  they shou ld  no t  have been awarded the  

tender  e i the r,  shou ld  they?  

MS KWINANA:   What  –  what  they d id  here  Cha i r  pu t t ing  

the  pr ice  a t  90% and BEE 10% they are  100% cor rec t .   And 

now cons ider ing  tha t  a l l  o f  them were  no t  BEE compl ian t  

tha t  i s  f ine  they d id  no t  ge t  the  scor ing  fo r  tha t .   Then now 

they wou ld  have to  be  sco red on o ther  th ings on  the  90% 

be ing  techn ica l  and [00 :19 :32]  o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.    Indeed.   So BEE cou ld  never  be  a  10 

reason to  choose one over  the  o ther  o f  these supp l ie rs  

cou ld  i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   But  the  board  gave tha t  as  one o f  

i t s  key  reasons tha t  was i r regu lar  was i t  no t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  we l l  i f  tha t  was a  c r i t i ca l  c r i te r ia  tha t  

means i f  they  a l l  do  no t  meet  the  requ i rement  they a l l  do  

no t  meet  the  requ i rement  and i f  i t  i s  a  c r i t i ca l  c r i te r ia  then  

we need to  check  i f  the  BEE was a  c r i t i ca l  c r i te r i a .   So can 

you check tha t  fo r  me Cha i r?  20 

MS KWINANA:   No MS Kwinana you see I  am work ing  j us t  

w i th  the  board ’s  own reasons.   The board ’s  own  reason 

wh ich  we  looked a t  a  moment  ago i s  tha t  desp i te  

management  and  the  b id  ad jud i ca t ion  commi t tee  coming to  

the  board  as  SAAT and say ing  A i r  France shou ld  ge t  th is  
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tender.   The board  d id  no t  go  w i th  tha t  recommendat ion .   

And the  recorded reason is  because A i r  F rance had 

res i s tance to  a l ign  i t se l f  w i th  SAAT’s  deve lopmenta l  

agenda ie .  Supp l i e r  deve lopment .    

So I  began by  ask ing  you,  what  was underp inn ing  

tha t  reason and your  tes t imony th is  morn ing  is  A i r  France 

was not  BEE compl ian t  so  they shou ld  no t  have even  

progressed in  the  tender  p rocess .   Ms Kwinana you have  

now been shown tha t  none o f  these tenderers  were  BEE 

compl ian t .   We have now seen tha t  a t  page 2280.    10 

I  am say ing  tha t  qu ick ly  because  there  is  another  

exp lanat ion  I  am coming to .   But  th is  i s  what  i s  be fore  you.   

So I  pu t  i t  to  you you  cannot  poss ib ly  then re jec t  

management  and the  BAC’s  recommendat ion  fo r  A i r  F rance 

not  se lec t  them se lec t  AAR and JM Av ia t ion  when none o f  

these pa r t ies  were  BEE compl ian t .   How cou ld  tha t  be  a  

reasonab le  dec i s ion  to  make?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  tha t  was not  the  on ly  reason.   A i r  

France was number  3  tha t  i s  number  1  and second ly  when 

management  comes and recommends –  make a  20 

recommendat ion  to  the  board  the  board  do  not  just  

rubbers tamp and  say now management  o therwise  there  

wou ld  be  no reason fo r  management  to  recommend 

anyth ing  to  the  board .  And there fo re  I  am conf ident  as  I  am 

s i t t ing  here  tha t  whatever  was d iscussed there  wh ich  
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bas ica l l y  i s  no t  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  was d iscussed tha t  i s  in  

the  m inutes .   I f  you  have got  a  record ing  o f  tha t  I  wou ld  

very  much be w i l l i ng  so  tha t  you –  to  ge t  peop le  to  hear  i t  

so  as  to  conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  no t  the  on ly  requ i rement ,  the  

on ly  th ing  tha t  made us  to  dec ide  to  appo in t  AAR.   And as  I  

have sa id  aga in  management  –  the  reason why they come 

to  the  board  fo r  the  recommendat ion  –  they recommend we  

jus t  do  no t  rubbers tamp.   We put  our  heads together  and  

d iscuss and we  have f ru i t fu l  and r igorous d iscuss ions 

be fore  we come to  any conc lus ion .    10 

Cha i r  I  sa id  on  Monday when I  came here  I  do  no t  

reg re t  a  s ing le  dec i s ion  tha t  I  made dur ing  my tenure  a t  

SAA and SAA Techn ica l .   And aga in  th is  tender  resu l ted  in  

fac t  in  the  sav ing  o f  R800 mi l l ion  be tween A i r  F rance and  

AAR.   There  was  a  lo t  o f  sav ing  here  and tha t  i s  why I  am 

say ing  I  do  no t  regre t  th is  dec is ion .   A i r  France was  

number  3 .   A i r  France was not  number  1  a t  a l l .   And A i r  

France … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Ms Kwinana.   Two or  th ree  

th ings.   One I  want  to  g ive  Ms Mban jwa a  chance  to  say 20 

someth ing .   She ra ised her  hand.   But  I  jus t  want  to  say 

th is  because you  have sa id  someth ing  tha t  Ms Myen i  sa id  

yesterday as  we l l .   Nobody  says tha t  when a  

recommendat ion  is  made by  management  to  a  board  the  

board  is  bound by  –  or  must  rubbers tamp what  
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management  says.   Nobody says tha t .    

But  i t  i s  expected tha t  management  wou ld  app ly  

the i r  m inds and obv ious ly  i f  they  do  not  agree w i th  the  

recommendat ion  –  i f  they  do  not  go  a long i t  i s  expected  

tha t  they wou ld  be  ab le  to  g ive  reasons why they do  not  go  

a long.   So nobody says they are  expected to  rubbers tamp.   

But  a lso  I  th ink  Ms Hofmeyr  wanted to  engage you on the  

reason tha t  you gave.    

A t  a  cer ta in  s tage i f  you have o ther  reasons tha t  

you want  to  say  those were  a lso  o the r  reasons she w i l l  10 

engage you on those.   But  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  ge t  c la r i t y  on  

th is  par t i cu la r  reason tha t  you –  you gave ear l ie r  on  and 

what  i s  reco rded.   So i t  i s  no t  as  i f  you  w i l l  no t  be  a l lowed  

to  ar t i cu la te  o the r  reasons i f  there  were  o the r  reasons but  

she w i l l  engage you on tha t .   A l r igh t .   Ms Mban jwa –  oh  

has your  i ssue fa l len  away?  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Thank you Cha i r.   I  am jus t  go ing  to  

make –  to  d raw the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  Cha i r  and Ms Hofmeyr  

to  the  fac t  tha t  th is  te rm supp l ie r  deve lopment  when  i t  was  

exp la ined by  Ms Memela  she d id  no t  exp la in  i t  as  BEE she  20 

exp la ined i t  as  NIP ob l iga t ion .   I  jus t  want  tha t  to  be  a lso  

taken in to  accoun t .   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  I  th ink  –  okay Ms Hofmeyr  le t  me 

ra the r  –  ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No I… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Say no th ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.   Look  I  am wel l  aware  o f  Ms 

Memela ’s  tes t imony tha t  i s  why I  have been say ing  th is  

morn ing  there  is  a  d i f fe ren t  way in  wh ich  i t  was work ing  in  

th is  cont rac t  and  tha t  i s  e f fec t i ve l y  what  Ms Mban jwa as  I  

unders tand i t  i s  h igh l igh t ing  because tha t  i s  c lea r  f rom Ms 

Memela ’s  ev idence.    

But  I  am work ing  w i th  the  ev idence o f  the  w i tness 

today and Ms Kwinana the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  board  o f  

SAAT a t  the  t ime was one o f  the  peop le  who took th is  10 

dec is ion  recorded on page 2305.   The  reason tha t  we are  

focuss ing  on  tha t  was g iven by  the  board  was tha t  A i r  

France management  and the  BAC’s  chosen successor  fo r  

th is  b id  was to  be  re jec ted  because they had res is tance to  

a l ign  themse lves  w i th  SAAT’s  deve lopment  agenda i .e .  

supp l ie r  deve lopment .    

And Ms Kwinana  has g i ven her  unders tand ing  o f  

tha t  and I  have shown her  and I  conc lude by  pu t t ing  th is  to  

you Ms Kwinana tha t  i f  your  reason  fo r  re jec t ing  A i r  France 

was tha t  they were  no t  BEE compl ian t  tha t  i s  a  who l l y  20 

i r ra t iona l  reason  because we have jus t  seen f rom the  

scor ing  tha t  no  par t y  then was BEE compl ian t .   So tha t  

reason cannot  be  a  bas i s  fo r  favour ing  one over  anothe r.   

Do you accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   And then le t  us  go  to  the  supp l ie r  
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deve lopment .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No can I  have my answer  –  your  answer  

to  tha t  quest ion?  I t  i s  who l ly  i r ra t iona l  to  choose one  

b idder  ove r  another  on  an  aspect  tha t  they are  a l l  in  

exact ly  the  same pos i t ion  on .   What  i s  your  response to  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  you have jus t  b rought  i t  to  my 

a t ten t ion  tha t  much as  I  am say ing  A i r  France was not  BEE 

compl ian t  a l l  o f  these were  no t  BEE compl ian t  and in  fact  

you have a lso  brought  i t  to  my a t ten t ion  tha t  in  the  m inutes  10 

we were  no t  ta lk ing  about  BEE we were  ta lk ing  about  

supp l ie r  deve lopment .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh –  I  w i l l  a rgue in  due course  tha t  Ms 

Kwinana has been g iven two oppor tun i t ies  to  answer  the  

quest ion  whethe r  i t  i s  i r ra t iona l  on  the  reason she gave 

th is  morn ing  to  have made the  dec is ion  tha t  she d id .   And 

she has fa i led  on  two occas ions to  g ive  a  c lea r  answer  to  

tha t .   I  am happy to  move on.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  jus t  want  to  say i t  i s  impor tan t  Ms 

Kwinana tha t  you  be judged in  your  own r igh t  on  your  own 20 

ev idence what  a  w i tness you are  okay.   But  there  may be a  

percept ion  tha t  be fore  Ms Mban jwa made the  remarks  tha t  

she made ear l ie r  on  you had taken  a  cer ta in  approach w i th  

regard  to  what  th is  reason recorded he re  meant .   But  a f te r  

she had spoken now you  seem to  say o r  seem to  want  to  
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sh i f t  f rom tha t .   Now I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  i t  i s  very  

impor tan t  tha t  as far as possible,  you are seen to be g iving 

your own answers as you understand the posi t ion in terms of  

evidence.   That  is  important .   Ms Mbanjwa.  

MS MBANJWA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Chai r,  I  want  your  

assistance and di rect ion in  th is  regard so that  in future I  do 

not  raise a hand i f  i t  is a simi lar  s i tuat ion.   So I  would put  i t  

hypothet ical ly.    

 What happens in  a si tuat ion where there is a board 

resolut ion that  says that  the reason for the board to  act  was 10 

X?  And the wi tness gives an incorrect  reason.    

 On which must  she give an answer?  Must  she give an 

answer on the incorrect  reasons she is giv ing here at  the 

Commission?   

 Or  must  she g ive an answer on the reason that  was 

given at  the board meet ing or by the board resolut ion? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  a wi tness who.. .   Every wi tness is 

expected to speak the t ruth and g ive her understanding of  

the posi t ion.   She just  needs to give her  understanding,  

depending what the quest ion is.   She needs to g ive her 20 

understanding.    

 But  when you re-examine,  you are f ree to see i f  there is  

a clar i f icat ion that  is  necessary in regard to an answer that  

she gave.   But  as long as she gives what,  to her mind,  is the 

t ruth as she understands the posi t ion,  that  is f ine.    
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 I f  i t  happens to  be di fferent  f rom what is wri t ten 

somewhere,  that  is f ine.   She must stay wi thin her oath to  

speak the t ruth.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, Supply Development was 

going to  be deal t  wi th in a very par t icular  way in th is  tender.   

What was your understanding of  i t  a t  the t ime? 

MS KWINANA :    The l i t t le I  understand. . .   I  now do not  even 

know i f  I  should state the l i t t le I  understand because i f  I  do 

not  read as i f  you have there,  then you wi l l  take me 

otherwise.   So I  am just  so uncomfortable to. . .   Maybe I  need 10 

to Google as to what does that  mean.  So basical ly,  I  do not  

want to say in my own words this is what i t  is.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  as I  have just  explained to  

Ms Mbanjwa.  Ms Kwinana, a wi tness is s imply expected to 

give evidence as she or he understands the posi t ion or  as he 

or she understood i t  at  a part icular t ime and to the best  of  

her recol lect ion.  

 You just  say:   At  that  t ime, th is was my understanding.   

I f  i t  so happens that  i t  d i ffers f rom somebody else’s 

understanding,  as long as you are genuine to say:   This is  20 

how I  understood the posi t ion.   Then you are f ine.   

 I f  you understood i t  in a certain way and you are asked 

what was your understanding at  that  t ime and you Google 

and say:   I  understood i t  l ike that  af ter Googl ing.   When 

actual ly,  that  is not  how you understood i t ,  then that  is not  
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t ruthful .  

 So you just  need to say the t ruth to the best  of  your  

abi l i ty,  to the best  of  your recol lect ion.   Nothing more than 

that  is being asked of  you or any wi tness.    

MS KWINANA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.    

MS KWINANA :    My understanding of  the Supply 

Development is that  a suppl ier must  be able to  develop 

another upcoming suppl ier.   That  is my understanding. 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And as the board,  the reasons are 10 

recorded there,  you rejected Air  France because on your  

understanding i t  was not  ab le to support  an upcoming 

suppl ier.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  the way that  Supply Development 

was going to work in the tender – and we conf i rmed this in  

Ms Memela ’s evidence.  

 Chai r,  for the record.   I t  is. . .  the task(?) of  the 

12t h of  February 2020,  page 53,  l ines 6 to 11.  

 The way that  the tender was structured is.   Each of  the 20 

tenderers had to indicate a commitment to  Supply 

Development and they would be assessed on the basis of  

whether they made that  commitment or not .  

 The tenders would then be evaluated and thereaf ter they 

could give thei r  proposals of  how precisely they would 
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commit  to and what their  p lans were for  Supply 

Development.  

 That  was Ms Memela’s evidence.   The reason she gave 

i t  was because. . .   Wel l ,  amongst  other th ings,  she was 

shown that  AAR and JM Aviat ion only submit ted thei r  Supply 

Development plan af ter they were awarded the tender.  

 And I ,  in fa i rness,  found that  a bi t  st r ik ing because i f  i t  

is a requirement  of  the tender,  i t  should have been there 

before.  

 But  she corrected me and she said:   No,  no.   Al l  that  10 

was needed was an indicat ion in  the bid that  you were 

commit ted to i t  and then thereaf ter,  you could f i l l  i t  out  wi th  

the detai ls.    

 Now that  was the Head of  Procurement ’s understanding.   

I  understand you to say,  you rejected Ai r  France on the basis 

that  they did not  in th is bid exhibi t  the requis i te requi rements 

to Supply Development.  

 But  what I  then want to put  to you is.   A ir  France was in  

exact ly the same posi t ion as JM and AAR.  Both had 

indicated a commitment.   Nothing more was required f rom 20 

them at  the t ime of  evaluat ion.  

 So I  want  to  understand form you Ms Kwinana how that  

could then had been the reason to reject  Ai r  France?   

MS KWINANA :    As I  said Chai r.   There were many things 

that  we talked about that  resul ted in us reject ing Ai r  France.   
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I t  would be good i f  we could l isten to the discussions that  we 

had in that  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  Ms Hofmeyr wants us to make 

progress to say you have. . .  there is th is  one reason that  has 

been given.   Can we get  to a point  where we know whether 

you agree that  that  reason could not  be a va l id  reason to 

re ject  i t ,  to reject  Air  France?   

 Then once we are done with that  reason,  we can go. . .  

we can move to one or more,  the other reasons that  you say 

were also reasons why i t  was affected.    10 

 She just  wants us to make progress to say:   Okay,  are 

we on the same page with regard to  th is reason that  th is was 

not  a sound reason to reject?  Let  us move to the next  one.    

 So she wants you to indicate whether you accept  that  

s ince they were al l . . .  their  compl iance wi th regard to th is,  

was the same.  I t  would. . .  i t  was i r rat ional  to rely on that  to  

re ject  them.   

MS KWINANA :    I  am not  going to  agree Chai r.   I  am not  

sure as I  am s i t t ing here i f  A i r  France had commit ted to  

Supply Development.   I f  the minutes are saying Ai r  France 20 

fai led to  commit .   Or let  me read i t  correct ly so that  I  do not  

get  misinterpreted.   What page is that  Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe, before we do that .   But  assume 

that  Ms Hofmeyr wi l l  take you to  where we wi l l  see that  i f ,  

indeed, Ai r  France in regard to Supply Development  was on 
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the same level  as the other ones.    

 Would you accept  that  i t  would not  be rat ional?  I t  would 

i rrat ional  to reject  Air  France on the basis of  someth ing that  

you could f ind wi th everybody or  you could not  f ind wi th 

everybody?   

 In other words,  i t  is l ike i f  Ms Mbanjwa and my regist rar  

here,  they put  in  a tender for something.   You re ject  my 

regist rar ’s bid and you say i t  is because he is b lack but  

Ms Mbanjwa is black too.   I t  cannot be rat ional .   I t  is  that  

k ind of  argument.    10 

 So i f ,  indeed, Ai r  France had made a commitment which 

had been made by everyone else wi th regard to  Supply 

Development.   Would you accept  that ,  to rely on that  reason 

to reject  Air  France would be i rrat ional? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You accept?  Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

MS KWINANA :    May I  have a comfort  break,  please? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay alr ight .   Let  us have a break of  ten 

minutes.   We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS FOR A SHORT BREAK :  20 

INQUIRY RESUMES :  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay Ms Hofmeyr,  I  th ink we have made 

some progress? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 27 of 243 
 

ADV HOFMEYR :    So I  am going to leave the Supply 

Development reason which Ms Kwinana you had in  fa i rness 

conceded was an i rrat ional  reason.   And I  am going to move 

to the other reason that  was given in the board’s resolut ion 

which is the one that  I  th ink you also referenced yoursel f  in  

your explanat ions.  

 You wi l l  f ind that  resolut ion at  page 2305 of  the bundle 

in f ront  of  you,  DD22(f ) .   You need to go to two-thousand 

three-hundred-and-f ive.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you say 2035? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    2305.   Apologies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  might  have mixed them. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  do that  of ten.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink this t ime i t  was me.  [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay.   [ laughing]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Wel l ,  the record wi l l  show Chair  in due 20 

course.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    [ laughing]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe I  was r ight  on both. . .   [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Maybe, maybe.   
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CHAIRPERSON :    2305.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, you. . .   So the f i rst  reason is 

real ly recorded at  the beginning of  4.1(a).   Right?  That  is  

the one we have been focussing on.    

“Management ’s ra t ional  for the recommendat ion that  

Air  France be awarded the tender was not  

substant ive,  consider ing the bidder ’s resistance to  

al ign i tsel f  wi th SAAT’s Developmental  Agenda i .e.  10 

Supply Development. ”  

 That  is. . .   I  am going to cal l  that  the f i rst  reason.   I t  is  

the one we have been deal ing wi th .   And then i t  goes on and 

i t  says:  

“Furthermore,  the benef i ts as out l ined by the 

submission as a resul t  of  e lect ing Air  France,  were 

not  compel l ing enough to posi t ion the lat ter as the 

preferred bidder. ”  

 Now I  understand your evidence today to be,  what is 

real ly l iv ing in that  second reason is th is pr ice concern that  20 

you had.   That  Ai r  France was actual ly more cost ly than the 

AAR/JM Aviat ion bid.    

 And that  select ing AAR/JM Aviat ion over Ai r  France,  they 

were a saving to  SAAT.   Have I  understood your evidence 

correct ly there? 
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MS KWINANA :    Maybe Chai r,  we need to go these benef i ts 

out l ined in the submission.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  we wi l l  do that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    She wanted you to conf i rm whether her 

understanding of  your evidence is correct  before we go to 

that .    

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You want her to repeat? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  p lease Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  I  understood you ear l ier  to say,  

the other big factor for you in making this decision to go for 

AAR and JM Aviat ion and not  Ai r  France was because AAR 

and JM Aviat ion was going to be cheaper than Ai r  France 

and I  th ink you gave a savings of  about  R 800 mi l l ion.    

 Was that  the key reason why you decided not  to go wi th 

Air  France and rather to go wi th  AAR and JM Aviat ion? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   And I  said the other day.   Air  

France is an ai r l ine and i t  gets i ts components f rom AAR 

because AAR, basical ly,  is the components manufacturer.    20 

 And therefore,  as we have been using Air  France for  the 

past  many years at  SAA, we have,  in fact ,  been using the 

middle-man.   

 So that  is why,  basical ly,  Ai r  France was more expensive 

than AAR.  So we have considered a lot  of  th ings.   And in 
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fact ,  we also did consider the r isks of  taking onboard AAR,  

consider ing that  i t  is a new suppl ier.    

 So that  is why Chair  I  am saying,  i t  wi l l  be good i f  you 

could l isten to our interact ions as the board members 

including management.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, you gave that  evidence.   I  

remember i t  about  AAR being the sort  of  world suppl ier,  the 

other day,  of  these parts.   And I  recal l  you saying that  that  

was some of  the informat ion you learnt  when you did your 

due di l igence t r ip in the US.  Is that  correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   Because that  was fact  was not  

disclosed in the bids of  Ai r  France.   So you are aware of  

that? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No?  Are you aware of  that? 

MS KWINANA :    Why. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink she did not  hear.   I  th ink she did 

not  hear the quest ion . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    [ Indist inct ]   20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  sorry.   I  thought you were asking a 

fol low-up quest ion:   Why does i t  matter?  I  thought you said 

so.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  I  am saying.   Are you aware that  that  
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fact  that  Ai r  France secures i ts parts f rom AAR was not  

disclosed in any of  the bids? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  that  is f ine.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    So you were making your decision then on 

the basis of  something you have learnt  on the due d i l igence 

t r ip to the US, correct? 

MS KWINANA :    We made the decisions based on what was 

recorded here in the minutes.   So the fact  that  AAR is an 

or ig inal  manufacturer is not  here and i t  was not  one of  the 10 

reasons.    

 But  I  am saying,  the reason why Air  France was higher is  

because of  that  but  that  is the reason that  was put  here.   

Yes.   And therefore,  the reasons that  I  am tel l ing you about,  

conf i rm that  the decision that  we made were the best  

decisions Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, I  wi l l  argue in due course 

that  informing your decision not  award Ai r  France,  despi te 

management ’s recommendat ion that  they should be awarded 

this tender and rather to go wi th AAR and JM Aviat ion,  was 20 

based on informat ion that  you obtained when you went on a 

t r ip to the US and received var ious benef i ts f rom AAR.  Do 

you have a response to that? 

MS KWINANA :    Let  me repeat Chai r.   When management  

br ings a recommendat ion to the board,  we apply our  minds.   
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We made the best  decision of  the company.   I  am repeat ing 

again Chai r.   We do not  rubberstamp.   

 That  is why I  am saying i t  would be good i f  you had the 

recordings,  so that  you can show how best  we made the 

decisions at  the t ime.   

 So Chai r,  management  did  make a recommendat ion and 

therefore,  we did not  have to agree wi th the 

recommendat ions.   Based on the d iscussions by the board,  

we agreed that  the award should go to another company.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  just  to note that  there was no denial  10 

in Ms Kwinana’s answer to my quest ion that  that  was 

informat ion that  she obtained when she was on that  t r ip  

. . . [ intervenes]  [Part ies intervening each other – unclear]    

MS KWINANA :    I  deny that  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . . just i f icat ion was given for why the 

decision was made.  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  deny that .   I  am saying,  the reasons 

that  were put  here in the document are the reasons.   But  I  

am saying,  as I  am si t t ing here wi th the informat ion that  I  

know, i t  was st i l l  the best  decision.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Let  us go,  i f  we may,  to what you were 

going to do to al leviate the concerns that  management had 

ra ised about given the tender to AAR and JM Aviat ion 

because that  is the thi rd th ing that  is recorded on th is page 

2305.   
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 And you wi l l  see that  under that  paragraph 4.1(a),  there 

i t  records:  

“The concerns regarding JM/AAR especial ly  

management ’s view that  th is b idder  was low-bal l ing,  

could be mit igated by reducing each part ies’ 

obl igat ions as wel l  as terms and condi t ions to  

wri t ing. ”  

 What does that  mean Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA :    In simple terms Chai r.   I t  means that  i f ,  for  

instance,  AAR said they are going to supply spares to the 10 

extent  of  one mi l l ion or  one bi l l ion,  then they cannot come 

back and say:   We did not  cost  for these spares.   We did not  

cost  for these spares.   They need to give us exact ly what 

they said they were going to g ive us.    

 Because,  you know, wi th tenders,  you would low-bal l  and 

then when you are inside the cl ient ,  then the cost  escalates 

and then you f ind out  that ,  af ter al l ,  i t  was not  the cheapest .    

 So basical ly,  when we were saying Chai r  that  needed to 

be reduce in wri t ing.   We were saying,  as AAR said they are 

going to give us things at  th is pr ice,  we are not  going to take 20 

any interest .    

 So basica l ly,  that  was what was said when we were 

saying reduce i t  in wr i t ing.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Low-bal l ing is a  concern.   I f  you wi l l  see 

in the management ’s recommendat ion that  we were looking 
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at  previously.   And i f  you want to f ind i t ,  i t  is at  page 2281.  

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You wi l l  see there,  management ’s report  

under the heading JM/AAR under the second bul let  that . . .  

th is is a sect ion where they are ident i fy ing r isks,  ident i f ied 

wi thin the tender.   

 And in respect  of  JM/AAR under the second bul let ,  

management ’s concern was:  

“Sudden drast ic cuts to the tender pr ices wi th a 

reduct ion of  more than 40 mi l l ion Dol lars raised the 10 

fear of  low-bal l ing to get  the cont ract  and doubts on 

sustainabi l i ty. ”  

 Do you see that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   So that  was the concern.   And as I  

understand i t ,  you were not  too worr ied about that  concern 

because you would t ry(?) them into a contract  that  would 

ensure that  they would not  wiggle out  of  thei r  commitments.   

Is that  a fa i r  summary? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   I f  we just  look at . . .   Yes,  that  low-

bal l ing that  happened.  I f  you go over the page to 2282, you 

wi l l  see at  the top of  the page the cost  impact  is recorded 

there.   And you wi l l  see there. . .  i f  you go across i t ,  suppl ier  

is in the far lef t -hand column. 
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 You have got  Luf thansa,  JM and AAR and Ai r  France.   

Air  France is  sort  of  shaded because that  was management 

selected preferred bidder.  

 And then i f  you go across.   The co lumns are f leet  value 

per annum in US Dol lars,  value per  annum in ZAR, value for  

f ive years in US Dol lars,  value for f ive years in ZAR.  

 I  would l ike us just  to look at  the value for f ive years in  

US Dol lars.   Do you see that  JM/AAR pr ice is about  

82 mi l l ion US Dol lars and Ai r  France is 88 mi l l ion US 

Dol lars.   Do you see that? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And so that  di fference is real ly  just  a  

di fference of  about  6 mi l l ion US Dol lars.   Correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   And the concern was that ,  to  get  JM 

to this 82 mi l l ion. . .   Remember,  they had been back and 

forth.   They kept  going back to the bidders to say rev ise your 

pr ic ing,  revise your pr ic ing.  

 What had happened was,  to get  i t  to th is 82,  i t  had 

dropped i ts pr ior pr ice by 40 mi l l ion.   That  is a considerable 20 

drop,  is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  So did you share management ’s  

concern that  low-bal l ing was a real  issue i f  they had dropped 

as much as 40 mi l l ion in the last  round? 
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MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   And they were very close,  actual ly,  

when they ended up.   I  mean, in order of  magni tude,  they 

were just  6 mi l l ion less than Ai r  France,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And there was no concern expressed,  as I  

recal l  i t ,  that  Ai r  France was low-bal l ing,  was there? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So given . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  there was?  Yes,  there was not?  10 

[ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    There was no concern that  Ai r  France was 

low-bal l ing,  was there? 

MS KWINANA :    There was no concern Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    There was no concern.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay thank you.   I  understand the 

ambigui ty potent ia l ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  they say i t  is a South Afr ican thing.   

[ laughing]    20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    We say,  ja-nee.  [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    [ laughing]   Okay so they drop by 

40 mi l l ion but  despi te that ,  the board resolved that  i f  i t  went  

into the cont ract  and they were t ied to the cont ract  terms,  
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then everything would be okay.   Correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And did you take any steps to ensure that  

that  was then implemented in  the contract  that  was 

concluded? 

MS KWINANA :    As we said Chair  in the minutes.   We said. . .   

Let  me read i t  again.   What was said there,  was said in the 

board meet ing that  we need to t ie them.  Yes.   And now, 

when you say:   Did we.. .   Did I  see the contract?  I  d id not  

see the contract  Chai r.   The reason being that ,  the contracts 10 

– af ter the award. . .    

 In fact ,  that  is a lso what I  was t ry ing to  explain wi th  

Swissport .   Af ter the award is  done,  the legal  team goes and 

draw the cont ract .    

 So now, whether the minutes of  the board do agree wi th  

what is in the contract .   Then that  is basical ly outs ide us.   I t  

is now the duty of  other assurance bodies wi thin the 

organisat ion.   Therefore,  Chai r  I  d id  not  see the cont ract .    

ADV HOFMEYR :    H ’m.   And Ms Kwinana,  you wi l l  remember 

that  Mr Phi r i ’s ev idence that  we looked at  the other  day on 20 

aff idavi t ,  says that  you did see the contract .    

 That  you actual ly at  a meet ing demanded that  i t  be 

signed and that  arrangements be made to go and ret r ieve i t .   

And he said that  you had said,  at  a point  in that  meet ing,  

that  people were not  to  leave the room unt i l  the agreement 
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was signed.    

 I  understand your evidence previously to be that  you 

deny that  you were ever at  that  meet ing.   Correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  was saying.   Af ter the award of  th is  

contract ,  there was a lot  of  unhappiness f rom the people who 

were not  part  of  th is process at  al l .   We had. . .   I  received a 

let ter of  complaint  f rom the chai rperson of  the board   

 I  received a let ter f rom Nat ional  Treasury and the 

chairperson and they al l . . .   And then there was also the 

media.   And r ight ly so,  because this  is a b ig contract .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry,  I  am going to interrupt  you 

Ms Kwinana.   Remember,  the quest ion was whether  you 

conf i rm that  your posi t ion is that  you were not  at  that  

meet ing that  Mr Phi r i  ta lked about.   That  was the quest ion.  

MS KWINANA :    I  am t rying to answer i t  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am saying . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Try and go st ra ight  to i t  as much as 

possible because your answer maybe:  No,  I  d id not  say here 

I  was not  at  that  meet ing.   Or:   Yes,  my posi t ion is that  I  was 20 

not  at  that  meet ing.  

MS KWINANA :    Okay,  I  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  just  want us to make progress.  

MS KWINANA :    I  was at  a meet ing . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  
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MS KWINANA :    . . .where I  sat  wi th management  to say,  

there is  th is concern.   Please,  put  together al l  the f i les.   Put  

together the cont ract .   Take i t . . .   Take everything to Nat ional  

Treasury.   Yes,  I  was in that  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS KWINANA :    Where,  basical ly,  we were addressing this  

unhappiness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   But  you deny having at  that  

meet ing demanded that  no one leaves the room unt i l  the 10 

agreement was signed.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Def in i te ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you did not  ask for i t  to go and be 

ret r ieved.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And Mr Phir i  a lso said that  before he 

signed . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   I  am sorry.   Is i t  correct?  You 

say no.   Is i t  no,  i t  is not  correct?  No,  i t  is correct .   I  just  

want to. . .   I  want  to make sure we al l  understand your  20 

answer in the same way.    

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  was at  a meet ing which was 

addressing the speci f ic issues.   Yes.   So.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  unhappiness.   I  th ink Ms Hofmeyr,  you 

might  have to repeat  your quest ion.    
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So that . . .   And then,  when you answer,  I  

just  want to make sure that  when you say yes or no,  that  my 

understanding is what you intend to convey.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  th ink i t  wi l l  be helpful  i f  I  change the 

faming of  the quest ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, at  that  meet ing,  did you 

demand that  no one leave the room before the agreement 

was signed? 10 

MS KWINANA :    I  d id not  demand because my understanding 

was that  the agreement was signed.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Did you at  any point ,  pr ior to that  meet ing,  

push for i t  to be urgent ly concluded, the draf t ing process? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Who is Ms Kuki  Constance Mbeki? 

MS KWINANA :    She is the Head of  Legal .    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Where? 

MS KWINANA :    Then she was the Head of  Legal  at  SAAT.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   Do you remember having an 20 

interact ion wi th her dur ing the draf t ing process for th is  

contract? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because she has previously given an 

aff idavi t  to the Commission.   I t  was deal t  wi thin Ms Memela’s  
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evidence.   I  can take you there so that  you can read i t  

yoursel f  or I  could just  read you. . .   Would you l ike to see i t  

in f ront  of  you? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Certainly.   We wi l l  need. . .   Chai r  and 

Ms Mbanjwa, DD 25(b).   And you wi l l  open i t .   The f i rst  page 

of  the aff idavi t  is page 464.    

LEGAL TEAM :    [No audible reply]  [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   And page 464 is where i t  

commences.    10 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]  [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    25(b),  464.    

LEGAL TEAM :    [No audible reply]  [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  I  just . . .   I t  should be in  25(b),  page 

464.    

LEGAL TEAM :    [No audible reply]  [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    464.  

LEGAL TEAM :    [No audible reply]  [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   Oh, some pages fel l  out .   [ laughing]   

Thank you.   Ms Kwinana, do you recal l  having any 20 

interact ions wi th Ms Mbeki  about  the draf t ing?  Because I  

understood your evidence previously to be,  once the board 

makes the decision you leave i t  to management to execute i t .   

Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    So,  am I  understanding correct ly,  then you 

would not  have been fol lowing up wi th the draf t ing team or 

anything l ike that .   Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And is your evidence that  af ter the board 

gave that . . .  made that  resolut ion on the 9 t h of  May,  you did 

not  thereaf ter become involved or  fo l low up about the 

draf t ing at  al l?  

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you have al ready told  us,  you dispute 

Mr Phi r i ’s vers ion about that  meet ing.   So I  am leaving that .   

Now what Ms Mbeki ,  who was one of  the people involved in  

draf t ing the cont ract ,  has said in her aff idavi t  here and we 

can pick i t  up at  page 473,  paragraph 25.    

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i f  you go to page 25,  she. . .   Sorry,  

paragraph 25,  she has been deal ing wi th var ious processes 

in the draf t ing and about  two thi rds of  the way on paragraph 20 

25,  she says that  she had a conversat ion wi th  Ms Memela,  

Advocate Memela.   And she says – there is  a sentence about 

two thi rds of  the way down:  During the telephone 

discussion.   Can you see that  Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

“ I t  is dur ing the telephone discussion,  

Advocate Memela told me that  she received a 

complaint  that  I  keep on rais ing issues which were 

al ready discussed before I  jo ined the team the 

previous day,  and as a resul t  of  my conduct ,  the 

discussions were taking longer than necessary.  

She also told me that  th is concern was also raised 

wi th the then Chief  Execut ive Off icer  of  SAAT, who 

was also the act ing Group Chief  Execut ive Off icer,  10 

Mr Moosa Zwane.  

I  admit  that  indeed I  have been alerted by the team 

that  a lot  of  the issues I  was rais ing were al ready 

ra ised,  discussed,  resolved the previous day.”  

 And then she goes on at  26 to say:  

“On the same day that  Advocate Memela told me 

about the concern f rom the contract  negot iat ion 

team, I  had a telephone discussion wi th Mr Zwane 

who informed me that  he was in a meet ing wi th the 

then Chai rperson of  SAAT Board,  Ms Yakhe Kwinana 20 

and that  I  am on speaker phone.  

He told me that  I  am informed that  I  am slowing 

down the cont ract  negot iat ion process by rais ing  

issues which had already been deal t  wi th and that  

he was requested to intervene. ”  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 44 of 243 
 

 Do you recal l  th is  conversat ion that  you were placed on 

speaker phone? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you deny that  i t  took place? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  remember Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So i t  is possib le that  i t  could have? 

MS KWINANA :    Not  wi th cont ract  negot iat ion . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You would not  have been involved? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So,  your answer is,  you were not  involved 10 

in th is conversat ion? 

MS KWINANA :    I  was not  involved.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because i f  i t  was just  you and Mr Zwane 

and he said that  he had been requested to intervene.   Do 

you agree that  i t  is a fa i r  assumpt ion that  that  would request  

would have l ikely come f rom you? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  that . . .   I t  d id not  come from me. 

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  And she goes on and she says:  

“He told me that  the purpose of  his  ca l l  was to  

ascertain what was going on and that  he wanted to 20 

hear my side of  the story.  

He gave an opportuni ty for me to explain my 

f rust rat ions. ”  

 And then she goes on and talks in some detai l  about  the 

issues,  et  cetera.   What I  am interested in is.   This reads 
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Ms Kwinana as yet  another member of  the SAAT Team, now 

on the legal  s ide,  saying that  you were involved in  fo l lowing 

up about the draf t ing of  th is  cont ract .   Is she g iving false 

evidence by placing this version before this Commission? 

MS KWINANA :    She is Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  And Mr Phi r i  a lso,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Mr Phi r i  is also.   And in fact ,  Chai r.   Maybe 

I  should have been given Rule 3.3 here so that  I  can answer 

adequately.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Were you alerted to the fact  that  i t  would 10 

be part  of  what was referred to today because i t  comprises 

part  of  Ms Memela’s bundle.   But  you have given your 

answer.   Is there anything that  you feel  that  you have not  

been able to say? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chair  but  I  am angry that  knowing the 

processes,  how would I  go and say how far is the contract?  

The board is not  involved there.   In  fact ,  that  is what  I  have 

been explaining.   The board is not  involved in the 

documentat ion of  the cont ract .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, let  me in fa i rness to you say.   20 

I  absolutely accept  that .   When processes are running 

correct ly,  the board should never be involved in that .   I t  may 

on occasion.   And I  th ink this  is a point  that  the Chai r  ra ised 

previously.    

 I f  i t  is real ly important  that  something be in a cont ract  
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when the board approves i t ,  i t  may be appropriate f rom a 

corporate governance and a procurement perspect ive that  

the board checks again that  i t  is  there.   But  actual ly being 

involved in dr iv ing the process,  in rushing i t  a long,  is 

something that  board members should never do.   Are we – 

agree on that? 

MS KWINANA :    H’m, h ’m.  Agreed. 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   What we are probing today is why 

many people at  SAAT – many might  be exaggerat ing – at  

least  two people at  SAAT say you were playing a role in th is 10 

contract  which is  cont rary to the proper role of  a board 

member.    

 And we are explor ing i t  today because the theme that  is  

emerging f rom al l  these bi ts of  evidence is that  you p layed a 

ro le  that  is  not  an appropr iate role for  a board member to  

play.    

 And i f  you received any benef i ts out  of  th is cont ract ,  i t  

would indicate that  you were pushing for these bidders to be 

favoured and the contract  to be signed so that  they could be 

secured,  thei r  revenue st ream.   20 

 And that  is why I  must ,  in fa i rness,  put  these to  you.   I  

just  wanted you to be clear about  why I  am going there.   

Chai r,  I  then propose to move f rom this aspect  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  One second.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  sorry.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Mbanjwa. 

MS MBANJWA :    Chai r,  thank you.   Chai r,  I  decided to raise 

this concern af ter  the wi tness has answered because I  take 

cognisance of  your  warning to me the other  day to  say,  I  

must  not  be seen to be assist ing the wi tness.    

 What I  know have Chai r  is a concern wi th the manner of 

quest ioning by Ms Hofmeyr speci f ical ly on this quest ion.   I  

wi l l  not  be long so that  I  can take i t  to re-examinat ion.    

 I  just  want to state my concern so that  in future. . .   

What Ms Hofmeyr does.   She reads a statement that  does 10 

not  say that  the w i tness was there.   And i t  does not  say  tha t  

she was there ,  i t  i s  hearsay,  somebody say ing  I  am wi th  Mr  

X .  

 And second ly,  when tha t  person speaks,  tha t  person  

does not  speak in  the  p lu ra l ,  i t  i s  in  the  s ingu la r  wh ich 

means tha t  –  I  do  no t  m ind Ms Hofmeyr  pu t t ing  the  

quest ions to  the  w i tness bu t  I  ob jec t  to  Ms Hofmeyr  mak ing  

the  s ta tement  to  be  what  the  s ta tement  i s  no t  because th is  

i s  what  i s  caus ing  d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  th is  w i tness to  answer.  

 So i f  she  can in  f u tu re  j us t  be  care fu l  o f  tha t .   I f  the  20 

s ta tement  does not  say  I ,  as  Yakhe Kwinana am say ing  

th is ,  somebody says the re  was a  hearsay to  tha t  and then 

she is  bombarded and conc lus ions are  made tha t  we  

cannot  answer  c ross-examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  jus t  –  do  you want  to  d raw my 



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 48 of 243 
 

a t ten t ion  to  the  spec i f i c  par t  tha t  you are  ta lk ing  about?  

MS MBANJWA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I f  I  can  use,  fo r  

ins tance,  th is  parag raph tha t  we are  a t  now.   I t  is  DD25 

8473.  

CHAIRPERSON:    47 . . .?  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes,  i t  i s  th is  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    474?  

MS MBANJWA:    No,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  473.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MBANJWA:    And then I  am read ing  f rom paragraph 26.   10 

I t  says :  

“ I  had a  te lephone d iscuss ion  w i th  Mr  Mzwane who  

in fo rmed me tha t  he  was in  a  meet ing  w i th  the  then  

Cha i rperson a t  SAAT.  

I t  goes over  to  page 474.  

“ . . .who in fo rmed me tha t  he  was in  a  meet ing  w i th  

the  Cha i rperson o f  SAAT.   Th is  person d id  no t  see  

Ms Kwinana there . ”  

She says somebody phoned me and say I  am in  a  meet ing  

w i th  the  Cha i rperson o f  SAAT,  tha t  i s  Yakhe Kwinana.  20 

“He in fo rmed me tha t  he  was in fo rmed. . . ”  

And then i t  cont inues,  i t  says :  

“He to ld  me tha t  the  purpose o f  h is  ca l l . . . ”  

Wi thout  a rgu ing ,  Cha i r,  I  know th is  i s  no t  the  t ime,  we can 

see tha t  Mr  Zwane here  is  speak ing  in  the  s ingu lar.   He 
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does not  say  tha t  -  th is  lady  does not  say  he  to ld  me tha t  

the  reason fo r  the i r  ca l l .   So  even on Mr  Zwane i t  i s  

[ ind is t inc t ]  02 .24  to  th is  quest ion ,  the  w i tness was not  par t  

o f  tha t  conversa t ion .   That  i s  c lea r  f rom th is  a f f idav i t  and  

now here  as  we l l  my concern  is ,  my concern  is  what  now 

Ms Hofmeyr  does is  to  say th is  s ta tement  wh ich  c lea r ly  

does not  say  the  w i tness sa id  anyth ing  i s  conf i rmat ion  o f  

the  fac t  tha t  the  w i tness –  I  do  no t  m ind i f  she  makes l i ke  

tha t  bu t  what  wor r ies  me is  when she pushes i t  and 

presses i t  and makes i t  a  sa id .   I f  she  can – i f  we can jus t  10 

ge t  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  I  was qu i te  ca re fu l  to  be  very  

fa i th fu l  to  Ms Mbek i ’s  words and i t  was in  response to  her  

very  words tha t  I  asked Ms Kwinana fo r  he r  vers ion  and a l l  

tha t  I  d id  thereaf te r  was to  exp la in  to  Ms Kwinana  tha t ,  in  

essence,  answers  about  the  way boards usua l l y  opera te  i s  

no t  where  we are  go ing  here .   I  wanted to  es tab l i sh  w i th  

Ms Kwinana tha t  we a re  on  common ground w i th  tha t .   

What  i s  be ing  exp lo red is  the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  there  is  20 

ev idence f rom o thers  tha t  sugges t  a  g reater  invo l vement  

and in  fa i rness to  Ms Kwinana I  must  pu t  what  Ms Mbek i  

sa id ,  in  he r  own words.   I f  Ms Kw inana wou ld  l i ke  to  g ive  

the  answer  tha t  Ms Mban jwa has  jus t  g iven wh ich  is  we l l ,  

look ,  you cannot  even re l y  on  th i s  because i t  i s  Mr  Zwane 



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 50 of 243 
 

say ing  tha t  I  was  in  a  room tha t  I  was not  in ,  tha t  is  –  she 

is  fu l l y  en t i t led  to  g ive  tha t  answer.   What  i s  d i f f icu l t  i s ,  

aga in  w i th  respect  to  my lea rned f r iend,  a  s i tua t ion  where  

the  type o f  answer  tha t  i t  m igh t  have been usefu l  fo r  Ms 

Kwinana to  g i ve  is  then b rought  in  to  what  i t  essent ia l l y  

a rgument  o r  re -examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  my request ,  Cha i r,  wou ld  be  tha t  we 

do rese rve  i t  fo r  tha t  purpose.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    We are  go ing  to  have a  re -examinat ion  

sess ion  today.   My suggest ion  is  these proceed ings are  

go ing  to  move much more  e f f i c ien t ly  i f  we go tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  move on.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  Ms Kwinana,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

leave the  dec i s ion  tha t  the  board  took and your  

invo l vement  thereaf te r  in  award ing  the  cont rac t  to  JM and 

AAR and I  want  to  go  back to  ac tua l l y  where  we le f t  o f f  on  

Tuesday wh ich  is  these monies  tha t  you rece ived f rom JM 

Av ia t ion ,  i t s  bank account  in to  Zanospark ’s  bank account ,  20 

Ms Hendr icks  who d i rec t l y  depos i ted  money and the  

ev idence tha t  you have g iven the  Commiss ion  on  tha t  

score .  

 Now,  Ms Kwinana,  I  must  say  a f te r  Tuesday ’s  

ev idence i t  became c lear  to  me cer ta in l y  and p lease te l l  me  
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i f  you  d isagree,  tha t  you rea l l y  a re  I  th ink  probab ly  f rom 

about  the  t ime you le f t  SAAT you  have been runn ing  qu i te  

a  se r ious fo rex  t rad ing  bus iness.   I s  tha t  a  fa i r  summary o f  

what  you have been do ing?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you d id  i nd ica te  in  your  ev idence  

tha t  you have ensure  in  conduct ing  tha t  bus iness tha t  you  

are  FICA compl ian t ,  tha t  i s  compl ian t  w i th  the  F inanc ia l  

In te l l igence Cent re  Act ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry,  can you repeat  the  quest ion? 10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  I  unders tood your  ev idence the  

o ther  day to  be  tha t  you have ensured tha t  you are ,  as  a  

bus iness,  FICA compl ian t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  sa id  the  bus iness is  FICA compl ian t  bu t  I  

do  no t  need to  have a  l i cence to  do  fo rex  t rad ing .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  no ,  no ,  I  unders tand tha t  

d i f fe rence.   You d ispute  the  ev idence f rom the  FSCA,  we  

looked a t  the i r  a f f idav i t ,  you sa id  no tw i ths tand ing  what  

they say about  the  l i cences needed,  I  do  no t  need tha t  

l i cence.   You and  I  agree on tha t .   What  I  unders tand you  20 

to  say,  though,  i s  you do accept  tha t  you are  an  

accountab le  ins t i tu t ion  under  FICA and so  you must  be  

FICA compl ian t ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  am not  an  accountab le  

ins t i tu t ion .   The accountab le  ins t i tu t ion  –  le t  me get  i t  fo r  
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you  in  my red  f i le  wh ich  ins t i tu t ions  are  accountab le  in  

te rms o f  F ICA.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry,  jus t  –  cou ld  I  jus t  ask  why wou ld  

you need to  be  FICA compl ian t  i f  you  were  no t  an  

accountab le  ins t i tu t ion  under  FICA? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  FICA tha t  I  am ta lk ing  abou t  i s  the  

normal  FICA tha t  everybody must  comply  w i th  l i ke  fo r  

ins tance the  copy  o f  the  ID and the  proof  o f  address  bu t  le t  

me read to  you the  compan ies tha t  must  comply  w i th  FICA 

as the  f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ions ,  i t  i s  the  insurance compan ies .   10 

Zanospark  i s  no t  an  insurance company.   Hedge Fund 

Managers ,  Ret i rement  Fund Managers ,  Cred i t  Rat ings  

Companies ,  Cap i ta l  Marke t  compan ies ,  Forex  Brokers .   We 

are  no t  fo rex  brokers ,  we are  fo rex  t raders  and there fore ,  

we do not  have to  comply  w i th  FSCA requ i rement .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Th is  i s  the  F inanc ia l  In te l l igence  Cent re  

Act ,  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you are  no t  a  fo rex  broker,  you are  a  

fo rex  t rader.  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes and in  fac t  even the  fo rex  brokers ,  i t  

i s  no t  a  mandatory  requ i rement  tha t  they must  comply  

because the re  a re  fo rex  b roke rs  t ha t  w i l l  no t  comp ly  and i t  

i s  no t  a  requ i rement  bu t  i t  i s  adv isab le  tha t  they can  

comply.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am go ing  to  come back to  FICA in  a  

moment .   Jus t  te l l  me –  bu t  you sa id  you do have an  

ob l iga t ion  to  ge t  IDs and o ther  t h ings.   Where  does tha t  

ob l iga t ion  come f rom? 

MS KWINANA:    From our  own requ i rements  because we  

need to  pu t  every th ing  in  p lace .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  then why do you ca l l  i t  F ICA 

documents  or  FICA compl iance.  

MS KWINANA:    Maybe i t  i s  the  loose te rm.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .  10 

MS KWINANA:    L ike ,  fo r  ins tance,  when you go  to  the  

bank they say they want  to  FICA you,  they want  p roo f  o f  

address,  they want  the  ID.   So …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes because they need to  be  –  they are  

accountab le  ins t i tu t ions  under  FICA,  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So I  unders tand  your  ev idence to  be  you  

are  no t  an  accountab le  ins t i tu t ion  under  FICA 

…[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    I  am not .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    …but  you are  jus t  engag ing  good  

prac t ice ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  okay.   Under  FICA –  so r ry ,  sor ry ,  

le t  me move on f rom tha t ,  I  w i l l  come back to  the  FICA 
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aspect  in  a  moment .   On Tuesday you d id  say,  though,  and  

I  th ink  i t  i s  par t  o f  your  good bus iness prac t ice  tha t  you get  

–  know you c l ien t  documents  f rom your  c l ien ts  l i ke  i f  you  

were  ob l iged to  do  so  under  FICA you wou ld  have been 

ob l iged to  ge t ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   And those  documents  you have not  

p rov ided to  the  Commiss ion ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.   And were  those –  i s  tha t  because 10 

they were  on  tha t  server  tha t  was conf isca ted?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   Okay.   Now tha t  server ,  as  I  

unders tood your  ev idence ear l ie r ,  was conf isca ted  fo r  non-

payment  in  February  2020,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   And s im i la r ly ,  the  annua l  

investment  s ta tements  tha t  you say tha t  you prepare ,  you  

do not  ever  emai l  because o f  conf i dent ia l i t y  concerns,  you 

pr in t  them out  and then you go and hand de l i ver  them,  i s  20 

tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you a lso  ind ica ted  tha t  you  de l i ver  

them in  January  o f  eve ry  year ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    And those documents  you a lso  cou ld  no t  

p rov ide  to  the  Commiss ion  because desp i te  the  summons 

tha t  you rece ived,  because o f  the  conf isca ted  server  –  

have I  go t  the  ev idence o ther  day cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You d id  say,  however ,  in  your  ev idence  

tha t  you were  no t  cer ta in  tha t  the  conf isca t ion  happened in  

February  2020,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r .   I  even sa id  the  da te  may be 

wrong.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  the  conf isca t ion  is  cor rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  d id  take  p lace,  indeed.    So i f  we had 

been in  contac t  w i th  Onero ,  who  sa id  was your  serv i ce  

prov ider   and they ind i ca ted  tha t  t he  conf isca t ion  ac tua l l y  

occu r red  in  Apr i l  o f  2019,  wou ld  you d ispute  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  –  r i gh t ,  le t  us  move on f rom tha t  fo r  a  

moment .   On Tuesday in  your  ev idence we looked a t  the 

JM agreement  tha t  Ms S ikhu lu  sent  to  Ms Memela ,  do  you 20 

remember  tha t  when the  b id  was  s t i l l  open and she was 

ask ing  fo r  Ms Memela ’s  input  on  i t?   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And in  te rms o f  tha t  JV  ag reement  you 

wou ld  have seen  in  the  emai l  JM Av ia t ion  was go ing  to  
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earn  5% on a l l  the  invo ices genera ted  by  AAR.   Were  you 

aware  o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime tha t  these dec is ions were  be ing  

taken?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  jus t  want  to  ge t  a  sense o f  how much 

va lue  th is  cont rac t  was fo r  JM Av ia t ion  and I  know tha t  you 

are  an  accountan t ,  wh ich  I  am not ,  so  you might  be  ab le  to  

ass is t  me.   I  d id  –  the  va lue  o f  the  components  cont rac t ,  

we have  rece ived  ev idence prev ious ly  in  the  Commiss ion  i s  

about  over  the  f i ve  years  a  1 .5  b i l l i on ,  does tha t  acco rd  10 

w i th  your  unders tand ing?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now 5% of  1 .5  b i l l i on  on  my ca l cu la t ion 

is  75  m i l l ion ,  does tha t  sound r igh t  to  you?  

MS KWINANA:    Ja ,  maybe.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We cou ld  do  the  –  I  mean,  I  d id  do  i t  bu t  

somet imes when I  have had accountants  here  they can do 

i t  in  the i r  heads so  I  am a lways j us t  a  l i t t le  b i t  caut ious.   

So 5% of  the  to ta l  va lue  o f  tha t  cont rac t ,  i f  I  have done my 

ca l cu la t ion  co r rec t l y ,  i s  about  R75 mi l l ion  wor th  o f  20 

bus iness fo r  JM Av ia t ion .   Do you  accept  tha t  ca l cu la t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Le t  me get  my ca l cu la to r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cannot  t rus t  these lawyers ,  Ms  

Kwinana,  on  f igures .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Not  on  tha t  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  
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s imu l taneous ly ]  numbers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  cannot  b lame you.  

MS MBANJWA:    Sor ry  fo r  in te r rup t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

MS MBANJWA:    I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  be  g i ven the  page.   I f  

Ms Hofmeyr  can k ind l y  g ive  me the  page where  the  5% of  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh.   I  am go ing  to  have  to  jus t  

remember  where  i t  i s .   I t  i s  in  tha t  emai l ,  so  i t  w i l l  be  in  the 

Memela  bund le .   I  w i l l  be  ab le  to  f ind  the  re fe rence ,  sor ry,  10 

le t  do  tha t .  

MS KWINANA:    So  I  am ca lcu la t ing  1 .253?  1 .253.  

CHAIRPERSON:    5% o f  1 ,5  b i l l i on ,  I  th ink .   I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  

Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    5% o f  1 ,5  b i l l i on .  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  th is  i s  1 .253 636 151.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry,  5% o f  1 .5  b i l l i on  i s  what?  

MS KWINANA:    Where  is  1 .5 ,  Cha i r?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  the  va lue  o f  the  cont rac t  over  t he  20 

f i ve  years  i s  1 .5  b i l l i on ,  so  I  jus t  want  a  ca lcu la t ion  o f  what  

5% o f  1 .5  b i l l i on  i s .  

MS KWINANA:    The va lue  o f  the  cont rac t ,  Cha i r,  

acco rd ing  to  DD22H 2282 is  1 .253 …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  5% o f  100 mi l l ion  i s  5  m i l l ion  and 
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…[ in te rvenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh,  sor ry,  I  unders tand where  Ms 

Kwinana  and I  a re  a t  odds.   You are  abso lu te ly  r igh t .   On  

tha t  page when the  submiss ion  was made to  the  board  i t  

was va lued a t  about  1 .25  b i l l i on ,  r igh t?   The ev idence o f  Mr  

Human who appeared before  the  Commiss ion  who is  –  we l l ,  

a t  the  t ime was employed a t  SAAT was tha t  there  had been  

over runs on  the  cont rac t  and tha t  i t  was in  the  end go ing  to  

be  1 .5  b i l l i on ,  so  tha t  i s  why I  g ive  you tha t  f igure .  

MS KWINANA:    Oh,  I  see.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    We are  on  the  same page.   So can you 

jus t  g ive  me a  ca lcu la t ion  o f  5% o f  1 .5  b i l l i on?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  you are  about  75  m i l l ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  th ink  so  too  bu t  I  want  to  g ive  the  

w i tness and oppor tun i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  an  accountant  bu t  I  th ink  you  

are  r igh t  because 5% of  1  b i l l i on  wou ld  be  50 mi l l ion ,  I  

th ink .  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  75  m i l l ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  we are  agreed on tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  lawyers  are  no t  so  bad w i th  f igures ,  

Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  sor ry,  Ms Mban jwa had the  request .   

I  can  g ive  i t  to  you,  Ms Mban jwa,  the  re ference is  DD18 

page 339  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 59 of 243 
 

MS MBANJWA:    I f  maybe we can a l so  be  ass i s ted  w i th  

one o ther  th ing ,  Cha i r,  because fo r  us  i t  w i l l  he lp  w i th  re -

examinat ion  as  we l l .   Accord ing  to  a lso  what  Ms Kwinana  

ra ised i s  a l so  what  I  saw because  I  thought  tha t  the  va lue  

o f  the  cont rac t  was supposed to  be  in  the  submiss ion ,  in  

tha t  board  submiss ion .   Now is  i t  Ms Hofmeyr ’s  conc lus ion  

tha t  ac tua l l y  tha t  va lue  tha t  was in  the  board  submiss ion  

was an inco r rec t  va lue?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  no ,  no ,  no ,  Ms Mban jwa,  i t  i s  the  

ev idence o f  Mr  Human.   He sa id  –  there  is  no th ing  tha t  i s  10 

wrong,  he  sa id  as  the  cont rac t  has deve loped over  t ime i t  

has  become more  cost ly.   So in  the  end –  because i t  was  

runn ing  cu r ren t ly  –  I  unders tand i t  has  now been cance l led  

bu t  i t  was runn ing  cur ren t ly  and so  what  i t  was go ing  to  

end up cost ing  SAAT was about  1 .5  b i l l i on .   That  i s  why I  

am us ing  tha t  because i f  tha t  i s  what  i t  d id  end up cost ing  

SAAT then JM Av ia t ion  had a  l ook  th rough to  5% and tha t  

i s  about  75  m i l l ion .  

MS MBANJWA:    You know,  Cha i r,  I  rea l l y  do  no t  want  to  

ho ld  up ,  I  hear  th is  ev idence o f  Mr  Human but  can we be 20 

re fer red  to  someth ing  tha t  p roves tha t  a t  the  end th is  was  

the  va lue?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  t h is  i s  rea l l y  no t  the  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  she is  say ing  Mr  Human’s  ev idence,  
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Mr  Human came and gave ev idence and tha t  i s  what  he  

sa id .   Obv ious ly  i f  you  want  to  ca l cu la te  5% of  the  amount  

tha t  i s  re f lec ted  there  you are  f ree  to  do  so .  

MS MBANJ WA:    No,  I  th ink  I  have he ld  you up enough so  

thank you,  you may cont inue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS MBANJWA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  move on.   Thank you,  Ms  

Kwinana,  fo r  con f i rm ing tha t  the  lawyer  was r igh t  about  

f igures .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  ou t  o f  the  AAR JM Av ia t ion  

cont rac t .   JM Av ia t ion  s tood to  rece ive  revenue about  75  

m i l l ion .   I f  Mr  Human i s  r igh t ,  tha t  i s  i t s  u l t imate  va lue  o f  

1 .5 .   I f  i t  i s  a  b i t  less ,  1 .2 ,  we can  do the  ca l cu la t ion  and i t  

w i l l  be  some tens  o f  m i l l i ons  less  than 75 mi l l ion .   Do you  

accept  tha t  as  we l l ,  Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   And then they a lso  benef i ted  f rom 

the  sa le  o f  the  GPUs to  them and  then the i r  ab i l i t y  to  on-

se l l  i t  to  Swisspor t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    What  was your  quest ion?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  JM Av ia t ion  a lso  benef i ted  f rom the  

fac t  tha t  SAAT so ld  i t s  GPUs wh ich  i t  was then ab le  to  se l l  

on  to  Swisspor t ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  cannot  conf i rm th is  one.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you not  have  knowledge o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know i f  they  on-so ld  and  

benef i t ted .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh,  okay,  le t  me he lp  you aga in .   The 

ev idence is  tha t  SAAT so ld  i t  to  JM Av ia t ion  a t  about  3  

m i l l ion ,  i t  was  3 .3  or  someth ing ,  and the  next  day  

Swisspor t  pa id  fo r  those same GPUs a t  about  9 .8 .   So I  

have a lways worked w i th  a  d i f fe rence be ing  about  R6  

mi l l ion .   Do you accept  tha t  i f  JM Av ia t ion  bought  them for  

about  3  m i l l i on  and the  next  day they cou ld  se l l  them for  9  10 

mi l l ion  they bene f i t ted  by  the  d i f fe rence wh ich  I  am go ing  

to  say is  about  6  m i l l ion .   Do you accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    There  was a l so  a  board  submiss ion  in  

respect  o f  th is .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  may quest ion  is  do  you accept  tha t  

i f  they  bought  them for  3  m i l l ion  and so ld  them for  9  mi l l ion  

the  next  day they  made 6  m i l l ion  ou t  o f  tha t  t ransac t ion? 

MS KWINANA:    There  was a  board  reso lu t ion  in  respect  o f  

th is  Cha i r  and in  th is  board  reso lu t ion  the re  were  some 

a lso  quest ions tha t  were  ra ised in  th is  …[ in tervenes ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  hang one,  Ms Kwinana,  she is  

jus t  ask ing  you whether  you accep t  tha t  reason ing .   She is  

say ing  i f  you  buy someth ing  fo r  3  m i l l ion  today and you se l l  

i t  fo r  R9 mi l l ion  tomorrow,  do  you accept  tha t  i t  means you  

have made R6 mi l l ion  pro f i t?  
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MS KWINANA:    Not  necessar i l y,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why not?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  because -  i f  I  make an example  an  

example  o f  a  car.   You se l l  a  car  –  you buy a  ca r  today,  

Cha i r,  fo r  200 000,  i t  ge ts  reg is te red today and you se l l  i t  

tomorrow,  you se l l  i t  tomorrow,  you can se l l  i t  tomorrow a t  

150 because o f  the  deprec ia t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed,  indeed ,  bu t  the  fac ts  a re  they 

bought  i t  on  day one fo r  3  m i l l ion  and they d id  no t  se l l  i t  a t  10 

a  deprec ia ted  va lue ,  they so ld  i t  the  next  day a t  9  m i l l ion .   

How cou ld  they poss ib l y  no t  have benef i t ted  in  the  order  o f  

6  m i l l ion?  There  is  no  deprec ia t ion  issue.   Buy on day one 

a t  3  m i l l ion ,  se l l  on  day two a t  9  m i l l ion .  

MS KWINANA:    S t i l l ,  Cha i r,  i t  a lso  depends on a  who le  lo t  

o f  th ings.   I  am ta lk ing  about  the  deprec ia t ion .   We a l l  

know tha t  the  ca r  deprec ia tes  i t  the  moment  i t  ge ts  ou t  o f  

the  showroom,  i t  has  a l ready deprec ia ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you see you are  respond ing  to  a  

genera l  p r inc ip le .   You are  say ing  in  e f fec t  tha t  i s  no t  20 

a lways the  case,  there  a re  c i r cumstances where  you  might  

have to  se l l  someth ing  fo r  lower  than the  amount  you  

bought  i t  the  prev ious day.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You made the  example  o f  a  car.   But  
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what  she is  ta lk ing  about ,  i s  where  i t  i s  a  fac t  tha t  they 

so ld  i t  fo r  more  than the  pr i ce  they pa id  fo r  i t ,  so  your  

example  does no t  app ly.   They have bought  i t  fo r  –  they 

bought  th is  fo r  3  m i l l ion  today,  tomorrow they were  ab le  to  

–  the  fo l low ing day they were  ab le  to  se l l  i t  fo r  9  m i l l ion .   

How can i t  no t  be  tha t  they made a  pro f i t  o f  6  m i l l i on?  

How can you not  agree w i th  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Aga in ,  Cha i r,  in  the  example  o f  the  ca r  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  leave out  the  example  o f  a  car,  10 

ta lk  about  what  she is  ta lk ing  abou t .  

MS KWINANA:    You ta lk  about  the  GPUs? 

ADV HOFMEYR:     Ta lk  about  any purchase …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Then le t  me ta lk  about  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Day one 3  m i l l ion ,  tomorrow se l l  fo r  9  

m i l l ion .   

MS KWINANA:    Then le t  me ta lk  about  the  purchase o f  a  

ca r,  Cha i r,  le t  me make an example  o f  the  purchase o f  a  

ca r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  bu t  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  your  own ev idence says in  t he  case 

o f  a  car  you w i l l  no t  se l l  the  car  fo r  h igher,  fo r  a  h igher  

p r ice  than the  one you bought  i t  fo r.   That  i s  your  own  

ev idence.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  she is  say ing  to  you i f  you  buy  

anyth ing  today and you are  ab le  to  –  fo r  R3 mi l l ion  and you  

are  ab le  to  se l l  i t  fo r  R9 mi l l ion  tomorrow,  obv ious ly  you  

have made R6 mi l l ion  pro f i t .  

MS KWINANA:    I f  you  have not  made any improvements ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i f  you  have not  incu r red  any 

expenses o r  …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    I f  you  have not  incu r red  any o ther  

expenses.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then you agree.  

MS KWINANA:    The answer  i s  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t ,  one second?  Ms Mban jwa? 

MS MBANJ WA:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  to  remind  

Cha i r  o f  the  d i f f i cu l t y.   You w i l l  reca l l ,  Cha i r,  tha t  th is  was 

the  same quest ion  tha t  was p laced in  f ron t  o f  Ms  Memela 

and then what  we had sa id  then,  we had sa id  tha t  the 

de terminat ion  o f  the  …[ in tervenes]  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  can I  –  I  am so so r ry ,  Ms 

Mban jwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  rea l l y  do  want  to  p lace  on reco rd  now 

tha t  we w i l l  a rgue  in  due course  and tha t  i s  the  on ly  reason 
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I  am in te r rup t ing  Ms Mban jwa because I  have to  in te r rup t  

to  te l l  you  tha t  i f  a t  th is  po in t  you have in te r jec ted  i n  a  way  

tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  v iewed as  coach ing  th is  w i tness,  we are  

go ing  to  make tha t  submiss ion  in  due course .   I  need to  te l l  

you  tha t  tha t  i s  what  I  am go ing  to  do  in  fa i rness to  you but  

p lease p roceed i f  you wou ld  l i ke  to  car ry  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  as  I  have  been say ing  a l so ,  Ms 

Mban jwa,  I  am very  concerned about  tha t  and i t  i s  no t  

do ing  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MBANJWA:    Bu t  i t  i s  no t  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  no t  do ing  jus t i ce  to  Ms Kwinana who 

I  be l ieve  can mos t ly  answer  quest i ons on  her  own.  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes bu t  Cha i r  you are  go ing  to  l i s ten  to  

my –  to  what  I  am go ing  to  say and you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  has  

no th ing  to  do  w i th  the  answer  o f  Ms Kwinana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja?  

MS MBANJWA:    Ac tua l l y ,  Cha i r ,  maybe th i s  way I  th ink  I  

p lay  a  joke ,  I  am not  mak ing  l igh t  o f  th is ,  she is  ac tua l l y  

Mrs  Kwinana.   There  is  somebody who tweeted oh,  Mrs  

Kwinana,  no  wonder ,  they a re  no t  even marr i ed ,  they are  20 

gangsters ,  so  maybe we shou ld  emphas ise  tha t  she is  Mrs ,  

she has mar r ied  fo r  more  than 20 years .   Thank you,  Cha i r .  

 But ,  Cha i r ,  what  I  wanted to  say,  w i th  your  

permiss ion ,  when  Ms Memela  was g iv ing  ev idence the  las t  

t ime we  requested a  spec i f i c  a f f idav i t .   The a f f idav i t  o f  
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Ju les  A i res  and Ju les  A i res  was a t  Swisspor t .   One  o f  the 

th ings –  and tha t  a f f idav i t  we con f i rmed w i th  Ms Hofmeyr  

tha t  she is  in  possess ion  o f  tha t  a f f idav i t .   That  a f f idav i t  

express ly  s ta ted  and we drew the  a t ten t ion  o f  Ms Hofmeyr  

to  tha t ,  i t  express ly  s ta ted  tha t  the  GPUs tha t  were  so ld ,  

some o f  them were  broken and they were  taken fo r  repa i rs  

wh ich  means costs  were  incur red .   I  was j us t  remind ing  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  the  issue o f  whether  i t  was 6  mi l l ion ,  the  

pro f i t ,  i s  fu l l y  se t  ou t  in  tha t  a f f idav i t .   Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr ,  p lease move on.  10 

MS KWINANA:    Thank you.   The issue o f  Ms Kwinana,  Ms  

or  Mrs  Kwinana,  I  have unders tood tha t  Ms is  fo r  bo th  Mrs  

and Miss  bu t  I  may be wrong.   Ms Hofmeyr ,  what  i s  your  

unders tand ing?  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  had ce r ta in ly  unders tood tha t  to  be  the  

case.   Sor ry ,  I  was wr i t ing  myse l f  a  no te  so  tha t  i f  Ms – 

Mrs  Kwinana wants  me to  re fer  -   you see,  I  have wr i t ten  

Mrs  because i t  i s  my tendency to  a lways use Ms do tha t  i t  

mutua l l y  covers  bo th  bu t  i f  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  Mrs  Kwinana  

tha t  I  re fe r  to  her  as  Mrs  Kwinana then I  w i l l  endeavour  to  20 

do  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Gu ide  us?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  rea l l y  does not  mat te r  to  me,  Cha i r .  

 CHAIRPERSON:    I t  does not  mat te r  to  you?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  
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MS MBANJWA:    No,  I  was jus t  pu t t ing  in  a  l igh t  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  bu t  i t  i s  impor tan t  one,  does 

need to  be  sens i t i ve  to  some o f  these th ings.   Okay,  

a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wanted to  th ink  now whether  to  say Mrs  

Hofmeyr  o r  Ms Hofmeyr .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  I  fa r  p re fer  Ms,  so  I  am not  

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t ,  ja .  10 

MS KWINANA:    Excuse me,  Cha i r .   I  am even 

embarrassed to  ask  fo r  another  b reak,  maybe i t  i s  th is  

wate r ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  ano ther  b reak.   Oh,  okay.   

Okay,  le t  us  take  another  b reak.   Ten minutes?  

MS KWINANA:    F i ve  m inutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    F ive  m inutes  w i l l  do?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  f i ve  m inutes .   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  ta lk  about  when we th ink  we can 

f in ish ,  what  i s  your  es t imate  o f  how much more  t ime you  

need Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sorry  Cha i r  I  wou ld  th ink  you  know i t  
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does take  longer  w i th  the  in te r jec t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So what  I  can te l l  you  is  w i thout  

in te r jec t ions I  am look ing  a t  about  an  hour.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay no  tha t  i s  f ine .     

MS KWINANA:    Ms Mban jwa no in te r jec t ions p lease,  I  

must  be  ou t  o f  he re  in  an  hour.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you see Ms Mban jwa you a re  under  

ins t ruc t ion  now by the  c l ien t ,  o therw ise  you w i l l  be  f i red .  

MS MBANJWA:   Thank you Cha i r  and can I  say  someth ing ,  10 

i t  has  go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  th is ,  I  want  to  s tand when I  am 

say ing  i t .   I  jus t  want  to  say Cha i r  I  was shocked,  tha t  

there  are  many negat ive  comments  tha t  come,  I  do  no t  

m ind them,  bu t  there  th is  comment  tha t  wor r ied  me and I  

dec ided to  apo log ise .    

Somebody is  say ing  I  d is respected  the  Deputy  Head   

Judge,  I  was so  embarrassed,  and i f  Cha i r  by my 

in te r jec t ions I  was taken to  have d is respected you I  

s incere ly  f rom my hear t  apo log ise ,  tha t  was never  the  

in ten t ion .    You are  one o f  the  peop le  we as  b lack  peop le  20 

look up  to ,  you are  a  t ra i l  leader  and I  am sure  you know o f  

tha t ,  so  ser ious ly  my apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  thank you .  Now I  

jus t  wanted to  a lso  ta lk  Ms Mban jwa about  re -examinat ion  

so  tha t  as  Ms Ho fmeyr  cont inues you can have an  idea o f  
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how much t ime I  have in  m ind I  wou ld  g ive  you.    

You might  when the  t ime comes maybe ask fo r  more   

and I  w i l l  hear  what  you have to  say bu t  i t  m igh t  he lp  tha t  

you have an idea o f  what  I  have  in  m ind so  tha t  you can  

work  on  the  bas i s  tha t  i f  tha t ’s  the  t ime I  w i l l  g ive  you,  you 

t ry  and ident i f y  rea l l y  impor tan t  i ssues tha t  you want  to re -

examine on because i f  I  te l l  you  la te r  you might  say  had I  

known before  I  wou ld  have t r i ed  to  l im i t  bu t  I  worked on  too  

many th ings because I  thought  I  was go ing  to  have more  

t ime.    10 

Now the  t ime tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  g ive  you is  no t  

more  than an hour,  le t  me te l l  you  why I  have tha t  in  m ind I  

have looked a t  how much t ime lawyers  who have appeared 

fo r  w i tnesses seem to  genera l l y  taken re-examinat ion  s ince  

we s tar ted  in  August  2018.   As  fa r  as  I  can reca l l  there  a re  

no  more  than two  who have taken about  two hours  most  o f  

the  t ime a  lo t  o f  lawyers  who represent  w i tnesses w i l l  say  I  

jus t  want  to  ask  one or  two quest ions and then they take  a  

few minutes  some do not  even  re-examine.  I  reca l l  fo r  

example  some t ime ea r l ie r  I  th ink  las t  year  i f  I  am not  20 

m is taken Mr  Wim Trengove was  represent ing  I  th ink  Mr  

Jonas.            

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    When i t  was h i s  tu rn  to  re -examine he  

sa id  Cha i rpe rson I  am not  go ing  to  re -examine the  
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examinat ion  by  the  Ev idence  Leader  has covered 

every th ing .   There  are  many o thers  Mr  Mpofu  was  

rep resent ing  somebody somet ime back.   He d id  no t  take ;  I  

th ink  he  d id  no t  take  more  than  f i f teen minutes  in  re -

examinat ion .   Mr  Nbesha was he re  las t  week or  the  week 

before  he  asked two o r  th ree  quest ions in  re -examinat ion  

and sa id  he  was covered.    

So genera l l y  you know lawyers  who represent  

w i tnesses they have fe l t  covered  by  the  quest ion ing  and 

the  ev idence tha t  comes out  when  a  Commiss ion  Ev idence  10 

Leader  has been  ask ing  quest ions.   So I  am jus t  say ing  

you know an hour  shou ld  i f  one  looks a t  what  lawyers  

genera l l y  have taken you know shou ld  be  f ine .    

So -  bu t  i f  when you s tar t  re -examin ing  you  

compla in  you want  more  le t  us  ta lk  then but  I  jus t  want  to  

g ive  an  idea so  tha t  as  you,  as  Ms Hofmeyr  cont inues fo r  

the  next  hour  o r  so  you are  ab le  to  say okay i f  I  do  no t  ge t  

g iven more  than  an hour  th is  i s  what  I  want  to  cover  

because th is  i s  what  I  cons ide r  to  be  impor tan t .     

MS MBANJ WA:   Thank you Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  be  fa i r  Cha i r  as  20 

much I  thought  w i th  Ms Memela  I  wou ld  need more  because  

the  submiss ion  was d i f fe ren t  up  t i l l  now I  th ink  an  hour  w i l l  

be  su f f i c ien t .   The on ly  th ing  wh ich  I  wou ld  ask  w i th  your  

permiss ion  Cha i r  i s  a f te r  Ms Hofmeyr  has f in ished can we  

maybe t ime the  re -examinat ion  to  be  jus t  a f te r  lunch so  
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tha t  I  can ta lk  to  the  w i tness about  a  few th ings.   I  do  no t  

know i f  tha t  i s  poss ib le  and I  know i t  i s  a  Saturday and  

there  is  t ime const ra in ts  on  your  par t  so  i f  tha t  i s  no t  

poss ib le  maybe I  can jus t  have I  do  no t  know the  break 

tha t  Cha i r  can be prepared to  g ive  be fore  we embark 

immedia te ly  on  re -exam.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  look  le t  us  see how i t  goes I  had 

hoped tha t  we wou ld  be  done by  1  o ’c lock  bu t  I  do  no t  

th ink  we w i l l  be  done.   Le t  us  see when Ms Hofmeyr  i s  

done and then take  i t  f rom there .  10 

MS MBANJWA:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  Ms  Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r,  Ms Kwinana I  want  to  

jus t  ge t  you r  conf i rmat ion  o f  cer ta in  fac ts  we have  

t raversed them over  the  las t  two days bu t  they an  

impor tan t  background to  where  I  am go ing  in  the  quest ions.   

So i t  i s  jus t  he lp fu l  to  remember  a l so  because we have had 

th is  b reak o f  th ree  days.   You we have seen th is  morn ing  

were  invo lved in  the  SAAT Board  dec is ion  to  award  the  

components  cont rac t  to  AAR and JM Av ia t ion ,  cor rec t?     20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you were  a lso  invo lved in  the  SAA 

Board ’s  dec i s ion  to  approve the  cont rac t  w i th  Swisspor t  

tha t  was tha t  reso lu t ion  we looked a t  the  o ther  day o f  

March 2016,  cor rec t?    
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MS KWINANA:    To  approve as  I  sa id  Cha i r  th is  2012 tha t  

was 2012 and you re fused Cha i r  tha t  I  shou ld  go  back to  

2012.   In  2016 the  cont rac t  was  awarded in  2012 so  in  

2016 what  happened is  there  was  a  Board  submiss ion  to  

approve the  te rms and cond i t ions  o f  the  2012 award .   So 

Cha i r  aga in  when the  submiss ion  comes i t  does not  come 

wi th  a  cont rac t  bu t  i t  come wi th  the  te rms and cond i t ions  

and then the  same as I  was say ing  a t  AAR a f te r  tha t  the  

peop le  go  and do the  cont rac t  bu t  tha t  cont rac t  the  te rms  

and cond i t ions  tha t  we approved were  re la t ing  to  the  award  10 

tha t  was done in  2012.     

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana I  know tha t  you have g iven  

ev idence about  t he  o ld  2012 award .   I  jus t  want  to  ge t  

conf i rmat ion  tha t  you were  par t  o f  the  Board  tha t  dec ided  

on the  14 t h  o f  March and I  am read ing  f rom the  reso lu t ion  

now so  tha t  there  can be no d ispute  be tween us  to  approve  

the  cont rac t  to  be  en tered in to  w i th  Swisspor t  South  A f r i ca  

fo r  the  du ra t ion  o f  f i ve  years  commencing  on 1  Apr i l  2016  

to  31  March 2021 .   Do you conf i rm  tha t?       

MS KWINANA:    What  page is  tha t  Cha i r?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  in  Exh ib i t  DD19 page 132.43 le t  us 

ge t  tha t  in  f ron t  o f  you.   Oh apo log ies  i t  i s  19A and i t  i s  

132.43.    

MS KWINANA:    Oh yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Super,  thank you.   Now i t  was pursuant  
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o f  th is  cont rac t  tha t  the  sa le  o f  the  GPU’s  took p lace.   You  

wou ld  reca l l  tha t  I  took  you to  the  cont rac t  the  o ther  day  

and I  showed you c lauses 8 .1  and 8 .2 .   Do you  accept  

tha t?    

MS KWINANA:    What  were  these c lauses say ing ,  can you 

remind me?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  there  the  c lause 8 .2  says tha t  i t  i s  

a  requ i rement  o f  the  cont rac t  tha t  we have jus t  looked a t  

tha t  was approved –  tha t  Swisspor t  pu rchased SAAT’s  

GPU’s .   10 

MS KWINANA:    Oh yes,  yes .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  what  tha t  means Ms Kwinana  

is  tha t ,  i f  you  w i l l  jus t  g ive  me a  moment…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Ms  Hofmeyr  I  do  no t  know 

why my reg i s t ra r  i s  tak ing  ages.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh I  do  apo log ise  and I  had moved on 

Cha i r  I  d id  no t  rea l i se .   What  was usefu l  i s  tha t  Ms  

Kwinana read i t  and then gave me the  conf i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  as  the  reso lu t ion  reads tha t  the 20 

Board  had approved the  cont rac t  to  be  awarded fo r  t he  f i ve  

years .   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  m igh t  no t  have  to  look  a t  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  cer ta in ly  do  no t  th ink  so .   

CHAIRPERSON:    No thank you,  le t  us  move on.   



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 74 of 243 
 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  what  tha t  means i s  tha t  you were  

invo l ved in  two dec i s ions one in  your  capac i ty  a t  the  SAAT 

Board  and one in  your  capac i ty  a t  the  SAA Board  tha t  

genera ted  revenue fo r  JM Av ia t i on  and we have  looked  

prev ious l y  a t  what  tha t  revenue looked l i ke .   I t  i s  about  

R75mi l l ion  even i f  you –  le t  us  say R60mi l l ion  i f  you  take  

the  R1.25b i l l i on  ra ther  than the  R1.5b i l l i on  and i t  i s  

R6mi l l ion  in  the  GPU.   So those two dec i s ions genera ted  

revenue le t  say  in  about  R60mi l l ion  fo r  JM Av ia t i on .   Do 

you accept  tha t?     10 

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r  I  wou ld  no t  know how much 

revenue was genera ted  so  bas i ca l l y  tha t  wou ld  be  based  

on the  assumpt ion .   So I  cannot  say  w i th  cer ta in t y  tha t  JM 

Av ia t ion  benef i t ted  on  tha t  because as  I  was say ing  the  

pro f i t  on  GPU’s  t here  were  some issues in  respect  o f  the 

pro f i t s  on  GPU’s  and the  5% of  AAR I  do  no t  know what  

cont rac t  they en ter  in to  and there fore  I  wou ld  no t  be  in  a 

pos i t ion  to  conf i rm the  revenue o f  JM Av ia t ion .   They wou ld  

be  in  a  be t te r  pos i t ion  to  conf i rm the i r  revenue.     

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay le t  me –  we had gone th rough a l l  20 

o f  th is  to  lead up  to  th is  po in t  because i t  i s  unders tood you 

accepted 5% of  R1.5b i l l i on  was R75mi l l ion .   I  am go ing  to  

change tac t ,  do  you accept  tha t  these two dec is ions meant  

tha t  SAAT and we l l  i t  i s  jus t  SAAT actua l l y  SAAT pa id  JM 

Av ia t ion  money?    
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MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know i f  SAAT pa id  money to  JM 

Av ia t ion .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l  you a re  ac tua l l y  r igh t  SAAT pa id  

money to  AAR which  AAR then pa id  on to  JM Av ia t ion  in  

te rms o f  the i r  jo in t  venture  agreement  wh ich  was par t  o f  

the  way in  wh ich  they b id .   A re  you say ing  tha t  you  d ispute 

tha t  JM Av ia t ion  genera ted  anyth ing  because  o f  the  

bus iness w i th  SAAT?    

MS KWINANA:    I  am not  d isput ing  Cha i r  bu t  I  am say ing  I  

do  no t  know those are  the  th ings tha t  I  cannot  conf i rm.   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  unders tand i t  is  the  f igures  is  tha t  r igh t  

bu t  you w i l l  accept  w i th  me tha t  a  b idder  who gets  awarded  

a  cont rac t  genera tes  revenue f rom the  cont rac t .   Do you 

accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  r igh t  now f rom June 2016  

your  company Zano Spark  rece ived money f rom JM 

Av ia t ion  and peop le  l inked to  JM Av ia t ion  l i ke  Ms  

Hendr icks  who you unders tood  a t  the  t ime was an  

employee.   Do you accept  tha t?   20 

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  my company rece ived money f rom 

JM Av ia t ion  f rom August  2016 Zano Spark  rece ived two  

amounts  f rom Ms Hendr i cks ,  Ms Hendr icks  I  do  no t  know,  I  

d id  no t  know unt i l  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  she is  marr ied  to  

Mr  Ndzeku even w i th  tha t  Cha i r  i f  you  look  a t  the 
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p rocu rement  p rocess JM Av ia t ion  and Swisspor t  had gone 

th rough a  r igorous process s ta r t ing  f rom the  approva l  by  

BFS Team and there fo re  fo r  these  compan ies  to  be  in  the  

doct r ine .   I  rea l l y  do  no t  th ink  tha t  I  wou ld  have in f luenced  

f rom the  beg inn ing  up to  the  end o f  the  process and  

second ly  in  the  Board  I  am not  the  on ly  Board  member  o f  

SAA Techn ica l  there  were  o ther  Board  members  a t  SAA 

Techn ica l  and there fo re  there  was no way tha t  I  wou ld  

in f luence any o f  these cont rac ts  and the re fore  Cha i r  and  

another  th ing  when I  was s t i l l  a t  SAA and SAAT.   I  d id  no t  10 

have a  bus iness re la t ionsh ip  w i th  bo th ,  a  bus iness  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  bo th  happened a f te r  I  le f t  SAA Techn ica l  

so  I…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bus iness re la t ionsh ip  w i th?             

MS KWINANA:    Wi th  Mr  Ndzeku.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  i t  happened a f te r  I  le f t  SAA Techn ica l  

the  bus iness re la t ionsh ip  and so  Cha i rperson to  say tha t  I  

in f luenced maybe  I  may not  pu t  i t  exact ly  the  way you sa id  

i t  bu t  to  say tha t  I  in f luenced the  p rocess.   I  th ink  a t  c ross-  20 

funct iona l  sec t iona l  team tha t  i s  b id  eva lua t ion  there  are  

about  f i f teen or  s ix teen peop le  f rom d i f fe ren t  a reas  o f  SAA 

and SAAT,  f i f teen  peop le  and then  f rom there  even i f  I  can  

be so  in f luent ia l  and i f  I  had in f luence to  those peop le  they  

wou ld  a lso  come to  the  Zondo Commiss ion  to  say I  spoke  
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to  them,  I  spoke to  them.    

So what  I  am say ing  Cha i r  the  process tha t  i s  be ing  

fo l lowed makes i t  so  d i f f i cu l t  to  in f luence the  process i t  i s  

the  same wi th  Swisspor t .   We d id  no t  award  tha t  tender ;  

what  we were  do ing  we were  regu la r is ing  the  cont rac t .   

How we regu lar i sed the  cont rac t  f rom 2012 to  2016 tha t  

was on a  month  to  month  bas i s  because i t  was  never  

s igned because o f  the  d isagreement  be tween Swisspor t  

and SAA.   So they were  on  a  month  to  month  cont rac t  tha t  

caused a  lo t  o f  uncer ta in ty  because Swisspor t  i s  one o f  the  10 

major  cus tomers  o f  SAA.    

I f  Swisspor t  goes on s t r i ke  SAA wou ld  no t  f l y  and 

there fo re ,  Cha i r  a lso  tha t  p rocess fo l lowed the  r i gorous 

process o f  FSTC and tha t  FSTC i s  even you cannot  even 

say you w i l l  in f luence them because i t  depends who gets  

ca l led  a t  the  moment  depend ing  on what  the  tender  i s  and 

who is  p lay ing  wh ich  ro le  and there fore  Cha i r  le t  me repeat  

aga in  I  do  no t  s i t  a lone in  the  Board  Cha i r  whatever  

dec is ions tha t  we  do is  a  Board  dec is ion .                 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana what  was my quest ion?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Remind me Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    The quest ion  was do you except  tha t  

f rom June o f  2016 your  company Zano Spark  rece ived  

money f rom JM Av ia t ion  o r  peop le  l inked to  JM Av ia t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am say ing  Cha i r  tha t  money tha t  we  
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rece ived tha t  i s  another  th ing  tha t  I  shou ld  exp la in  Cha i r  

aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  i s  i t  yes  you  

accept  o r  what  a re  the  propos i t ion  tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  

pu t t ing  or  do  you  not  accept  i t  then we can ta lk  about  the  

bas is  fo r  no t  accept ing  i t  o r  there  needs to  be  a  

qua l i f i ca t ion  to  say ing  you accept  i t .   I f  we want  to  make  

progress and f in ish  w i th in  a  reasonab le  t ime i t  w i l l  he lp  i f  

as  fa r  as  poss ib le ,  c r i sp  quest ions are  answered w i th  c r isp  

answers  obv ious l y  I  accept  tha t  somet imes there  needs to  10 

be  some qua l i f i ca t ion  o r  exp lanat ion  bu t  i t  w i l l  he lp 

progress i f  you  are  ab le  to  answer  yes or  no  to  a  quest ion  

tha t  seeks tha t .        

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  the  reason why in  th is  quest ion  I  am 

re luc tan t  to  answer  yes or  no  is  because in  p rev ious 

hear ings Advoca te  Hofmeyr  sa id  I  accepted –  I  was  

invo l ved in  a  cor rup t  scheme I  accepted br ibes and 

k ickbacks,  tha t  i s  what  she sa id  and in  fac t  now her  

quest ion  w i l l  be  and I  do  no t  know what  w i l l  be  the  fo l low 

up quest ion ,  tha t  i s  why.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  do  no t  wor ry  about  the  fo l low 

up quest ion  you w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  when i t  comes.   F i r s t  she 

jus t  wants  to  f ind  ou t  do  you accept  tha t  your  company  

rece ived money f rom Ms…[ in tervene]          

ADV HOFMEYR:    JM Av ia t ion  or  peop le  l inked  to  JM 
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Av ia t ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS KWINANA:    Maybe she shou ld  te l l  me Cha i r  tha t  I  

rece ived money fo r  what .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  tha t  can  come la te r  bu t  i f  your  

company d id  no t  rece ive  money a t  a l l  then there  m ight  be  

no  need to  go  in to  fo r  what  bu t  i f  you say yes i t  d id  rece ive  

the  money.     

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r  i t  d id  rece ive  the  money.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  take  i t  f rom there .     10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  then I  wou ld  l i ke  to  p ick  up  

jus t  fo r  a  moment  on  someth ing  you d id  say ear l ie r  about  

tha t  d is t inc t ion  tha t  money before  you le f t  SAAT came f rom 

Ms Hendr icks  and i t  was on ly  a f te r  you le f t  SAAT tha t  

money came f rom JM Av ia t ion ,  do  you reca l l  d rawing tha t  

d is t inc t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  i t  i s  a  d is t inc t ion  tha t  I  confessed  

to  Mr  Ndzeku when he was g i v ing  ev idence tha t  I  cou ld  no t  

unders tand.   You  d id  watch  h is  ev idence d id  you no t  o r  d id  20 

you look a t  h is  t ransc r ip t  wh ich  was i t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d id ,  I  looked a t  the  t ranscr ip t .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  do  you reca l l  me ra is ing  tha t  

w i th  h im?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  because you see h is  ev idence 

before  th is  Commiss ion  is  tha t  i t  was h im,  i t  was h is  

investments  and he was s imp ly  ask ing  h is  w i fe  to  make the  

payments  tha t  f i rs t  2 .5  and the  605,  do  you reca l l  h im 

g iv ing  tha t  ev idence?  

MS KWINANA:    I  w i l l  no t  say  I  reca l l  spec i f i ca l l y  tha t .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    No tha t  i s  f ine  le t  me te l l  

you…[ in tervene]  

MS KWINANA:    However.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   10 

MS KWINANA:    However  even i f  the  money was coming  

f rom Mr  Ndzeku  the  money was  not  to  my benef i t  the 

money was fo r  h is  investment  tha t  i s  why – le t  me f in ish .   

The money was fo r  h is  benef i t  no t  fo r  my benef i t  yes  and 

second ly  there  cou ld  be  l i ke  fo r  i ns tance i f  there  was –  le t  

me ta lk  about  the  d isc losure  and conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  w i thout  

be ing  asked tha t  bu t  I  need to  cover  i t .    

The money the  f i rs t  money was pa id  on  1s t  o f  Ju ly  

tha t  was the  f i rs t  money.   Now assuming tha t  i t  was Mr  

Ndzeku or  yes  assuming the  wors t  case scenar io  was tha t  20 

i t  was Mr  Ndzeku .   Now when wou ld  I  d isc lose  the  in te res t  

a t  SAA there  are  two spec i f i c  c i r cumstances where  we can  

d isc lose  the  in te res t .    

We have got  annua l  d isc losu res  and i f  Zano Spark  

i s  no t  the re  tha t  means I  was not  par t  o f  the  Zano Spark  
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bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  go  there  bu t  what  I  do  I  have got  

access to  CIPC where  a l l  my d i rec to rsh ips  are  there .   I  

p r in t  tha t  and send i t  to  the  company secre tary  tha t  i s  the 

annua l  d i sc losure  and then the  second d i sc losure  i s  when 

you see a  pack i n  f ron t  o f  you,  you go ing  to  the  meet ing 

and then you th ink  tha t  your  dec i s ion  w i l l  be  impa i red  here .  

When those monies  inc lud ing  the  one tha t  was put  

by  Ms Hendr icks  when those monies  were  pu t  there  was no 

t ime where  I  wou ld  say now le t  me d isc lose my in te res t  

because the  company tha t  I  am l inked to  be ing  Zano Spark  10 

is  a lso  do ing  the  work  w i th  the  company tha t  we do ing  work  

w i th  l i ke  SAA and Zano Spark .   So there  was no 

c i rcumstances l i ke  tha t  and there fore  Cha i r  the  mon ies  tha t  

we rece ived f i r s t l y  f rom Ms Hendr i cks  whom I  d id  no t  know 

tha t  she was Mr  Ndzeku ’s  w i fe .   We d id  rece ive  i t  as  a  

company I  agree  w i th  tha t ,  we a lso  rece ived monies  f rom 

JM Av ia t ion  those monies  were  fo r  fo rex  t rad ing .   So to 

answer  your  quest ion  yes Zano Spark  d id  rece ive  those  

monies…[ in tervene]            

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Ms Kwinana.   20 

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  they were  no t  fo r  b r ibe  and cor rup t ion  

and k ickbacks as  you sa id  i t  be fore .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana  a t  th is  po in t  I  am jus t  

ge t t ing  conf i rmat ion  tha t  you accept  tha t  you rece ived i t .   I  

do  want  to  go  back because you keep emphas is ing  tha t  you 
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on ly  l earn t  tha t  Ms Hendr icks  was Mr  Ndzeku ’s  w i fe  in  the  

ev idence before  the  Commiss ion .    

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  remember  we dea l t  w i th  tha t  the 

o ther  day you knew tha t  she was l inked to  JM Av ia t i on .   

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  you knew r igh t  so  when you 

rece ived the  payment  on  the  1s t  o f  Ju ly  2016 when you s t i l l  

a  d i rec tor  o f  SAAT and SAA you know tha t  Zano Spark  your  

company is  rece iv ing  R2.5mi l lon  f rom a  person l inked to  10 

JM Av ia t ion ,  cor rec t?    

MS KWINANA:    Le t  me make one s l igh t  co r rec t ion  Ms 

Hendr icks  I  knew tha t  she was a  co l league o f  Mr  Ndzeku.   I  

d id  no t  know;  I  do  no t  know i f  she is  l inked to  JM Av ia t ion .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    We wi l l  go  and get  the  t ranscr ip t  o f  the  

o ther  day you  re ferenced pa r t i cu la r l y  tha t  she was 

employed or  I  do  no t  know i f  you used the  word  employed 

or  a  company a t  JM Av ia t ion .     

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  she was a  co l league o f  Mr  Ndzeku  

wh ich  company I  do  no t  know.   20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    We wi l l  go  back to  the  t ranscr ip t .   

MS KWINANA:    Another  th ing  Cha i r  Mr  Ndzeku is  invo l ved  

as  I  sa id  be fore ,  i s  invo lved in  many compan ies .   So when  

he says Ms Hendr icks  i s  a  co l league then and in  fac t  even  

i f  he  sa id ,  Mr  Ndzeku sa id  Miss  Hendr icks  i s  a  co l league  
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f rom JM Av ia t ion  fo r  the  reasons tha t  I  have jus t  exp la ined 

I  rea l l y  wou ld  no t  see anyth ing  wrong.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    You wou ld  no t  okay,  you wou ld  no t  see 

anyth ing  proper.   So then I  was  jus t  go ing  back  to  th is  

change r igh t  i t  comes f rom Ms Hendr icks  wh i le  you s t i l l  a t  

the  Board  o f  SAAT but  then when you leave i t  comes  

d i rec t l y  f rom JM Av ia t ion  and I  was te l l ing  you tha t  in  Mr  

Ndzeku ’s  ev idence I  quer ied  w i th  h im why i f  i t  was h is  

investment  tha t  change needed to  take  p lace.    

I t  d id  no t  make sense to  me and I  ac tua l l y  sa id  to  10 

h im in  fa i rness to  h im i t  s ta r ts  to  look  l i ke  you a re  t ry ing  to  

h ide  who the  rea l  payer  i s  by  in te rpos ing  somebody e lse  

when i t  i s  ac tua l l y  h im,  i t  i s  h is  money and i t  i s  money  

owed to  h im by JM Av ia t ion  and he d id  no t  rea l l y  g i ve  much  

o f  an  answer  to  exp la in  tha t .    

I  want  to  pu t  to  you what  occu r red  to  me when I  was 

look ing  a t  tha t  change prepar ing  fo r  your  ev idence.   You 

see remember  r igh t  a t  the  beg inn ing  on Monday  I  had  

asked you about  you r  res ignat ion  on  the  22 n d  o f  August  

2016.   Do you remember  d i scuss ing  your  res ignat ion?        20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  you see tha t  res ignat ion  fa l l s  

d i rec t l y  be tween th is  change you see unt i l  you  res ign  on  

the  22 n d  o f  August  i t  h is  bank account  bu t  af ter the 22 

August  and you have resigned i t  is  JM Aviat ion paying into 
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the bank account.   Do you accept  that  d i fference? 

MS KWINANA:   I  would not  know the internal  arrangements 

that  they have this Ms Hendricks and Mr Ndzeku and 

therefore I  wi l l  not  want to comment as to whether the money 

came f rom.   From my books yes the two amounts came from 

Ms Hendricks.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes before you resigned.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And al l  of  the JM Aviat ion amounts come 

af ter you resigned,  correct? 10 

MS KWINANA:   Yes but  as I  sa id I  would not  know their  

internal  arrangements.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No.   I  accept  that .   I  accept  that  but  what 

st ruck me as qui te stark is that  Ms Ndzeku says he is  

invest ing in forex wi th you.   He says i t  is his investments.   

But  he uses his wi fe wi th the name Hendricks to send you 

the money – deposi t  the money in  Zano Spark before your  

res ign f rom SAAT.  And he then has no di ff icul ty using JM 

Aviat ion af ter  you resigned f rom SAAT.   And that  coincidence 

indicated to me and that  is why I  put  i t  to you that  the 20 

concern about why he would use Hendricks before you lef t  

might  be l inked to  the fact  that  no-one would then whi le you 

were there be able to l ink the payment to JM Aviat ion and 

that  you were f ree af ter you lef t  SAAT to get  them di rect ly 

f rom JM Aviat ion.   Was that  what was going on Ms Kwinana? 
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MS KWINANA:   Chair  you said we cannot  raise quest ions 

but  I  am think ing f rom the top of  my head that  i f  that  was the 

case – i f  Mr Ndzeku wanted to hide that  would he not  

cont inue to hide i t  under Ms Hendr icks or had they al ready 

divorced when – when now JM Aviat ion di rect ly  pay me.  

Because real ly  i f  he wanted to  h ide i t  he could also have 

cont inued to hide i t  and use Mr Hendricks that  is basical ly  

Ms Hendricks basical ly that  is what  I  am thinking.   But  now 

why would he change because now Ms Hendricks is the wi fe  

and therefore there is nothing to h ide in her being the wi fe.   10 

So what I  am saying is i f  he wanted to hide anything I  would  

th ink that  he could have cont inued as Ms Hendricks i f  Ms 

Hendricks ’ t ransact ions – in any way? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Ms – wel l  Ms Kwinana you – you said 

ear l ier on i f  I  understood you correct ly.   You raised the point  

that  you only received payment f rom JM Aviat ion af ter you 

had resigned,  is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  seems to me that  the point  you 

sought to make was there was nothing wrong for  you to 20 

receive money f rom JM Aviat ion af ter you had resigned.   Is i t  

not  – is that  not  the posi t ion?  Is that  not  the point  you 

wanted to make? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  even – even before I  resigned there 

was noth ing wrong.   There would be nothing wrong in me 
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receiving the money f rom JM Aviat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   The reason being that  there is nothing in the 

SAA Pol icy and a lso even in government that  I  do business 

wi th there is  nothing wrong that  says you cannot  do 

business.   What i t  says is that  disclose and therefore had I  

stayed at  SAA I  would st i l l  do business wi th JM Aviat ion but  

disclose.  

CHAIRPERSON:  But  – but  then d isclose and take part  in  

decisions making – in decision making affect ing JM Aviat ion.  10 

MS KWINANA:   No.   What needs – needed to happen is i f  

the submission comes and i t  has JM Aviat ion … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Would not  take part  in a decision making is 

i t  not? 

MS KWINANA:   This is how i t  happens Chai r.   When I  see a 

company that  I  am doing business wi th that  I  need to make a 

decision I  know you wi l l  come to keep… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do not  worry about what she wi l l  come to.  

MS KWINANA:   I  – I  know you wi l l  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  deal  wi th i t  when i t  comes.  20 

MS KWINANA:   CWC and good. But  what happens Chair  

when I  see that  there is JM Aviat ion that  is go ing to be here 

and any other company that  I  am doing business wi th I  would 

disclose and say I  do business wi th th is company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then proceed to take part  in the – in  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 87 of 243 
 

deciding in a matter involving them or you then recuse 

yoursel f  – which one do you – would you do? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  a lso depends Chai r.   In th is – in  th is case 

– in the case of  –  can I  say make an example of  these three 

companies?  In the case of  JM Aviat ion where basical ly I  

know that  Mr Ndzeku is a di rector here and Mr Ndzeku is  

invest ing his money wi th Zano Spark the company that  I  am 

l inked to.  Then I  would recuse mysel f .   In the case of  me 

approving the audi t  fees of  Nkonki  and PwC doing business 

wi th them on a contract  by contract  basis which is  normal  10 

which I  am not  get t ing the money f rom Nkonki  and PwC but  I  

am get t ing money f rom PRASA; I  am get t ing money f rom 

Transnet;  I  am get t ing money f rom Postnet .   Then I  would 

not  recuse mysel f  because the decision to award us that  

tender is not  dependent on Nkonki  and PwC and i t  is a lso not 

dependent on me.  So I  do not  know Chai r  i f  th is  makes 

sense.  Because in the case of  PwC the monies that  were 

received were the monies f rom PRASA.  The monies that  we 

received f rom PwC – f rom Nkonki  were the monies f rom 

Transnet and therefore Chai r  there was no conf l ict  of  20 

interest .   And in  JM Aviat ion at  the t ime I  was not  doing 

business wi th JM Aviat ion.   And i f  I  was doing business wi th  

JM Aviat ion I  would have disclosed my interest .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you would not  have been ent i t led to  

take part  in any decision relat ing to  JM Aviat ion? 
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MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  Ms Kwinana the point  that  you keep 

emphasising is exact ly the one that  t roubles me because i t  is  

precisely because the f i rst  two payments as I  understand 

your vers ion did not  come di rect ly  f rom JM Aviat ion.   That 

you did not  have to make the disclosure,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Not  only that  but  as I  was saying again even 

i f  the monies were coming f rom JM Aviat ion I  have stated the 

two ci rcumstances where you disclose your interests – your  10 

conf l ict  of  interests.    

 The f i rst  d isclosure of  the conf l ict  of  interest  is the 

annual  disclosure.   The second disclosure and the annual  

disclosure we would get  – we d isc lose i t  towards the end – 

the year end.   That  is the f i rst  d isclosure.   The second 

disclosure is when you have to make any decisions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Ms Kwinana you may have annual  

disclosures and whatever disclosures the fact  of  the matter 

is i f  a matter comes before the board of  which you are a 

member that  involves certa in people or certa in ent i t ies which 20 

gives r ise to a conf l ict  of  interest  you cannot not  disclose 

that  there is th is conf l ict  of  interest  and you cannot take part  

in decision making involving that  s i tuat ion where you have 

conf l ict  of  interest ,  is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA:   That  is correct  Chair.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes so i t  does not  depend on the 

ci rcumstances.   Are you aware of  the provisions of  Sect ion 

75 of  the Companies Act? 

MS KWINANA:   What does i t  say? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  is about  di rectors and personal  f inancial  

interests and when they must  disclose and when they must  

recuse themselves.   Are you aware of  those provisions? 

MS KWINANA:   Whose personal  f inancial  interests? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No I  am asking are you aware of  the 10 

provisions of  Sect ion 75 of  the Companies Act? 

MS KWINANA:   Whose personal  f inancial  interests?  Whose 

personal  f inancial  interests?  Because… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on,  hang on,  hang on Ms Kwinana.  

Just  l isten careful ly to the quest ion.   Ms Hofmeyr is asking 

you whether you are aware of  Sect ion 75 of  The Companies 

Act  and you asked her what does i t  say.  She has now told 

you what i t  says.   Go back to the quest ion say yes I  am 

aware of  no I  am not  aware? 

MS KWINANA:   I  am aware.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay so… 

MS KWINANA:   But  Chai r  I  am aware but  I  do not  want you 

to say – in fact  I  want you to put  i t  in your mind Ms Hofmeyr.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No do not  deal  wi th what she has not  
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ra ised yet .  

MS KWINANA:   No I  am – no I  want Chair  I  want  to correct  

th is.   I  want  to put  i t  in her mind that  I  d id not  have a 

personal  interest  – I  d id not  have a personal  interest  in… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  she thought -   she said the Act  re lates 

to personal  f inances,  is that  r ight? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Personal  f inancial  interests yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Personal  f inances.  

MS KWINANA:   Personal  f inancial  benef i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Interest .  10 

MS KWINANA:   I  d id not  – personal  f inancial  interest  okay.   I  

d id not  have the personal  f inancial  interest .   What they are 

doing they are invest ing in forex t rading.   I  am invest ing for  

them. I  do not  have a personal  f inancial  interest .   I f  I  have 

the personal  f inancial  interest  I  wi l l  only  have the personal  

f inancial  interest  on matur ing of  when they say on this date I  

want my money based on the agreement then that  is when I  

am going to have a personal  – a f inancial  interest .   As I  am 

si t t ing here I  do not  have a personal  f inancial  interest  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No Ms Kwinana.  They are doing business 20 

wi th you.    

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is good for you.   You want thei r  

business.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Actual ly you would be happy i f  they gave 

you more business.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are going to si t  – you cannot see i t  

now and make a decision that  could disappoint  them 

because they might  not  give you more business in the future.   

They might  even take away the business that  is there.   They 

wi l l  not  – they do not  have to wai t  unt i l  matur i ty.   Right  there 

and then you have an interest  in them cont inu ing to give you 

business whi le you are faced wi th th is decision that  must  be 10 

taken about them.   

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.   But  remember that  Ms 

Hendricks… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So you do have an interest  because they 

are making an investment that  may resul t  in you get t ing 

money in due course and you want them to keep this  

business wi th – relat ionship wi th  you.    Actual ly you would 

be happy i f  they could give you more business.   So you have 

an interest .  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

MS KWINANA:   But  – yes Chai r  I  have – I  have an interest  

when they have put  the money in  my business.   But  for SAA 



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 92 of 243 
 

Technical  JM Aviat ion put  i t  money af ter I  lef t  SAA Technical .   

Let  us go back to Ms Hendricks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no let  us not  go back because we 

have heard… 

MS KWINANA:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have heard what  you say.  

MS KWINANA:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana I  – I  absolutely understand but  

you wi l l  correct  me i f  I  got  i t  wrong that  your version about 10 

why these payments are not  suspic ious at  al l  that  came f rom 

JM Aviat ion and Ms Hendricks is because you did not  benef i t  

f rom them, is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We have just  c lar i f ied wi th  the Chai r  that  

you did benef i t  in the sense that  you benef i t ted f rom their  

business and I  understand that  that  involves some 

remunerat ive consequence for you,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   That  is f ine let  us agree.   Let  us agree that  I  

benef i t ted.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .  

MS KWINANA:   But  when did I  start  to benef i t  and when was 

I  supposed to disc lose this interest? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No Ms Kwinana that  is why disclosure is a 

l i t t le bi t  of  a red herr ing you see.   The way that  br ibery and 



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 93 of 243 
 

corrupt ion somet imes takes place is i t  does not  have to 

precede the decis ion making.   That  might  be too obvious a 

way to design the scheme.  I t  does not  matter at  a l l  that  i t  

comes later.    

I f  the people who are engaging in the br ibes or the 

corrupt  act iv i ty devise a very clever scheme that  there are 

going to be benef i ts g iven by cont racts being awarded but  

they are going to  be qui te  carefu l  they are going to  be sure 

the money starts to f low only af ter –  wel l  through people that  

wi l l  not  make i t  obvious that  there is a connect ion and then 10 

later af ter you have lef t .    

That  does not  stop at  being part  of  a corrupt  scheme.   

The t iming does not  prevent  i t  being part  of  a  corrupt  

scheme.  So your consistent  emphasis about  the fact  that  the 

money only comes in at  a point  when you had al ready made 

decisions or  the money only comes in  f rom Ms Hendricks 

unt i l  you leave I  put  i t  to you is not  an answer i f  the 

overwhelming rest  of  the evidence indicates that  there was 

an arrangement that  was reached in order to inf luence your  

decision making at  SAAT.  Do you have a response to that? 20 

MS KWINANA:   Where is  th is overwhelming evidence?  Can 

I  have access to th is overwhelming evidence Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON:   She wi l l  point  i t  out  to you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  am going to take you through i t  now.   So 

your – your version previously has been you did not  benef i t .   
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Now you are accept ing some benef i t  and then you emphasise 

t ime.  And I  say there is a – there is evidence there that  

suggests that  there might  have been a scheme.   So I  want to  

put  a l l  of  that  evidence to you Ms Kwinana so that  you have 

an opportuni ty to respond.  

 The f i rst  is that  Ms Memela a person who I  do not  

understand you to have regarded in any way suspiciously 

unl ike Ms Sambo who you have been very clear before this  

commission was a pathological  l iar  in your view.   

 Ms Memela in an unguarded moment in an emai l  10 

communicat ion in 2017 referred to the fact  that  you amongst  

others t r ied to so l ic i t  a br ibe f rom AAR.  That  is a f i rs t  p iece 

of  ev idence that  suggests that  there were br ibes going on.  

MS KWINANA:   Sorry – sorry – can you start  again what is 

th is piece of  evidence?  Ms Sambo? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No i t  is Ms Memela in a whatsapp 

communicat ion wi th Ms Sambo referr ing to the fact  that  she 

had knowledge that  you were involved at  a point  in t ime 

seeking to sol ic i t  a br ibe f rom Cheryl  Jackson who is 

associated wi th AAR.  And I  add that  she is not  a person that  20 

you before this  commission has indicated should not  be 

t rusted or you res isted the conclusion that  she is a 

pathological  l iar.   So I  say that  is the f i rst  p iece of  ev idence.   

Do you have a response? 

MS KWINANA:   So your evidence is Ms Memela’s whatsapp.  
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Let  me just  hear you … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you want her to… 

MS KWINANA:   Correct  what is  the evidence there.   The 

evidence is Ms Memela’s – the evidence is Ms Memela’s  

whatsapp is i t  what  you are saying? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes but  I  cannot do i t  wi thout  your  answer 

because the quest ions are going to  fo l low depending on the 

answer.    So can I  have your response to that?? 

MS KWINANA:   Ms Memela’s whatsapp cannot  be the 

evidence I  d ispute that .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   Then you emphasise that  there was 

a genuine business re lat ionship between yoursel f  and Ms 

Ndzeku and Ms Hendricks,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   R ight .   That  business re lat ionship is  not  

supported by a single document that  you can produce to the 

commission.   And I  want to couple that  wi th the proposi t ion 

that  legi t imate business relat ionships generate documents.  

MS KWINANA:   Sorry Chai r.   Can you be slower I  am – I  am 

wri t ing.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sure.   Of  course.  

MS KWINANA:   Today I  do not  want to say I  do not  – I  would 

have forgot ten your quest ion.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Of  course.   So i t  is the business 

re lat ionship that  you say existed between yoursel f  and Mr 
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Ndzeku and Ms Hendricks has not  generated a single piece 

of  paper – a single document that  you can place before this  

commission.   And usual  genuine business relat ionships 

generate documents.   So I  put  i t  to  you that  the fact  that  you 

cannot br ing to  th is commission a document you were 

summons to produce these documents exact ly two months 

ago.   The 7 September 2020 and we si t  here today on the 7 

November 2020 and we have not  a single document 

evidencing what you say is a  genuine business relat ionship.   

And I  say on the probabi l i t ies that  indicates there is not  a  10 

genuine business relat ionship.   What is your response to 

that? 

MS KWINANA:   Much as I  d id not  submit  the documentat ion 

Chair  because of  the server.   I  would th ink that  your 

invest igators could have gone to [00:19:55]  and f ind out  what 

is there.   And secondly I  d id as I  said before submit  the 

documents to Mr Ndzeku – the statements – the annual  

statements to Mr Ndzeku.   So i t  is not  correct  to  say – of  

course i t  is correct  to say we did not  submit  the documents 

here but  the businesses that  we are doing does have the 20 

documents and Mr Ndzeku has also got  the documents.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Can I  te l l  you what the problem with that  

is? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We have establ ished that  the servers were 
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conf iscated in Apri l  of  2019.   On your version you generate 

annual  statements for each of  your  cl ients and provide them 

in January of  each year.   The conf iscat ion of  the server Ms 

Kwinana is not  a reason for you not  to be able to produce to 

th is commission your  January 2020 investment statements.   

What is your response to that? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  submit  the annual  statements on an 

annual  basis.   I  submit  the December statements and submit  

them in January that  is exact ly what I  do.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes so where are the January ones f rom 10 

this year?   Why did you not  respond to a summons – the 

consequence of  fa i lure to respond to i t  is that  you commit  a 

cr ime and let  me just  be very clear th is point  has been made 

repeatedly in correspondence with  your at torney where on 

each occasion there is an effort  to  avoid complying wi th the 

summons.   

 The f i rst  effort  was to take a service point  that  i t  had 

not  been properly  served.   When we produced the return of  

serv ice we then said we remind you again the law requires 

you ten days f rom service of  the summons to produce the 20 

documents or an aff idavi t .   And s ince then there has never  

been this  document produced.  I t  is  a legal  obl igat ion on you 

Ms Kwinana to do i t .   We have discovered through the 

evidence f rom Tuesday to today that  the servers were 

conf iscated in Apr i l  of  2019 and you have st i l l  not  produced 
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the annual  statement that  you say are created in January of  

every year.   We say that  that  is overwhelming evidence Ms 

Kwinana that  th is  is not  a legi t imate business rela t ionship 

because the just i f icat ions you give keep being pul led apart .  

 Where is the January 2020 annual  investment  

statement that  a summons issued by this commission 

requi red you to provide ten days af ter the 7 September th is 

year? 

MS KWINANA:   I  have got  the January statements Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes but  when you give i t  to us tomorrow 10 

you may have fabr icated i t .   That  is the problem.   Your 

evidence previously is that  you did not  have i t  and that  

precisely Ms Kwinana is the di ff icul ty.  

MS KWINANA:   I  said Chair  I  submit  the statements on an 

annual  basis and I  said the last  s tatement that  I  submit ted 

was January 2020. 

CHAIRPERSON:   The quest ion Ms Kwinana which Ms 

Hofmeyr has repeated probably more than three t imes is,  you 

were requi red by way of  a summons to produce i t  to the 

commission.   Al ready that  was -  –he summons was served on 20 

you in September.   Why d id you not  submit  i t  i f  indeed you 

had i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Chair  the statement – the statements I  have 

got  the statements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why did you not  submit  i t  in compl iance 
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wi th the summons i f  i t  existed? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  th is informat ion was requi red wi th a 

whole lot  of  other informat ion which basical ly went  missing 

l ike – were taken with the server.   So maybe… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Did i t  exist  or did i t  not  exist  in September 

this year and in October th is year – we are now in November.   

Did i t  exist  dur ing these two months? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why d id you not  then produce i t  to the 

commission? 10 

MS KWINANA:   The commission Chair  requested the whole 

lot  of  other informat ion which I  do not  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  you had this one why did you not  

produce this one? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chair  I  was thinking that  I  needed to 

produce the whole bunch of  the informat ion that  was 

requi red.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No Ms Kwinana that  cannot be – that  

cannot be.   That  cannot be t rue.   That  cannot be t rue.   I f  you 

get  a legal  document – a summons saying produce f ive 20 

documents to the commission – br ing f ive documents and 

you know that  you do not  have three – they do not  exist  but  

you have got  two you tel l  me that  you would not  come to the 

commission and say,  I  have only got  these two.  You would 

wi thhold these two because you do not  have the other  – the 
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three.   Cannot be t rue.  

MS KWINANA:   That  is an omission on my part  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  

MS KWINANA:   That  is an omission on my part .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  i t  is something so obvious Ms 

Kwinana i t   cannot be t rue.   What you – what anybody would 

do is to say commission I  wi l l  g ive you what I  have.   These – 

this is what I  have.   Anything else that  you wanted f rom me I  

do not  have.   That  is what any – everybody would do.   I t  

cannot be an omission.   You are being asked to pro – to  10 

br ing – to produce f ive documents.   You do not  have three – 

they do not  exist  anymore you have got  two.   You cannot si t  

back and say I  am not  going to  give the commission even 

these two that  I  have.   I t  would not  make sense would i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Now that  you say that  Chai r  sorry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ja the problem is on Tuesday your vers ion 

was that  you do not  have the January 2020 statements 

because they were taken by the server.   So Ms Kwinana we 

are going to  argue in due course that  you are a dishonest  

wi tness.   You are a wi tness who turns the facts each t ime 20 

they become di ff icul t  for you.    

 Ms Kwinana the next  b i t  of  evidence is that  your  

explanat ion for the way in which you were conduct ing this  

business to  t ry and get  a response to the fact  that  you have 

produced no documents under the summons rel ies on a 
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remarkable conf ident ia l i ty  pol icy that  you say exis ts in a 

business which i f  I  understand i t  correct ly means you could 

never emai l  your cl ients.   And I  want to put  i t  to you that  in 

2020 to be conduct ing an investment business involving 

forex t rading and having a conf ident ia l i ty pol icy in place that  

never al lows you to emai l  a cl ient  is nothing short  of  

preposterous.   What is your response to that? 

MS KWINANA:   Our pol ic ies – our pol icy Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  i f  I  could just  take a moment.   Oh 10 

yes.   One of  the last  th ings we did on Tuesday was we were 

looking at  not  only the 4.3 mi l l ion that  you got  f rom JM 

Aviat ion and Ms Hendricks but  also that  ext ra 800 and a bi t  

thousand and you gave us an explanat ion that  i t  came f rom 

Janipath a suppl ier  to SAAT because of  some qui te 

compl icated I  have to say.   I t  took me a whi le to fo l low i t  at  

the t ime but  I  th ink I  have got  i t  now.   

 The version is Janipath paid that  amount into Zano 

Spark because you had engaged Mr Kol is i ,  is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  And who was Mr Kol is i?  

MS KWINANA:    Was the lawyer.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   A lawyer.   How did you know him? 

MS KWINANA:   I  know h im f rom SAA. 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   Because Mr Kol is i  was one of  the 
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people that  SAA contracted to run Dr Dahwa’s disc ipl inary 

process,  is he not? 

MS KWINANA:   I  – I  do not  know which contract  did run Dr 

Dahwa because I  am sure that  was not  included as part  of  

the board.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   I t  was not  included in part  of  the 

board.   But  you at tended a meet ing wi th Mr Kol is i  in advance 

of  Dr Dahwa’s discipl inary hearing to discuss the hearing.   

Do you dispute that? 

MS KWINANA:   I  d ispute that .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay let  us get  the emai l .   Get  the emai l .   

Could we please hand up as – I  have to get  t rack on my 

exhibi ts.   Let  me hand them in f i rst  Chai r.   There are two 

documents so i f  I  can ask maybe Andrew would you mind 

helping me we wi l l  g ive to Ms Kwinana.  Andrew wi l l  g ive to 

Ms Kwinana.  I  just  need to make sure that  we give i t  the 

correct  exhibi t  number.   There are two documents Chai r.   

The f i rst  is an emai l  dated Fr iday,  4 March 2016.  You might  

see that .    

 And then the second document is a conf i rmat ion of  20 

acceptance of  the meet ing that  is  being referred to in the 

f i rst  emai l .   So i f  i t  could be entered as Exhibi t  DD 33(b).24,  

the emai l  of  4 March 2016?   

MS KWINANA :    Sorry,  DD? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    34(sic) (b).24.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  is the one or the one f rom Mr Peter.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Lester Peter.   Yes,  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The emai l  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  do not  have . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .dated 4 March 2016 . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . f rom Mr Lester Peter to Carol  

Tj inkeke(?) wi l l  be admit ted as Exhibi t  DD33(b).24.  

EMAIL FROM MR LESTER PETER IS ADMITTED AND 

MARKED AS EXHIBIT DD33(B).24 10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   I  just  want to clar i fy for  

Ms Kwinana.   I  th ink she was just  momentar i ly confused.   So 

i t  is not  in the bundle.    

MS KWINANA :    Oh.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is because I  have just  handed i t  up.   So 

the f i rst  one is DD33(b).24.   And then Chai r,  i f  we can make 

the second document which is  DD33(b).25?  And that  is the 

acceptance of  a meet ing invi tat ion dated 4 March 2016.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then the document report ing to come from 

Ms Yakhe Kwinana at  yakhe@kwinana.co.za dated 20 

4 March 2016 at  14:20 to Carol  Tj inkeke wi th the subject :   

Accepted consul tat ion wi th external  lawyers on . . . [ indist inct ]  

DC is admit ted as Exhibi t  DD33(b).25.  

DOCUMENT/EMAIL FROM MS YAKHE KWINANA DATED 

4 MARCH 2016 IS ADMITTED AND HANDED UP AS 
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EXHIBIT DD33(B).25 

ADV HOFMEYR :    So Ms Kwinana, what your . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    Chai r.   My apologies Chai r.   My hand was 

up.   I  just  wanted to point  out  two omissions.   The f i rst  one,  I  

have not  been given as the legal  representat ive the 

documents.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   O, I  am . . . [ indist inct ]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  can I  just  explain why Ms Mbanjwa 

. . . [ indist inct ]  . . . [ in tervenes]  [Part ies intervening each other – 

unclear]    10 

MS MBANJWA :    [ Indist inct ]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . .we have only two people in th is room. 

MS MBANJWA :    Yes . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    So have forgot ten to do the thi rd .   There 

you go.  

MS MBANJWA :    Yes.   And then the other di ff icul ty  I  have 

Chai r.   I  do not  know what your rul ing wi l l  be.   General ly,  

before the wi tness is asked on these documents,  we are 

supposed that  and conf ront  on them.   

 So i f  maybe we can be afforded an opportuni ty to take a 20 

look?  I  do not  know what. . .  when are we supposed to get  a  

break Chai r,  so that  these documents that  Ms Hofmeyr is 

admit t ing into evidence . . . [ indist inct ]  [d istort ion present ] .    

 I t  wi l l  not  be long.   We can take a look at  them and then 

the wi tness can be . . . [ indist inct ]  [d istort ion present ]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Obviously,  th is arose because there 

was a denial .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr,  what do you say to that  

request? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  the chal lenge. . .   I  am just  going to  

put  i t  on the table is.   We wi l l  argue in due course that  the 

weight  that  should be given to Ms Kwinana’s answer af ter 

she has adjourned to consul t  wi th her lawyer about the 

answer,  might  be of  less value.    10 

 I t  is not  an answer that  gives wi thout  that  consul tat ion.   I  

s imply place that  on record.   I  make no submission about 

whether that  should take place or not .   I f  Ms Kwinana would 

feel  more comfortable discussing this wi th her lawyer,  that  

should take place.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Mbanjwa, what do you say? 

MS MBANJWA :    Chai r,  can I  say something wi th al l  due 

respect?  I  must  object  to th is expectat ion that  Ms Hofmeyr 

has.   I t  is the expectat ion that  th is wi tness is not  ent i t led to 

proper consul tat ion.    20 

 I  do not  understand the rules of  the Commission to be 

l ike that  because every t ime we are reading,  ei ther a point  or 

we are explaining the r ight  the wi tness has,  i t  is as i f  we are 

doing the wrong thing.    

 And we, real ly,  are happy wi th the way the Chair  has 
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t reated us today and even Ms Hofmeyr.   We do not  want to  

add any al tercat ion as we normal ly do  [d istort ion present  – 

speaker not  c lear]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you see.   As far as possib le whi le  

the wi tness is be ing quest ioned,  i t  is preferable that  he or  

she should be able to just  answer quest ions.    

 I t  is di fferent  i f  there were consul ta t ions before because,  

obviously,  there would have been consul tat ions before the 

wi tness took the wi tness stand.    

 But  what Ms Hofmeyr is  saying about  what  she wi l l  10 

argue.   I t  may be i t  is something that  she wants to argue.    

 Do you insist  on consul t ing wi th  the wi tness or  are you 

happy to  see whether the wi tness has any di ff icul ty in 

answering? 

MS MBANJWA :    To be blunt  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja? 

MS MBANJWA :    Personal ly,  I  do real ly do not  care what 

Ms Hofmeyr wi l l  argue because even before th is wi tness 

came here,  before she had a chance to examine the wi tness,  

she argued that  she is a corrupt  person.    20 

 I  th ink we have al ready t raversed that .   So I  th ink i t  

would be . . . [ ind ist inct ]  of  me as a legal  representat ive at  th is 

late stage worry about what Ms Hofmeyr . . . [ indist inct ] .    

 With al l  due respect ,  she can go and argue whatever she 

wants to  argue.   As long as we get  the opportuni ty to look at  
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the documents.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MBANJWA :    [ Indist inct ]  [d istort ion present ]  that  opt ion 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Let  us take f ive minutes break for 

you to consul t  then.   And then we wi l l  resume.  

MS MBANJWA :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay we adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS FOR A SHORT BREAK :  

INQUIRY RESUMES: 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us proceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, before I  handed you these 

documents,  you had said that  you were not  aware that  

Mr Kol is i  was involved in the discipl inary process for 

Dr Dahwa.  Do you now accept  that  you did know that? 

MS KWINANA :    [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  you need to put  on your. . .  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  note that  I  was CC’d in th is  emai l .   I  

st i l l  do not  remember me having at tended the meet ing.   I ,  

however,  may have at tended the meet ing because I  was the 20 

person who lodge a complaint .   However,  consider ing that  I  

do not  remember where is th is meet ing,  I  would appreciate i f  

I  would have the minutes of  the meet ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    We do not  have those minutes.   We only 

have your invi tat ion.   Absolutely.   You accept  that  you got  
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the invi tat ion and Mr Kol is i  is also copies on i t ,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    I t  may. . .  I  may not  necessari ly have 

received the invi tat ion Chai r.   In many emai ls that  you have 

here,  most  of  them, would be received by Lana, my PA.   

 So i t  could happen that ,  a lso this one,  is the one when 

she looked at  my diary and accepted i t .    

 That  is why I  was saying,  I  can only conf i rm.  I  am not  

saying,  I  was not  there but  I  am saying I  do not  remember 

and therefore,  I  would be assisted by the minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you say to her that  she could do that ,  10 

she had the author i ty to do that?  That  i f  there was an 

invi tat ion for you,  she should look at  your diary and i f  i t  was 

open, she could go ahead and accept  wi thout  you having told 

her that  – inst ructed her to accept? 

MS KWINANA :    Most  of  the t imes she would do that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And that  is how the two of  you operated? 

MS KWINANA :    That  is how we operated.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Okay.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    So do you persis t  in your version that  you 

did not  know that  Mr Kol is i  was running the discipl inary for  20 

Dr Dahwa? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.   And the fact  that  you accepted a 

meet ing invi tat ion to go and consul t  wi th them the week 

before Dr Dahwa’s discipl inary process took place,  you st i l l  
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maintain you had knowledge that  Mr Kol is i  was involved in 

that  process? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry Ms Hofmeyr.   Would your PA, i f  

she accepted an invi tat ion in terms of  the arrangement that  

you say you had with her,  would not  she take the ear l iest  

opportuni ty thereaf ter to te l l  you about such an invi ta t ion and 

the fact  that  she had accepted i t  on your behal f?  

MS KWINANA :    She does that  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    She would do that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    You fai r ly said Ms Kwinana that  you were 

the person that  lodged the complaint  against  Dr Dahwa.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And are you aware that  a discipl inary 

process was run? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   And did you fol low up on that 20 

process? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.   Because you were very. . .   Let  me put  

i t  to you for  your comment.   When I  read that  

9 t h of  October 2015 emai l  that  you sent .   You asked for the 
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chair ’s  intervent ion because you took the issues very 

ser iously,  d id you not? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  And notwi thstanding that ,  are you 

saying,  you never  at  any point  fo l lowed up about  the process 

and what was happening wi th i t?  

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.  

MS KWINANA :    I  do not .   In fact ,  i t  is the same thing as the 

contracts.   We do not  fo l low up what  happened af ter we have 10 

approved.   Yes.   And therefore,  also,  when the discipl inary 

process takes place,  you do not  fo l low up what is the 

outcome of  the discipl inary process because the outcome of  

the discipl inary process,  how i t  went,  depends on the l ine 

manager of  that  person.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  when you. . .   You lodged the 

complaint .   You are,  therefore,  the complainant ,  I  would have 

expect  you to have an interest  because – in f inding out  what 

is going on wi th that  process because you would be feel ing – 20 

you would have been feel ing very st rongly that  th is  person 

should be discipl ined.    

 I f  one looks at  that  emai l  that  Ms Hofmeyr refers to,  you 

were feel ing very st rongly about  what you considered to be 

unacceptable conduct  on Dr Dahwa’s part .    



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 111 of 243 
 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   Af ter I  lodged a complaint  and 

lef t  i t  wi th the people who are supposed to at tend to i t ,  I  

real ly do not  see,  even in my off ice for instance.    

 I  rea l ly would not  see a need for me to fo l low up as to  

what happened.  Even though,  our  off ice was much smal ler  

but  st i l l ,  i t  is because I  do t rust  the process.    

 And therefore,  how the d iscipl inary process goes,  I  

real ly  – including the CCMA discipl inary process.   So I . . .  how 

they go,  I  real ly do not  fo l low up.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Except  Ms Kwinana, i f  that  is so.   Why 10 

would the Head of  Procurement at  the t ime, Lester Peter,  be 

invi t ing you to a meet ing the week before Dr Dahwa’s 

discipl inary was scheduled to start  to say the fol lowing:  

“As discussed,  the legal  representat ives of  SAA 

have agreed to meet the wi tnesses on the 

7t h of  March 2016.    

Kindly schedule an appointment invi t ing al l  copied 

hereto for ten a.m. 

The consul tat ions wi l l  be held at  the venue where 

the inqui ry would have been held on 20 

Monday/Tuesday. ”  

 I f  you had no involvement,  why would you be invi ted to  

th is meet ing? 

MS KWINANA :    This emai l  Chai r  is addressed to Carol  and I  

am only CC’d here in th is meet ing.   And I  have said,  maybe 
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the reason why I  would be invi ted – I  do not  know why I  was 

invi ted but  I  am saying Chai r,  maybe the reason why I  would 

be inv i ted is because I  am the one who lodged the complaint .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  i t  seems logical  to  me.  Actual ly,  i t  

seems strange not  to expect  that  the complainant  would be 

expected to consul t  wi th the lawyers who would conduct  

the. . .  who would represent  SAA.   

 So the approach you take which suggests that  you had 

no interest ,  seems strange to me for a complainant .   

Because I  would expect  that  the complainant  would be one 10 

of  the people that  the SAA lawyers would want to consul t  

wi th and take a statement f rom.   

 And that  in al l  probabi l i ty the complainant  might  be 

cal led to give evidence at  the discipl inary inqui ry.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  Chai r  I  would have an interest .   And 

maybe that  is the reason why I  was copied here but  however,  

Chai r.   You know much as I  would be very angry as I  was 

angry in the let ter,  for me I  know that  is basical ly not  

personal .    

 I  have stated my case and then the people should deal  20 

wi th. . .  the people who were supposed to deal  wi th i t ,  should 

deal  wi th i t .   And wi th me, i t  just  ends there.    

 So basica l ly,  af ter two weeks and three weeks,  I  would 

not  be as angry as I  was and want to f ind out  what real ly 

happened.  No,  that  is not  me Chai r.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  on Monday or Tuesday or  whichever  

day you gave evidence about th is,  you said you were 

indi fferent  to Dr Dahwa and I  th ink Ms Hofmeyr and certainly 

I  said the – your  emai l  where you were complaining about  

him did not  seem to ref lect  an indi fferent  at t i tude towards 

him.   

 I t  seemed to ref lect  a st rong negat ive feel ing towards 

him.  You now say you were angry.   Can I  accept  that  you 

accept  that  you were angry as a resul t  of  what you bel ieved 

he had done? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Let  me put  i t  in context  Chai r.   On Monday 

or  Tuesday,  I  sa id there wi l l  be di fferences between a senior  

and his or her jun ior and visa versa.   And those di fferences,  

i t  does not  mean that  they cannot be there.   They are bound 

to be there.   They are acceptable.    

 I  would think that  they are acceptable in any 

organisat ion.   There is no way that  two people wi l l  not  have 

di fferences but  that  does not  mean that  when I  raise my 

voice or when I  am angry at  that  point  in t ime, I  wi l l  a lways 

be angry.   I  wi l l  be angry af ter two hours.    20 

 So maybe the ind i fference or  I  was put t ing the 

indi fference in that  context  but  I  remember very wel l  that  I  

said there are bound to be di fferences between two people.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the suggest ion was that ,  as you 

wrote that  emai l ,  you must  have had very strong negat ive 
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feel ings towards Dr Dahwa.  That  was the point .   Not  two 

hours later,  not  three days later.   And as I  understood your 

evidence,  you were saying:   No,  that  is not  the posi t ion.   I  

was indi fferent .   That  was how I  understood your evidence.    

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  would not  say I  was indi fferent .   Of  

course,  I  was angry.   And as I  said,  i t  is normal.   You cannot  

love . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no.   I  do not  want you to go back.   

You said the point  qui te a few t imes.   But  I  th ink what,  now 

you say,  seems to me to be inconsistent  wi th what you said 10 

ei ther on Tuesday or Monday.    

 Because on Monday,  you maintained that  that  emai l  d id  

not  ref lect  that  you had st rong negat ive feel ings towards Dr 

Dahwa.   

 And I  had to go back to the emai l  and read i t  to you or at  

least  certain port ions of  i t  because I  could not  bel ieve that  

you would say that  you were indi f ferent  to him when you 

wrote that  emai l .   But  let  us move on.   Okay Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Ms Kwinana, there has 

been evidence,  which I  want to come to in  a moment Chai r,  20 

because I  neglected something – to do something late in  

Ms Myeni ’s evidence yesterday but  I  do just  need to ensure 

that  we enter i t  into the record.  

 But  what I  would just  want to understand f rom you 

Ms Kwinana is.   Were you at  any t ime during Dr Dahwa’s 
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d iscipl inary processes alerted to the fact  that  the Head of  

Employee Relat ions at  SAA at  the t ime had ser ious 

misgivings about  how that  process was being conducted?  

Did that  ever f i l ter  up to you? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.   Thank you.   Chai r,  my error  was,  

yesterday. . .   I  referenced th is in Ms Myeni ’s ev idence and I  

am not  going to take Ms Kwinana to i t  because Ms Myeni  is 

not  evidence that  she could have been aware of .    

 She was actual ly  ant ic ipated to conclude her evidence 10 

before Ms Myeni .   So please,  just  rest  assured,  we are not  

going to go there.    

 But  I ,  overnight  when I  was preparing,  I  real ised I  forgot  

then to ask you to enter that  aff idavi t  into the record.   So I  

wonder i f  we could just  do that  now for housekeeping 

purposes? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  let  us do i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Or i f  you wi l l . . .   I t  is not  even 

probably necessary for  you to have i t  in  f ront  of  you.   I t  is  

l i teral ly. . .   Wel l ,  you might  want  to see the date,  e t  cetera.   20 

Should I  hand i t  up? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is BD34(b).   I t  is actual ly Chair  an 

aff idavi t  prepared in response to your  request  af ter 

Dr Dahwa’s evidence.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Remember,  you raised the issue? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Wel l ,  how did – what happened with the 

discipl inary process? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Can you give me a fu l l  account? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And so this was prepared by the 

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    The head of  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . . the Head of  Employee Relat ions 

pursuant to that  request .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So I  just  want to be sure that  the record is 

complete.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  page 1719, which is under Tab 32.  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  should I  a lso go there? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, we l i teral ly just  doing this for  20 

record purposes.   I  am not  intending to take you to i t .    

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    1719 under Tab 32.   

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    So Chai r,  th is  is an aff idavi t  prepared by 
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Mr Louwrens Daniel  Erasmus and i t  is. . .   Sorry,  i t  is just  

somet imes di ff icul t  to f ind the end of  i t ,  because he actual ly 

cuts and pastes emai ls in the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  that  is what is confusing.   I  am trying 

to see the end of  the aff idavi t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  know, I  know.  H’m.  Apology.   Oh, there 

i t  is.   Sorry,  Chai r.   I t  is at  page 1793 and i t  is an aff idavi t  

deposed to on the 17t h of  February 2020.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay have you establ ished where i t  ends? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  1753.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    1753.   Okay al r ight .   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i f  th is could be entered as Exhib i t  

BD34(b).32? 

CHAIRPERSON :    34(b) point . . .?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    32.   Three,  two.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Three,  two.   The aff idavi t  of  

Mr Louwrens Daniel  Erasmus appearing at  – start ing at  page 

1719 of  Bundle BD34(b) is admit ted as Exhibi t  BD34(b).32.  

AFFIDAVIT OF MR LOUWRENS DANIEL ERASMUS IS 

ADMITTED AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT BD34(b).32 20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Ms Kwinana, whatever we in  

due course make of  the quest ion,  whether you were aware 

that  Mr Kol is i  was a serv ice provider to SAA at  the t ime.  He 

– the evidence of  Dr Dahwa previously is that  he d id run the 

discipl inary process  So as a matter  of  fact ,  he was a serv ice 
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provider to SAA at  the t ime.  And he was somebody wi th  

whom you were also t ransact ing through your business,  is 

that  not  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Mr Kol is i  was my cl ient  or is my cl ient .   And 

I  am transact ing wi th him.  And i t  fa l ls back Chair  to the 

processes.   I  never signed a single cont ract  that  involved 

Mr Kol is i .   There was not  a single contract  that  was brought 

before me for Mr Kol is i .   And therefore,  they would 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  board members do not  s ign contract ,  10 

is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA :    Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Board members do not  s ign cont ract ,  do 

they? 

MS KWINANA :    Even the approval  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS KWINANA :    I  never approved a single contract  

pertaining to Mr Kol is i .   I t  is also the same as Ms Nobaxa(?)  

company.   I  never  signed a single contract  of  Ms Nobaxa.     

CHAIRPERSON :    [ Indist inct ]   20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.   And in fact ,  i f ,  for instance,  in my 

business -  which I  would think that  i t  would be unfai r  i f  the 

Commission would say I  must  not  enter into business 

re lat ionships wi th people,  in th is case the example of  SAA.   

 I  must  not  enter  into a business relat ionship wi th  the 
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people I  know.  Because that  would mean that  I  would not  be 

enter ing into a business at  al l  because as an audi tor Chai r,  I  

audi t  a whole lot  of  companies when I  was in audi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS KWINANA :    I  audi ted . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay Ms Kwinana.   I  th ink we may be 

veering off  – you may be veering off  f rom Ms Hofmeyr ’s  

quest ion.   Ms Hofmeyr,  is that  st i l l  in l ine wi th your quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.   What I  was asking was,  whether 

Ms Kwinana accepted that  at  the t ime, she establ ished a 10 

business relat ionship wi th Mr Kol is i?  He was a serv ice 

provider to SAA.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  was just  al l  I  wanted to get  her  

response to.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So do not  worry about  what you 

think she may ask later.   Just  respond to that  quest ion.  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  these are the quest ions that  do not  

only need a yes or no but  I  need to explain.   I  wi l l  say 

. . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  start  by saying:   Yes,  I  d id or. . .  

MS KWINANA :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or no I  d id not .  

MS KWINANA :    I  knew and I  am saying Chai r,  I  was – I  

never saw a single approval  for Mr Kol is i  on my desk.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS KWINANA :    And therefore,  there would be no conf l ict .   

And I  am saying Chai r,  i f  I  am not  requi red to  do business 

wi th the people I  know, then that  is a problem.  I  have a 

problem with that .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  wai t  for her to indicate i f  she says 

there is a problem with the fact  that  you were in a business 

re lat ionship wi th Mr Kol is i .   And then you can deal  wi th that  

when i t  ar ises.  

MS KWINANA :    Thank you,  Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  we are at  the lunch break t ime.  We 

did take two breaks ear l ier but  we have not  taken a fu l l  

break.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And this is taking much longer than I  

ant ic ipated.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  no,  no.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So I  am anxious about being able to  

navigate how we take things forward.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   What is your. . .   Wel l ,  th ings are not  20 

moving as fast  as we al l  want .   What is your  est imate of  how 

much more t ime you need, given the hazards of  th is 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    About 45-minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is taking longer than you may est imate.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  45-minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    30,  maybe.  I t  is  just ,  i f  we could get  the 

answers wi thout  the ant ic ipat ion of  the next ,  i t  might  go 

quicker.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  not  make them stop . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    But ,  of  course,  any explanat ion that  we 

want to give,  must  be given.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Yes.   There are two or  maybe three 

possibi l i t ies.   One, we could cont inue unt i l  you are f in ished 10 

and then take a break then,  so that  when we come back i t  is 

re-examinat ion.    

 And another one is,  that  we could take a break now and 

then come back and you cont inue.   And within in that ,  we 

must  th ink about maybe a shorter break than an hour.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m, h’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What do you say? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  I  fa i l  to  take advantage of  the 

previous two breaks.   So I  would qui te – I  would benef i t  

great ly f rom a comfort  break now.   So for me, i t  would be 20 

bet ter i f  we could break now.  Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ms Mbanjwa, what do you say? 

MS MBANJWA :    To be honest  Chai r,  I  agree wi th  ei ther.   

That  was the reason I  was raising my hand.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  d id not  see your hand,  ja.  
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MS MBANJWA :    Ja-no.   Yes,  I  was just  rais ing i t  now.  What  

I  wanted to ask Chair  is,  because you had said you would 

give me an hour  to re-examine.   I  was only th ink ing that  

maybe I  do not  re-examine and we do not  . . . [ indist inct ]  

[d istort ion present  -speaker unclear]   I  just  give wri t ten 

submission of  the points which I  want you to take note of .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MBANJWA :    So i f  you are comfortable wi th that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  I  am comfortable.    

MS MBANJWA :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  wi l l  be comfortable.   In which case,  that  

would help.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  would indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  would help qui te a lot .   But  because 

you would l ike to  take a break now, I  th ink let  us take a 

break now.  But  maybe – is i t  f ine i f  we make i t  30-minutes 

or 45-minutes? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Absolutely,  absolute ly.   From my side, 

certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What,  30,  40,  45-minutes? 20 

MS MBANJWA :    [microphone on mute]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   What you say 30 or 45-minutes? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    30 would be adequate Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    30 . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Absolutely.  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 123 of 243 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay al r ight .   Let  us make i t  40 

because I  have to  t ravel .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is what I  was worr ied about.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    When I  said 30,  I  thought that  would be 

far too short .   So. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]   Okay al r ight .   Let  us make i t  40 

and that  wi l l  mean we go up to,  I  th ink,  ten to.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  resume at  ten to.   We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  do  no t  know what  happened  to  the  

reg i s t ra r  bu t  le t  us  ge t  go ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  we were  –  I  was about  to  move  

onto  a  new top i c ,  ac tua l l y,  and jus t  be fore  I  do  tha t ,  Ms 20 

Kwinana,  I  d id  no t  ca tch  per fec t l y,  you sa id  ea r l ie r  you had 

a  red  f i le  when I  was ask ing  you about  FICA and then you 

read out  to  me the  prov i s ion  f rom FICA.   I  d id  no t  ca tch  i t  

exact ly,  wou ld  you mind do ing  so  aga in ,  tha t  you sa id  

showed tha t  you were  no t  ac tua l l y  an  accountab le  
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ins t i tu t ion  under  FICA.  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  w i l l  read i t  as  fo l lows:  

“Ent i t ies  tha t  a re  regu la ted  by  F inanc ia l  Sector  

Conduct  Author i t y,  FSCA prev ious ly  known as 

F inanc ia l  Serv i ces  Board ,  insurance compan ies ,   

hedge funds managers ,  re t i rement  fund managers ,  

c red i t  ra t ings  compan ies ,  cap i ta l  marke t  compan ies  

and fo rex  brokers .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry,  so  we are  a t  c ross-purposes,  you 

are  no t  read ing  f rom the  FICA Act ,  a re  you?  10 

MS KWINANA:    What  does FICA Act  say?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  says  someth ing  d i f fe ren t ,  what  a re  you  

read ing  f rom? 

MS KWINANA:    I  am read ing  my notes  wh ich  says  en t i t ies  

tha t  a re  regu la ted  by  F inanc ia l  Secto r  Conduct  Author i t y,  

Ac t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    I f  I  am not  read ing  f rom FICA,  can you  

read the  en t i t ies  tha t  a re  regu la ted  by  F inanc ia l  Sector  

Conduct  Author i t y  Act  accord ing  to  what  you have.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  you see ,  Ms Kwinana,  what  i s  

impor tan t  i s  what  you unders tand,  r igh t?   I  understand you 

say to  say tha t  you had taken the  v iew in  your  Zanospark  

bus iness tha t  you  do not  need to  comply  w i th  FICA,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  
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MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  need to  have a  l i cence.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  i t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  mat te r.   We were  

ta lk ing  ear l ie r  about  FICA.   Remember,  I  d rew the  

d is t inc t ion .   I  sa id  to  you I  know tha t  you take  the  a t t i tude 

tha t  under  the  leg is la t ion  regu la ted  by  what  i s  now the  

FSCA and what  used to  be  the  FSB,  the  F inanc ia l  Serv i ces  

Board ,  you do no t  have to  have a  l i cence.  I  pu t  tha t  on  one 

s ide ,  I  sa id  FICA is  a  d i f fe ren t  Act .  

MS KWINANA:    Okay,  le t  me read,  I  have got  F ICA Act  

…[ in tervenes]  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  jus t  hang on a  moment  be fore  you 

read I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  pu t  my quest ion  aga in .   You see,  I  

was t roub led  by  your  ev idence th is  morn ing  because on 

Tuesday you to ld  us  tha t  you were  FICA compl ian t  and tha t  

you d id  ensure  tha t  your  c l ien ts  p rov ided you w i th  the  

c lass i c  know your  c l ien t ,  KYC documents .   That  i s  why I  

was su rpr i sed th is  morn ing  when you sa id  no ,  no ,  you do 

not  have to  be  FICA compl ian t ,  you are  jus t  adopt ing  a  so r t  

o f  best  bus iness prac t ice  and then you took me to  a 

prov is ion  o f  the  wrong Act .   So can you te l l  me now why  20 

you say you are  no t  requ i red  to  be  –  why you are  no t  

governed by  FICA on your  unders tand ing?  

MS KWINANA:    Le t  me read now.   I  have got  some notes  

on  FICA Act .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  you  read,  jus t  answer  the  
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quest ion .   Do you  say you do not  have to  comply  w i th  FICA 

in  your  bus iness or  do  you say …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:     I  do  no t  –  I  do  no t  have to  have a  l i cence,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  as  fa r  as  FICA i s  concerned,  do  

you know or  do  you not  know  whethe r  you must  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    We are  no t  in  te rms o f  F ICA …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wai t  un t i l  I  f in ished,  Ms Kwinana.   Wi th 

regard  to  FICA do you know whether  you are  supposed to  10 

comply  w i th  FICA or  do  you not  know? 

MS KWINANA:    Le t  me answer  i t  as  fo l lows,  Cha i r.   In  

f ron t  o f  me I  have got  a  l i s t  o f  accountab le  ins t i tu t ions  in  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  be fore  you go there ,  I  jus t  want  

your  unders tand ing ,  be fo re  you can te l l  me what  in fo rms 

your  unders tand ing .   I  jus t  want  your  unders tand ing .   I s  

your  unders tand ing  tha t  you are  supposed to  comply  w i th  

FICA in  your  bus iness o r  i s  your  unders tand ing  tha t  you  

are  no t  supposed  to?  20 

MS KWINANA:    I t  depends,  Cha i r,  what  compl iance  

means.   To  me,  when you say,  am I  supposed to  comply  

w i th  FICA or  say  know your  c l ien t ,  know your  c l ien t  wou ld 

be  to  have the  idea o f  my c l ien t ,  I  wou ld  have to  have – in  

fac t  I  have sa id  th is  be fore ,  I  wou ld  have to  have an idea  
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o f  my c l ien t  and …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay,  f rom what  you say,  i t  seems 

to  me tha t  you a re  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  say you know what  

FICA requ i res  and whether  i t s  requ i rements  app ly  to  your  

bus iness.   You have an idea o f  what  you th ink  you are  

supposed to  do  o r  what  you p re fer  to  do  bu t  whethe r  tha t  i s  

what  i s  requ i red  by  FICA or  no t ,  you do not  know,  i s  tha t  

r igh t .  

MS KWINANA:    I  know a  l i t t le  b i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You know a  l i t t le  b i t .  10 

MS KWINANA:    Le t  me te l l  you  what  I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Ms Hofmeyr,  maybe you can take  i t  

f rom there?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   You have not  been conduct ing  your  

bus iness in  a  way  tha t  i s  compl ian t  w i th  FICA,  have you? 

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  no t  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  can I  jus t  unders tand your  answer?   

You have been conduct ing  your  bus iness in  a  way  tha t  i s  

compl ian t  w i th  FICA.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.     20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You are  sure  about  tha t?   

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  d id  you rece ive  a t  any po in t  lega l  
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adv ice  about  wha t  FICA requ i res  o f  you?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  need any lega l  adv ice  in  respect  

o f  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not  need  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You d id  no t  ge t  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  in  o ther  words,  you d id  no t  seek o r  

rece ive  lega l  adv ice  about  what  FICA requ i res ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?   I s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  have been wr i t ing  exams,  FSCA 

exams,  I  do  no t  know how many t imes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t ,  Ms Kwinana,  jus t  l i s ten  to  the  

quest ion  and answer  the  quest ion .   Ms Hofmeyr  asked you 

whethe r  you rece ived a  lega l  adv i ce  about  wha t  FICA 

requ i res  and you  sa id  you do not  need i t .   Now tha t  i s  no t  

an  answer.   The quest ion  is  whether  you rece ived i t  o r  not  

and the  answer  w i l l  e i the r,  I  d id  no t  rece ive  i t  o r  I  d id  

rece ive  i t .  

MS KWINANA:    I  d id  no t  rece ive  i t ,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d id  no t  rece ive  the  lega l  adv ice ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  unders tand the  reason you gave is  

because you do not  requ i re  i t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MS KWINANA:    Sor ry?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You d id  no t  see the  need fo r  lega l  

adv ice .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes because  you yourse l f  have been 

ab le  to  de te rmine  …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    . . .what  the  requ i rements  o f  F ICA are ,  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   And aga in  you sa id  so  you do  

conduct  your  bus iness in  a  way tha t  i s  F ICA-compl ian t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t .   Exce l len t .   So i f  tha t  i s  so ,  why  

have you not  taken e f fo r ts  to  keep your  records  fo r  f i ve  

years  as  requ i red  by  FICA,  a l l  the  records  o f  you r  c l ien ts?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  the  i ssue o f  the  server  was  beyond  

my cont ro l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  i t  was no t ,  Ms Kwinana,  because 

your  ev idence on Tuesday  was  i t  was a  se rver  t ha t  was 20 

in i t ia l l y  cont rac ted  fo r  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes .   You then 

sa id  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  went  under.   Remember,  

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  i s  you r  fo rmer  company,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    H ’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Say yes p lease jus t  fo r  the  record?  
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MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i t  went  under,  there  was a  huge  

l iab i l i t y,  Zanospark  took over  the  serve r,  Zanospark  was 

work ing  on  cred i t  fo r  a  wh i le ,  you  sa id ,  and then you sa id  

Zanospark  d id  no t  have the  money to  make good the  

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes ’ debt  and tha t  i s  why  i t  was  

conf isca ted .   Do I  have your  ev idence cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  you see,  the  p rob lem wi th  tha t  i s  i f  

Zanospark  i s  requ i red  to  be  FICA-compl ian t  one o f  the  10 

ob l iga t ions under  FICA is  tha t  a l l  records  o f  the  bus iness  

need to  be  main ta ined fo r  f i ve  years  and so  you were 

lega l l y  ob l iged as  Zanospark  to  ensure  tha t  you pa id  tha t  

debt  and you kep t  tha t  in fo rmat ion  bu t  you e lec ted  not  to .   

That  i s  no t  in  compl iance w i th  FICA.   Do you have a  

response to  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Which  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  requ i red  f rom 

FICA tha t  when FICA comes and aud i t  us  I  w i l l  no t  have?  

Le t  me te l l  you ,  le t  me te l l  you ,  the  ID document ,  I  w i l l  

have tha t .   The proof  o f  res idence,  I  w i l l  have tha t  and,  20 

there fo re ,  i t  w i l l  no t  be  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  reconst ruc t  tha t  

in fo rmat ion  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  I  do  no t  have a  serve r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  why wou ld  you have i t  i f  a l l  o f  your  

documents  are  on  the  serve r  tha t  you cou ld  no t  p rov ide  to  

the  Commiss ion  bu t  there  i s  some documents  tha t  you w i l l  
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have?  

MS KWINANA:    I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  i t  w i l l  no t  be  a  p rob lem to  

reconst ruc t  them.   A lso ,  Cha i r,  i f  you  want  me to  

reconst ruc t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  the  leg is la t ion  says keep the  

records,  you say you do not  m ind not  keep ing  them 

because i f  and when they w i l l  be  requ i red  you w i l l  

reconst ruc t  them,  i s  tha t  compl iance w i th  the  leg i s la t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know in  te rms o f  compl iance but  

le t  us  a l so  aga in  look a t  p rac t i cab i l i t y  thereof .   The  serve r  10 

was conf isca ted ,  tha t  i s  one prac t icab i l i t y.   Even i f  I  

wanted to  keep them,  I  wou ld  no t  be  in  a pos i t ion  to  keep  

them but  I  w i l l  be  ab le  to  reconst ruc t  them.   What  happens,  

fo r  ins tance,  i f  the  house or  the  o f f i ce  bu rns  down and you 

d id  no t  have an  o f fs i te  backup,  then tha t  wou ld  a lso  be  

another  reason why the  in fo rmat ion  may not  be  kept  and 

there fo re ,  there  a re  reasons and,  in  fac t ,  even when FSCA 

wou ld  do  the  aud i t ,  tha t  wou ld  depend,  they wou ld  t rea t  the  

case on a  case by  case bas is ,  so  to  say and there fo re ,  

Cha i r,  I  sa id  tha t  I  do  no t  have the  documents  because my 20 

server  was conf i sca ted ,  the re  was no way tha t  I  wou ld  be  

in  a  pos i t ion  to  have those documents .   However,  I  wou ld  

be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  reconst ruc t  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  Ms Kwinana,  the  po in t  –  you keep 
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say ing  you were  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  have the  documents .   

The reason tha t  the  se rvers  were  conf isca ted  was fo r  non-

payment  o f  a  la rge  debt .   Zanospark  was us ing  the  serve r,  

Zanospark  made an e lec t ion  no t  to  pay tha t  debt  to  re ta in  

the  documents  tha t  the  law requ i red  Zanospark to  main ta in .   

Do you have a  response to  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  to  make  an e lec t ion ,  Cha i r,  bu t  

inab i l i t y  to  pay and serv ice  tha t  debt .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why cou ld  you not  take  some o f  the  

m i l l ions  tha t  a re  be ing  invested  in  your  company? 10 

MS KWINANA:    Those mi l l ions  a re  no t  m ine,  Cha i r,  they  

are  fo r  the  investors .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   Wel l ,  Ms Kwinana,  we have dea l t  

w i th  tha t  aspect  p rev ious ly.   Le t  us  go  to  the  S l ipknot  

agreement ,  Ms Kwinana.   You w i l l  remember  the  S l ipknot  

agreement?   That  i s  the  one entered in to  w i th  Ms Memela .   

Sor ry,  I  rea l i se  you have lo ts  o f  S l ipknot  agreements ,  I  on ly  

have one tha t  I  focused on and tha t  i s  the  S l ipknot  

agreement  tha t  you entered in to  w i th  Ms Memela ,  do  you  

reca l l  tha t?  20 

MS KWINANA:   Show me,  Cha i r,  where  is  i t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  tha t  you w i l l  need DD25A4 and  

i t  i s  page 370.  

MS KWINANA:   Sor ry,  DD? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    DD25A.  
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MS KWINANA:    Th is  i s  DD25A.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Page 370.  And  p lease fee l  f ree  jus t  to  

remind us  o f  i t .   I t  i s  no t  a  long document ,  i t  i s  372 to  374.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you reca l l  th is  agreement?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now th is  i s  an  agreement  wh ich  Ms  

Memela  tes t i f ied  had been dra f ted  by  Ms Mban jwa,  your  

lawyer  today.   Do  you conf i rm tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  cannot  conf i rm,  Cha i r,  she is  he re ,  she 10 

can conf i rm i f  she dra f ted  th i s  o r  no t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  she is  no t  the  w i tness.   So the  

quest ion  i s ,  do  you reca l l  tha t  Ms  Mban jwa was the  dra f te r  

o f  th is  agreement?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  do  no t  reca l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not .   And do you remember  when  

–  you see,  a t  t ransfe r  i t  ind ica tes  tha t  the  t ransfer  o f  the  

proper ty  –  so r ry,  th is  i s  a t  page 371,  c lause 3 .   Under  3  

there ,  Transfe r,  i t  says :  

“The t ransfer  o f  the  proper ty  sha l l  be  e f fec ted  by  20 

the  fo l low ing conveyancer. ”  

That  i s  a  re fe rence to  Ms Mban jwa ’s  f i rm,  i s  tha t  cor rec t? .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you bu t  you do not  reca l l  who  

dra f ted  th is ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you reca l l  i ts  conc lus ion  –  you see,  

what  was in te res t ing  is  i t  seems as though  i t  was 

conc luded and s igned,  i f  you  go to  page 373,  on  the  21  

Apr i l  2015.   Do you see tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Can you conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  your  

s ignature  fo r  se l l e r  on  tha t  page? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then i f  you go ove r  the  page  to  374  10 

i t  was s igned on  the  21  Apr i l  2015 and Ms Memela  has  

conf i rmed tha t  tha t  i s  her  s ignature  as  pu rchaser.   Do you  

see tha t?   

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now i t  was w i tnessed by  what  appears  

to  be  the  same s ignatu res ,  so  tha t  i s  why I  asked Ms 

Memela  about  how th i s  had come to  be  s igned and she  

ind ica ted  tha t  you s igned together  in  each  o ther ’s  

p resence.   Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes and she sa id  tha t  tha t  took p lace a t  

Ms Mban jwa ’s  o f f i ces .   Does tha t  he lp  re f resh your  

memory?  

MS KWINANA:    Aga in?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    She sa id  tha t  tha t  took p lace a t  Ms 
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Mban jwa ’s  o f f i ces .   Does tha t  he lp  re f resh your  memory?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not  know.   So you do reca l l  tha t  

you were  togethe r?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  you jus t  do  no t  remember  where  you 

were?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know where  were  we.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  unders tood.   A l r igh t .   Now th is  i s  

qu i te  an  impor tan t  ag reement  inso far  as  Ms Memela ’s  10 

exp lanat ion  fo r  the  R2.5  m i l l ion  tha t  was used in  par t  to  

purchase her  Bed fordv iew proper ty.   So can you jus t  maybe 

te l l  me what  happened between the  two o f  you in  re la t ion  

to  th is  agreement?   Why d id  she enter  in to  i t?   What  were  

your  d iscuss ions about  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    Th is  p roper ty,  Cha i r,  i s  a  fa rm  in  East  

London and we had been t ry ing  to  rezoned and i t  has  been 

tak ing  long fo r  us  to  be  rezoned,  i t  i s  8 .5  hectares .   We 

have been t ry ing  to  rezone i t  s ince  many years ,  I  th ink  

maybe s ince  2007 o r  so .   Yes.   And the  Buf fa lo  C i ty  20 

Mun ic ipa l i t y  has no t  pu t  the  se rv i ces  in  tha t  a rea ,  i t  i s  no t  

fa r  f rom the  a i rpo r t .   So the  Buf fa lo  C i ty  has been 

promis ing  to  pu t  in  serv ices  and  there fore  i t  has  been in  

the  process o f  rezon ing  fo r  a  long t ime and then  

…[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    That  wou ld  have been to  rezone  i t  and 

make i t  what?  

MS KWINANA:    Res ident ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P resent ly  what  i s  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  a  fa rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  agr icu l tu ra l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Agr icu l tu ra l ,  okay.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   So we dec ided tha t  we need  to  se l l  

i t  and in  fac t  we  d id  go  to  the  Buf fa lo  C i ty  to  t ry  to  ge t  10 

them to  se l l  i t ,  to  buy i t .   So  when  I  was ta lk ing  about  th is  

w i th  Ms Memela ,  she saw a  huge oppor tun i ty  and then we – 

I  to ld  her  tha t  we are  se l l ing  i t  to  –  we are  negot ia t ing  w i th  

Buf fa lo  C i ty  bu t  Buf fa lo  C i ty  i s  no t  coming to  the  par ty  and  

then she expressed an in te res t  in  i t  and i t  i s  fo r  th i s  reason  

tha t  we sa id  okay,  i f  you  want  to  buy i t  then you can buy i t  

a l though I  do  no t  know when the  zon ing  w i l l  be  f ina l i sed,  

when the  p roc lamat ion  is  go ing  to  happen and there fore ,  i t  

i s  fo r  th is  reason  tha t  we dec ided  tha t  she wanted  le t  me 

g ive  i t  a  t ry.   In  fac t  i t  i s  a  fa rm tha t  I  rea l l y  wanted  to  ge t  20 

r id  o f  i t .   We on ly  go t  the  ev i c t ion  no t ice  about  a  month  ago 

today.   So i t  shows how we have been s t rugg l ing  w i th  th is  

fa rm but  in  the  end we d id  ge t  the  ev ic t ion  –  f ina l  ev ic t ion  

no t ice  w i l l  be  awarded on the  25  November  th is  month .  

 So bas i ca l l y  th is  fa rm has been  hav ing  a  lo t  o f  
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cha l lenged now recent ly.   The reason why we have  got  the 

ev i c t ion  is  because the  i l l ega l  occupants  d id  occupy th i s  

fa rm.   So bas ica l l y  tha t  i s  why we  wanted i t  to  be  rezoned  

as  soon as  poss ib le  so  tha t  we can do someth ing  about  o r  

se l l  i t  as  soon as  poss ib le .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why d id  Ms Memela  want  to  buy an  

agr i cu l tu ra l  fa rm  in  East  London  tha t  was inhab i ted  by   

un lawfu l  occup ie rs?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  a t  the  t ime  i t  was not  inhab i ted  by  

un lawfu l  occup ie rs ,  tha t  i s  number  one.   Number  two,  she 10 

was look ing  a t  i t  when i t  i s  subsequent ly  p roc la imed .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  you mean  rezoned?  

MS KWINANA:    Rezoned up to  the  proc lamat ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  she was keen on i t ,  an t ic ipa t ing  i t s  

p roc lamat ion ,  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes and her  ev idence prev ious ly  was  

tha t  –  we l l ,  she  was p resented w i th  ev idence tha t  sa id  she  20 

d id  no t  have ava i lab le  to  her  2 .8  m i l l ion  desp i te  tha t  be ing  

the  purchase pr i ce .   Why d id  you ar r i ve  a t  th is  purchase 

pr ice?  D id  she share  w i th  you tha t  she d id  no t  have 2 .8  

m i l l ion  ava i lab le?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  she d id  no t  say  she does not  have the  
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2 .8  m i l l ion  ava i lab le .   However,  I  d id  ind ica te  to  her  the  

cha l lenges tha t  I  have and I  sa id  I  do  no t  have the  exact  

t imef rame as to  when is  the  rezon ing  go ing  to  be  f ina l i sed  

in  v iew o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  serv ices  are  no t  ye t  even there  

and there fo re ,  i t  may take  some t ime to  be  –  to  happen.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes bu t  what  then happens o f f  the  back  

o f  what  you have  descr ibed is  you  conc lude an agreement  

tha t  on  i t s  face  says tha t  she is  l iab le  to  pay you a  fu l l  2 .8 

m i l l ion  and makes no re ference to  th is  p roc lamat ion  be ing  

a  cond i t ion  o f  the  agreement .   Why was tha t  no t  pu t  in  the  10 

agreement?  

MS KWINANA:    We both  know tha t ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  

dependent  –  tha t  was dependent  no t  necessar i l y  on  the  

proc lamat ion  because the  o the r  th ing  tha t  she cou ld  do ,  

when she has money,  she cou ld  jus t  ge t  i t  t ransfer red  to  

her  even before  the  proc lamat ion  happens.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  tha t  i s  jus t  some independent  

unders tand ing  the  bo th  o f  you tha t  was not  recorded in  th is  

agreement ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why d id  you no t  seek to  p ro tec t  each o f  

your  r igh ts  under  the  agreement  because speak ing  fo r  

myse l f ,  read ing  th is ,  you cou ld  have tomorrow demanded 

2 .8  m i l l i on  f rom her  and she –  you cou ld  have fo rced he r  

and she wou ld  no t  have been ab le  to  res is t  because there  
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i s  no  cond i t ion  a t tached to  the  proc lamat ion .  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r,  we d id  no t  even see a  need fo r  

tha t  because she  knew exact ly  what  I  was se l l ing  and tha t  

i s  why bas ica l l y  I  wou ld  a l so  no t  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  en force  

some cond i t ions .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  wou ld  i t  be  fa i r  to  descr ibe  i t  as  a  

fa i r l y  loose ar rangement?   

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  no t  tha t  fa i r l y  loose,  Cha i r,  th is  

agreement ,  we were  happy w i th  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You were  happy  w i th  i t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  does not  reco rd ,  can I  pu t  to  you,  what  

you have desc r ibed your  ac tua l  ag reement  to  be .  

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  does not  reco rd  in  i t s  te rms what  your  

ac tua l  ag reement ,  as  you have desc r ibed i t  to  me,  to  be .   

Do you accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r,  bu t  me and her  were  

happy w i th  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you communica te  your  requ i rements  20 

to  the  lawyer  who  dra f ted  th is  agreement?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.   Who dra f ted  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  even know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not  know? 
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MS KWINANA:    H ’m.   Maybe –  I  do  no t  know but  maybe  

Mhlambi  [ ind is t inc t  –dropp ing  vo ice ]  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  do  you have any reason to  d ispute  

Ms Memela ’s  ev idence tha t  Ms Mban jwa dra f ted  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d id  no t  d ispute  i t ,  I  sa id  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  indeed,  I  am jus t  check ing  i f  

there  i s  any reason you wou ld  have fo r  d ispu t ing  Ms 

Memela ’s  reco l lec t ion  tha t  Ms Mban jwa dra f ted  i t .  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  i n  Ms Memela ’s  ev idence 10 

recent ly  I  pu t  to  her  var ious fea tures  o f  th is  agreement  tha t  

I  sa id  based on the  ev idence tha t  we have seen and i t s  

te rms ind ica tes  tha t  th is  i s  no t  ac tua l l y  a  genu ine  

agreement ,  tha t  th is  was not  an  agreement  tha t  was  

entered in to  be tween you and her  on  the  21  Apr i l  2015 a t  

the  o f f i ces  o f  Ms  Mban jwa and I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  te l l  you  

what  those fea tu res  were  and then I  am go ing  to  ask  fo r  

your  input  on  a  few o the rs .   

 You see,  Ms Memela  is  marr ied  in -communi ty -o f -

p roper ty.   Ms Kwinana,  what  mar i ta l  reg ime app l ies  to  your  20 

marr i age?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  ra the r  no t  d isc lose  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    H ’m  Are  you aware  tha t  peop le  marr i ed  

in -communi ty -o f -p roper ty  requ i re  the  wr i t ten  consent  o f  

the i r  spouse to  en ter  in to  any t ransact ion  o f  th is  na ture?  
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MS KWINANA:    No,  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r,  there  

was rea l l y  no  need fo r  me to  go  and check tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    There  was not .   So i f  you  are  mar r ied  in -

communi ty -o f -p roper t y  w i th  your  husband,  have you eve r  

purchased proper ty  w i th  h im? 

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry,  what  i s  your  quest ion?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Have you ever  purchased proper ty  w i th  

your  husband?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  I  d id .   And I  a lso  –  I  d id  purchase a  

proper ty  w i th  my  husband,  I  a lso  d id  purchase a  proper ty  10 

a lone.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  am in te res ted  in  the  one w i th  your  

husband.   D id  bo th  o f  you consent  to  the  agreement?  

MS KWINANA:    What  does tha t  mean?  To say we agree?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    In  wr i t ing  you say you agree,  yes ,  

because i t  a f fec ts  your  jo in t  es ta te  i f  you  are  mar r ied  in -

communi ty -o f -p roper ty.  

MS KWINANA:    Somet imes I  wou ld  pu rchase a  p roper ty  

w i th  my husband  and then he g ives  me the  au thor i t y  to  

s ign  and there fo re  I  wou ld  s ign  …[ in tervenes]  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  as  long as  there  is  

a  wr i t ten  recorda l  o f  h is  consent  to  g ive  you author i t y  to  

s ign .   So have you a lways had tha t  f rom h im? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  somet imes I  s ign  w i thout  the  

au thor i t y.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    When you a re  buy ing  a  proper ty  w i th  

h im?  

MS KWINANA:    Oh yes,  i t  does happen.  

ADV HOFMEYR:     I t  does.   So when you were  pu t t ing  th i s  

agreement  together  d id  no  one,  the  lawyer,  we have now 

estab l i shed you cannot  d ispute  tha t  i t  was Ms Mban jwa.   

D id  Ms Mban jwa ever  enqu i re  as  to  Ms Memela ’s  p roper ty  

reg ime because i t  i s  a  requ i remen t  tha t  i f  she  was marr i ed  

in -communi ty -o f -p roper ty  tha t  she do so  w i th  her  

…[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You mean mar i ta l  –  you sa id  p roper ty  

reg ime,  I  th ink .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mar i ta l  reg ime.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Mar i ta l  reg ime,  indeed.   D id  –  was any 

enqu i ry  made o f  Ms Memela  about  her  mar i ta l  reg ime? 

MS KWINANA:    By  whom? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    By  the  lawyer  Ms Mban jwa who  dra f ted  

th is  agreement .   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  wou ld  no t  know.   Ms Mban jwa can  20 

answer  fo r  herse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    She is  no t  on  the  s tand today so  tha t  I  

why I  am ask ing  the  quest ions.  

MS KWINANA:    So  no,  I  wou ld  no t  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You wou ld  no t  know.  
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MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  no t  know,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  as  the  se l le r  in  a  genu ine  ag reement  

do  you accept  tha t  i f  your  purchaser  i s  somebody who 

requ i res  someone e lse ’s  consent  fo r  tha t  agreement  you  

wou ld  want  to  be  sure  tha t  tha t  consent  was obta ined?  

MS KWINANA:    You know,  tha t  is  very  d i f f i cu l t  for  me to  

answer  th is  because in  my case where  I  am s i t t ing  here ,  I  

s ign  j us t  about  every th ing  and my husband s igns j us t  about  

every th ing  as  long as  we have ag reed tha t  I  w i l l  s ign  and 

he is  go ing  to  s ign  and he does  not  have to  wr i te  tha t  10 

anywhere  tha t  he  is  g iv ing  me tha t  au thor i t y.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  I  unders tand tha t  bu t  I  am ta lk ing  

about  a  s i tua t ion  no t  where  you a re  the  purchasers .   Here  

you are  the  se l le r  th rough S l ipknot ,  you r  company,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  works  ou t  the  same,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  le t  me exp la in  to  you why I  say  

to  you i t  i s  d i f fe ren t .   You are  se l l ing  th is  th rough a  

company,  r igh t ,  S l ipknot ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You have got  a  purchaser  on  the  o the r   20 

end o f  the  t ransact ion  who is  buy ing  i t  herse l f  no t  th rough  

a  company.   That  was known to  you ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   Now in  o rder  fo r  you to  be  su re  

you have got  somebody on the  l ine  fo r  th is  agreement  on  
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the  o ther  s ide  wou ld  i t  no t  concern  you to  es tab l i sh  

whethe r  she does not  need the  consent  o f  her  spouse to  

en ter  in to  th is  ag reement  w i th  you? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.  

MS KWINANA:    I t  does not  concern  me a t  a l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ja .   And i f  you subsequent ly  d iscover  

tha t  the  law requ i res  her  to  have the  consent  o f  her  

husband and she d id  no t ,  wou ld  tha t  concern  you? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  do  no t  know about  tha t .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not  because then …[ in te rvenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Rea l ly,  i t  rea l l y  does not  concern  me as  

long as  we do the  pu rchase ag reement  and i t  happens and  

i t  goes th rough whethe r  the  person has got  au thor i t y  to  

s ign  and he can s ign  w i th  the  consent  o f  the  husband,  how 

are  they marr ied ,  tha t  i s  no t  fo r  me.   I  a lways use the  

conveyancers  to  do  tha t .   So i f  they  have done the  checks 

tha t  they need to  do ,  I  am happy w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS KWINANA:    So  i f  you  are  ask ing  me f rom here ,  s i t t ing 20 

here ,  tha t  has i t  ever  occu r red  to  me tha t  I  conf i rm  i f  the 

husband does agree w i th  tha t ,  rea l l y  I  never  d id  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  one th ing  to  say you never  d id  

tha t  bu t  I  am more  wor r ied  about  someth ing  e l se  tha t  you 

seem to  say,  tha t  you wou ld  no t  be  concerned to  f ind  ou t  
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whethe r  the  person has author i t y.   D id  I  unders tand you  

cor rec t l y?   I  unders tood you to  be  say ing  in  e f fec t  you do 

not  care  whether  the  person to  whom you are  se l l ing  the  

proper ty  o r  w i th  whom you are  en ter ing  in to  a  cont rac t  has  

au thor i t y  to  en ter  in to  tha t  cont rac t ,  d id  I  unders tand you  

cor rec t l y?  

MS KWINANA:    My assumpt ion ,  Cha i r,  when …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  i s  my  

unders tand ing  o f  your  ev idence cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  what  d id  you say?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am say ing ,  Cha i r,  i f  a  person comes and 

says I  want  to  buy your  p roper ty,  I  am buy ing  your  

p roper ty,  I  don ’ t  even –  i t  never  occur red  to  me tha t  a  

person wou ld  come and say I  want  to  buy th is  p roper ty,  

on ly  to  f ind  ou t  tha t  the  person does not  have author i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    And in  fac t ,  I  don ’ t  even remember  a  

person ask ing  me i f  I  have autho r i t y  to  s ign  as  a  buyer  o r  

as  a  se l le r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  tha t  i s  where  I  am concerned,  

because you seem to  be  convey ing  the  message tha t ,  to  

you,  i t ’s  no t  someth ing  you bother  about ,  whether  the 

person who ’s  buy ing  your  p roper ty  has au thor i t y  o r  no t  to  

en ter  in to  tha t  cont rac t ,  am I  m isunders tand ing  what  your  
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a t t i tude is?  

MS KWINANA:    You are  m isunders tand ing  me Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS KWINANA:    Aga in…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Don ’ t  go  on  to  exp la in  because you have  

exp la ined.  Le t  me ask another  quest ion .  I f  you  are  se l l ing  

proper ty  to  somebody wou ld  i t  be  one o f  your  i ssues tha t  

you wou ld  want  to  sa t is f y  you rse l f  about  tha t  the  person 

does have author i t y  to  en ter  in to  tha t  sa le  agreement?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  fo r  me Cha i rperson,  as  an  ind iv idua l .   10 

When I  buy or  se l l  in  p roper ty  there  are  peop le  invo lved in  

do ing  tha t .   There  is  an  Esta te  Agent ,  there  is  a  

Conveyancer  and,  in  fac t ,  the  process,  the  reg is t ra t ion  

process up  to  the  deeds o f f i ce  wou ld  have to  make su re  

tha t  the  pe rson has got  au thor i t y  t o  s ign  and there fore ,  fo r  

me,  in  my pos i t ion ,  tha t  wou ld  no t  concern  me because I  

know tha t  –  espec ia l l y  in  tha t  a rea  we ’ l l  be  ab le  to  make  

sure  tha t ,  tha t  happens.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t ’s  one th ing  to  say,  I  wou ld  be  

concerned whether  o r  no t  a  person has autho r i t y  bu t  I ’d  20 

leave i t  to  somebody e lse ,  the  Conveyancer  to  check 

whethe r  tha t  i s  done and i f  the  Conveyancer  were  to  go 

ahead w i thout  check ing  I ’d  be  upset  w i th  the  Conveyancer.   

So,  i s  tha t  your  pos i t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  tha t  i s  i t  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  au thor i t y  i s  someth ing  you ’d  be  

concerned abou t ,  bu t  you wou ld  leave i t  to  the  

Conveyancer  to  check whether  tha t ’s  in  p lace?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And in  th is  case we ’ve  conf i rmed tha t  

the  Conveyancer  was your  lawyer,  today,  Ms Mban jwa,  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    You ’ve  conf i rmed tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No ac tua l l y,  tha t  par t ,  the  Conveyancer  10 

is  in  the…[ in tervenes] .  

MS KWINANA:    Oh yes,  our  conveyanc ing  is  done by  her.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  you were ,  as  a  consequence,  

sa t is f ied  to  t rus t  Ms Mban jwa w i th  do ing  a l l  o f  these  

checks,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so ,  tha t  was the  f i r s t  fea ture  tha t  I  

pu t  to  Ms Memela  and I  wanted to  have your  s ide  o f  the  

s to ry  because  you ’ re  the  o ther  contac t ing  par t y.   The  

second fea tu re  i s  tha t…[ in te rvenes ] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe befo re  you go to  the  second  

fea ture ,  Ms Hofmeyr,  Ms Kwinana I  wou ld  be  concerned i f  

you wou ld  go  to  the  ex ten t  o f  s ign ing  the  ag reement  

w i thout  knowing whethe r  the  person has author i t y  because 

i f  you s ign  the  cont rac t  –  once you have s igned the  
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con t rac t ,  today,  maybe,  I  mean th is  agreement  tha t  you  

s igned d idn ’ t  even have the  t ime w i th in  wh ich  the  purchase  

pr ice  had to  be  pa id ,  i f  I  remember  co r rec t l y.   I f  you  have  

s igned th is  agreement  and somebody who had heard  about  

you se l l ing  proper ty  comes up tomorrow who wants  to  buy  

i t ,  you  wou ldn ’ t  be  ab le  to  se l l  i t  to  tha t  person even i f  that  

person sa id ,  I ’ ve  go t  cash I  don ’ t  have to  app ly  fo r  a  bond  

I ’ ve  go t  cash r igh t  now,  I  l i ke  your  p roper ty,  I  want  to  buy  

i t ,  you  wou ldn ’ t  be  ab le  to  se l l  i t  to  tha t  person because  

you now,  have s igned an agreement  w i th  the  person tha t  10 

you have s igned  w i th  and you don ’ t  know i f  they ’ve  go t  

au thor i t y.  La ter  on ,  i f  i t  tu rns  ou t  tha t  the  person doesn ’ t  

have author i t y  you may have los t  a  good oppor tun i ty  to  se l l  

the  proper ty.  So,  you don ’ t  wan t  tha t  to  happen when  

you ’ re  se l l ing  proper ty,  you want  to  make sure  tha t  i f  you 

conc lude a  sa le  agreement  w i th  a  person,  a t  leas t  th ings 

such as  those,  a re  taken care  o f  because you don ’ t  want  a  

month ,  two months  down the  l ine ,  th ree  months  down the  

l ine  to  f ind  tha t  there ’s  a  p rob lem because th i s  person 

doesn ’ t  have au thor i t y,  doesn ’ t  have author i t y  f rom the  20 

husband or  w i fe  and in  the  meant ime you have los t  buyers  

who d idn ’ t  have any prob lem who  cou ld  have bought  the 

proper ty  and the  cash wou ld  have been in  your  bank 

account .   So,  i t  makes sense to  me,  tha t  by  the  t ime you 

s ign  you shou ld   want  to ,  have sa t is f ied  yourse l f  because 
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you  don ’ t  want  th is  t ype o f  s i tua t ion  tha t  we ’ re  ta lk ing  

about ,  to  happen,  can you see tha t  reason ing? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   There  were  a lso  issues 

about  whether  Ms Memela  wou ld  have had access to ,  

ac tua l l y,  the  R2.8mi l l ion  requ i red  because the  prev ious 

month  her  bond had been dec l ined  fo r  ha l f  o f  tha t  and then 

there  was another  fea tures  wh ich  is  tha t  the  FICA 

document  tha t  Ms Mban jwa  obta ined  f rom record ing  Ms  10 

Memela ’s  in fo rmat ion  was on ly  done on the  records o f  tha t  

document  the  fo l low ing year.   Were  you invo lved  in  Ms 

Memela  prov id ing  the  FICA documenta t ion  to  Ms Mban jwa  

a t  a l l?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  wou ldn ’ t  know tha t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  wasn ’ t  someth ing  tha t  you dea l t  w i th  

when you met  together  to  conc lude  the  agreement  a t  a l l?  

MS KWINANA:    No Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  okay and then there ’s  anothe r  

fea ture  o f  th is  ag reement  tha t  I  was in te res ted  in ,  and tha t  20 

is  –  oh  sor ry  be fore  I  go  there ,  there  are  o ther  agreements  

tha t  S l ipknot  has en te red in to  to  se l l  p roper ty,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  does  i t  se l l  p roper t y  qu i te  
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regu lar l y?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  so ,  how many t imes?  

MS KWINANA:    Maybe once –  one proper ty  pe r  year.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    One per  year,  okay,  now there  was one  

o ther  S l ipknot  p roper ty  t ransact ion  tha t  we had records o f  

and tha t  i s  conta ined in  your  Bund le .   I f  you  go to  tha t  a t  

page –  i t ’s  DD33A a t  page 89,  DD33A a t  page 89.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’ ve  go t  the  Bund le  i t  says  on  the  sp ine  

Bund le  DD33 wi thout  the  A .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh,  tha t ’s  –  does i t  have page 89 in  i t  

Cha i r?  –  Oh Apo log ies ,  I  m igh t  be  add ing  in  –  I  am sor ry,  I  

ge t  confused between Ms Myen i ’s  Bund les  wh ich  are  34 ,  

no ,  no  there ’s  on ly  a  33 ,  tha t ’s  co r rec t ,  apo log ies  

everyone.   So,  i t ’s  jus t  33  and we need to  p ick  up  page 89.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no,  I  th ink  i t ’s  go t  a  page 89 – ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And Cha i r,  jus  to  check tha t ’s  a  

document  headed,  “Sa le  Agreement ”  a l r igh t  and as  I  

unders tand i t ,  Ms Mban jwa was a lso  the  Conveyancer  on  

th is  agreement ,  is  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  now th is  i s  a  2018 sa le  ag reement  

and what  I  jus t  want  to  h igh l igh t  to  you is ,  cer ta in l y  to  me,  

the  qu i te  s ta rk  d i f fe rences between th is  agreement ,  th is  

sa le  agreement  and the  one tha t  we ’ve  been look ing  a t ,  the 
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one w i th  Ms Memela .   Can I  ask ,  d id  th is  agreement  go  

th rough,  in  the  sense d id  the  p roper ty  t ransact ion  take  

p lace,  no th ing  fe l l  apar t  on  th is  ag reement?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  went  th rough?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  because you see,  p rev ious ly  

you sa id ,  no  the  issue o f  Ms Meme la  no t  hav ing  ready cash 

o f  R2.8mi l l ion  was a l r igh t  because  in  due course  she might  

be  ab le  to  app ly  fo r  a  bond and get  one,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:     

MS KWINANA:     

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  you see,  usua l l y  when tha t ’s  the  

case,  when the  purchases ob l iga t ions under   the 

agreement ,  permi t  her  to  ge t  a  bond tha t  w i l l  genera l l y  be 

ca te red fo r  in  a  suspense o f  cond i t ion  re la t ing  to  bond 

f inance r igh t  because o therwise  you ’ve  go t  no  pro tec t ion .   

The purchaser  i s  on  the  l ine  tomorrow fo r  the  R2.8mi l l ion  

un less  she ’s  a l lowed to  take  some t ime to  ge t  a  bond.   So,  20 

I  want  to  show you,  in  your  o ther  S l ipknot  ag reement  

p repared by  Ms Mban jwa,  what  tha t  wou ld  look l i ke  and you  

can go to  page 92 fo r  tha t .   You see a t  page 92,  c lause 3  i t  

says ,  

“Suspens ive  cond i t ions ,  th is  o f fe r  i s  sub ject  to  the 
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fo l low ing,  tha t  the  purchaser  ob ta ins  mor tgage bond 

f inance f rom a  recogn ised bank or  f inanc ia l  

ins t i tu t ion  in  the  amount  o f  R11 500 000”  

I t  says  R200 but  I  don ’ t  see a  two in  the  numbers  

bu t  anyway le t ’s  ca l l  i t  R11.5mi l l ion  and then i t  a lways  

s t ipu la tes  a  t ime fo r  the  very  reason tha t  the  Cha i r  has 

ind ica ted  to  you.   You ’ re  bound to  th is  person,  they are  

your  purchaser,  and you must  know how long you ’ re  bound  

to  them for  because you might  ge t  another  pu rchaser  

tomorrow who can bet te r  the  dea l ,  r igh t .   So,  tha t ’s  why,  10 

tha t  they can get  f inanc ing  and tha t  there ’s  a  t ime l im i t  i s  a  

key pro tec t ion  fo r  the  se l le r,  do  you accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  these are  two d i f fe ren t  p roper t ies  

and as  I  sa id ,  th is  p roper ty  d id  no t  have…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  Ms Kwinana,  the  quest ion  is  

whethe r  you accept  tha t  th is  way o f  do ing  th ings when you 

se l l  a  p roper t y  g i ve  the  se l le r  p ro tec t ion .   In  o ther  words i f  

the  person must  s t i l l  go  and ra ise  a  bond,  you say,  pu t  tha t  

as  a  suspens ive  cond i t ion ,   g ive  the  t ime w i th in  wh ich  they  

must  ob ta in  the  bond because once they fa i l  to  ob ta in  the  20 

bond w i th in  tha t  t ime,  you are  then f ree  to  look  fo r  

somebody e l se  or  to  se l l  the  p roper ty  to  somebody e lse ,  as  

opposed to  a  s i t ua t ion  where ,  you s imp ly  say,  th is  i s  the  

purchase pr ice  and you put  no  suspens ive  cond i t i on ,  you  

put  no  dead l ine  by  when the  p r ice  must  be  pa id ,  i t  doesn ’ t  
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p ro tec t  you because somebody e l se  cou ld  be  wan t ing  to  

buy the  proper ty,  maybe even,  fo r  a  h igher  p r i ce  and you 

are  wa i t ing  fo r  th is  pe rson,  I  don ’ t  know fo r  how long,  to  

pay because in  the  agreement  you d idn ’ t  even say,  the  

purchase p r ice  must  be  pa id  w i th in  a  month  or  w i th in  th ree  

months ,  you d idn ’ t  even say tha t ,  you jus t  le f t  every th ing  

open.   Do you agree tha t  th is  way o f  do ing  th is  i s  –  or  

p rov ides p ro tec t ion  to  the  se l le r?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  th is  way o f  do ing  th ings i s  

p rov id ing  pro tec t i on  to  the  se l le r,  however,  tha t  p roper t y  in  10 

East  London,  I  have s ta ted  the  cha l lenges tha t  i t  had s ince  

2007 and there fo re ,  Cha i r,  fo r  me to  have an agreement  o f  

sa le  on  tha t  p roper ty  was even be t te r  than not  hav ing  an  

agreement  o f  sa le  a t  a l l .   As  I  have been say ing  I  was 

t ry ing  to  se l l  i t  to  Buf fa lo  C i ty  and  so  on  and so  on  and a l l  

these cha l lenges  tha t  I  have s ta ted  here  and there fo re ,  

tha t  p roper ty  wou ld  no t  have the  s t r ingent  suspens ive  

cond i t ions  as  the  same as th i s  one.   Th is  one,  bas ica l l y,  

was ready to  go ,  i t  was occup ied ,  i t  had a  tenant ,  so  

every th ing  was f ine  w i th  regards to  th is  and there fore  we  20 

jus t  cannot  compare  th is  p roper t y  w i th  the  o ther  

one…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  you not  lose ou t ,  Ms Kwinana,  

wou ld  you not  lose ou t  on  the  bas is  o f  the  ag reement  tha t  

you had w i th  Ms Memela  i f  somebody e l se ,  a  few days o r  a  
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few weeks a f te r  you s igned the  agreement  sa id ,  I  ac tua l l y  

want  to  buy the  p roper ty,  I ’m  ready  w i th  cash?  

MS KWINANA:    I f  somebody e lse  wou ld  come wou ld  come 

Cha i r,  I  wou ld  go  to  Ms Memela  and ask  her  n ice ly  tha t ,  le t  

us  ge t  ou t  o f  tha t  agreement  as  he  d id  w i th  –  as  she d id  

w i th  me when she dec ided tha t  she wants  ou t  o f  tha t .   She 

came to  me and  sa id ,  th is  i s  no t  work ing  and the re fore  I  

need to  buy,  le t ’s  ge t  ou t  o f  tha t .  So,  bas ica l l y,  tha t ’s  

exact ly  what  I  wou ld  do  because she a lso  d id  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t ,  Ms Kwinana,  what  you ’ve  desc r ibed,  

I  have to  pu t  to  you,  i s  the  loosest  a r rangement  poss ib le  i t  

doesn ’ t  make sense to  me tha t  you took the  t ime  to  wr i te  

anyth ing  down then because what ’s  wr i t ten  down is  

mean ing less ,  she  cou ld  have chat ted  to  you because she  

wanted to  ge t  ou t ,  you cou ld  have  chat ted  to  her  because  

you wanted to  ge t  ou t ,  why s ign  the  agreement  then ,  i t  was 

wor th  no th ing .   I f  i t  was ac tua l l y,  tha t  you cou ld  jus t  chat  to  

each o ther  and get  ou t  o f  i t  a t  any  po in t .  

MS KWINANA:    You are  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  by  say ing ,  i t  was 20 

wor th  no th ing  because tha t  ag reement  fe l l  th rough  anyway 

and there fore  the re  was never  a  t ransact ion  tha t  took p lace 

then.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    So ,  maybe,  you  are  co r rec t  by  say ing  i t  
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was the  looses t  agreement  because a lso ,  when she  

cance l led  the  agreement  there  were  no  pena l t ies  because I  

wou ldn ’ t  know what  wou ld  be  the  pena l t ies  fo r  –  in  v iew o f  

the  cha l lenges tha t  I  s ta ted .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I ’m go ing  to  pu t  to  you,  in  due course ,  

tha t  i t  i s  c lear  tha t  there  was no need fo r  th is  to  be  en tered  

in to  recorded in  wr i t ing  in  Apr i l  o f  2015.   The need arose 

when Ms Meme la  faced d i f f i cu l t  quest ions f rom th is  

Commiss ion  abou t  her  rece ip t  o f  R2.5mi l l ion  and th is  who le  

s to ry  had to  be  const ruc ted  to  t ry  and jus t i f y  i t .  Le t  me put  10 

the  –  I ’m  go ing  to  come to  tha t  in  a  moment  bu t  in  fa i rness,  

I  jus t  fee l  I  mus t  te l l  you  where  we ’ re  go ing .  What  i s  a  

Domic i l ium  address,  Ms –  what ’s  your  unders tand ing  Ms  

Kwinana o f  a  Domic i l ium  address? 

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  know Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Because you have to  f i l l  i t  i n  when you 

conc lude agreements ,  have you p rev ious ly  been asked by  

lawyers  to  g ive  them Domic i l ium  addresses?  

MS KWINANA:    Maybe Cha i r,  they  wou ld  ask  i t  d i f fe ren t ly,  

bu t  I  don ’ t  know what  the  Domic i l ium address is .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  maybe –  have you had them ask  

you fo r  an  address a t  wh ich  you can rece ive  any 

documents  re la ted  to  the  agreement?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  okay so  you reca l l  tha t ,  so r ry,  I ’m  
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us ing  the   lega l  te rm and I  ac tua l l y  shou ldn ’ t  have i t ’s  a lso  

La t in ,  so  we  shou ld  never  dea l  w i th  tha t  bu t  

i t ’s…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  th ink  –  I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  Ms 

Kwinana wou ld  unders tand.  My  own unders tand ing  o f  

Char te red Accountants  i s  tha t  they have bus inesses,  they 

adv ise  bus inesses they he lp  bus inesses ente r  in to 

bus iness t ransac t ions,  cont rac ts  and so  and so .   So,  I  

wou ld  expect  tha t  Ms Kwinana,  be ing  a  Char te red 

Accountant ,  wou ld  know what  you ’ re  ta lk ing  about  i f  you  10 

ta lk  about  a  Domic i l ium  address.   So,  I ’m  –  ja  okay.  

MS KWINANA:    Excuse me Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS KWINANA:  In  fac t  when we were  go ing  to  s ta r t  th is  

morn ing ,  I  wanted to  p lead w i th  you Cha i r,  tha t  whenever  

you wanted to  ta lk  o r  comment  about  my incompetence you  

do not  ment ion  my pro fess ion ,  the  reason be ing  tha t  i f  the  

S ta te  Capture  Commiss ion  has to  be  the  graveyard  o f  my  

pro fess ion ,  o f  me ,  as  a  pro fess iona l  le t  i t  –  don ’ t  a l low i t  to  

be  the  graveyard  o f  the  who le  pro fess ion  and there fore 20 

Cha i r,  I  wou ld  apprec ia te  i t  when you p rove my 

incompetence,  you prove my incompetence fo r  me  on ly  as  

Yakhe Kwinana,  no t  my competence as  a  Char te red 

Accountant  o r  my competence  as  a  SAICA member,  

because the  e f fec t  tha t  i t  has  ou t  there ,  you may not  know,  
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Cha i r,  the  i n f luence tha t  you have in  tha t  cha i r.  You ’ve  go t  

a  ve ry  b ig  in f luence in  the  –  maybe,  I  wou ld  comfor tab l y  

say,  in  the  who le  wor ld  bu t  i f  you ,  when you want  to  show 

me tha t  I  am incompetent ,  you say Mrs  Kwinana as  a  

Char te red Accountant ,  ou t  there  you a re  k i l l i ng  the  

pro fess ion  o f  Char te red Accountant  and there fo re ,  Cha i r,  I  

p lead w i th  you tha t ,  i f  there  i s  someth ing  I  do  no t  know,  I  

w i l l  no t  know tha t  because I  am a  Char te red Accountant  I  

w i l l  no t  know tha t  because o f  my s tup id i t y  as  an  ind iv idua l .   

I  have got  fu l l  con f idence in  South  A f r i can Ins t i tu te  o f  10 

Char te red Accountants  and i f  I  am s i t t ing  here  as  a  

d isas ter  to  the  pro fess ion ,  p lease separa te  me f rom the  

pro fess ion  to  save the  pro fess ion ,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  Ms Kwinana,  we l l  I ’m  happy  tha t  i f  

you  fe l t  tha t  way  you have expressed tha t  bu t  the  fac t  o f  

the  mat te r  i s  tha t  we a l l  ge t  judged by  what  we are  

expected to  know,  okay.   There  are  cer ta in  th ings tha t  you  

and everyone e l se  expects  a  lawyer  to  know bu t  doesn ’ t  

expect  somebody  who ’s  no t  a  lawyer  to  know.   There  a re  

cer ta in  th ings tha t  you and o the r  peop le  expect  a  Judge to  20 

know but  no t  somebody who i s  no t  a  Judge.   So,  when you 

g ive  ev idence and you sa id  you ’ re  a  Char te red Accountant ,  

in  fac t  you might  f ind  tha t  the  reason why you may  – you  

were  appo in ted  to  the  Board  o f  SAA might  be  tha t  i t  was 

because you a re  a  Char te red Accountant ,  they  needed the  
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sk i l l s  and knowledge o f  somebody who ’s  a  Char te red 

Accountant  and  maybe i f  you were  no t  a  Char te red  

Accountant  they  wou ld  no t  have appo in ted  you .   They  

appo in ted  you because they wanted the  knowledge and 

exper ience and sk i l l s  tha t  come wi th  somebody who is  a 

Char te red Accountant  and when you de l ibe ra te  on  mat te rs  

as  a  Board  there  are  ce r ta in  mat te rs  where  they wou ld  say,  

Ms Kwinana you  w i l l  have to  gu ide  us  here  because you  

are  a  Char te red Accountant .  There  are  mat te rs  where ,  i f  

the  Board  de l ibe ra tes  upon,  they  w i l l  look  fo r  a  lawyer  10 

among the  Board  members  and say,  so  and so  you ’ l l  have  

to  gu ide  us  here  because you are  a  lawyer  so  –  bu t ,  

there fo re ,  they look a t  you r  pe r fo rmance as  a  Board  

member  among o ther  th ings,  aga ins t  the  background o f  the  

sk i l l s  and knowledge tha t  i s  expected o f  you by  v i r tue  o f  

your  p ro fess ion .   You unders tand,  i f  you  se rve  in  a  Board  

and you are  a ,  le t ’s  say  a  schoo l  P r inc ipa l ,  they  m ight  

expect  cer ta in  th ings f rom you and knowledge and  

exper ience but  they m ight  no t  have the  same expecta t ion ,  

they m ight  no t  expect  you to  gu ide  them on law they m ight  20 

no t  expect  you to  gu ide  them on mat te rs  tha t  a  Char te red 

Accountant  knows about ,  you unders tand tha t ,  so  tha t ’s  the  

contex t .   I  was  say ing  to  Ms Hofmeyr,  I ’m  under  the  

impress ion  tha t  Char te red Accountant ’s  gu ide  i s  necessary  

and so  on ,  tha t ’s  my unders tand ing  but  you might  say,  no ,  
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o ,  tha t ’s  no t  wha t  I ’ ve  been do ing  and there fore ,  maybe i f  

o thers  do  tha t ,  I ’ve  no t  been do ing  tha t ,  so  maybe  I  don ’ t  

have tha t  exper ience tha t  o thers m ight  have but  I ’m  s imp ly  

say ing ,  I ’m in fo rmed by  my unders tand ing  o f  par t  o f  what  

Char te red Accountants  do ,  what  I  unders tand them to  do ,  

so  tha t ’s  how i t  come in ,  you unders tand now? 

MS KWINANA:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You sa id  tha t  you had been asked,  when 

you ’ve  en tered  in to  these t ransact ions prev ious ly,  to  10 

prov ide  an  address a t  wh ich  you w i l l  rece ive  no t ices  under  

the  agreement ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  you see tha t ’s  qu i te  an  impor tan t  

th ing ,  and I  wonder  i f  th is  has  been exp la ined to  you,  you 

can te l l  me i f  i t  has  because not ices  under  an  agreement  

a re  somet imes very  impor tan t ,  l i ke  a  breach not ice ,  r igh t ,  

you le t  the  o ther  par ty  know tha t  they ’ ve  done someth ing  

tha t ’s  in  b reach and un less  they remedy i t ,  then you ’ re  ab le  

to  ge t  ou t  o f  the  cont rac t .   So,  do  you accept  tha t ,  be ing  20 

ab le  to  rece ive  the  no t ices  under  an  agreement ,  i s  an  

impor tan t  th ing?  

MS KWINANA:   I  rea l l y  never  thought  tha t  i t ’s  an  impor tan t  

th ing ,  thank you fo r  b r ing ing  tha t  to  my a t ten t ion .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  you wou ldn ’ t ,  un t i l  th is  moment ,  
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have been concerned to  ensure  i f  there ’s  an  agreement  you  

rea l l y  want  to  be  in  and the  o ther  par t y  th inks  you ’ re  in  

b reach o f  i t ,  you  wou ldn ’ t  want  to  have been a le r ted  to  tha t  

fac t  o r  –  do  you accept  you wou ld  want  to  know i f  the  o ther  

par t y  contended  you were  in  b reach so  tha t  you cou ld  

ad jus t  your  conduct  and then s tay  in  the  agreement?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  bu t  tha t  wou ld  no t  be  in  the  

fo rm o f  an  address,  I  wou ld  th ink  tha t ,  in  th is  case the  

emai l  wou ld  work .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  repeat  tha t?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana sa id  she thought ,  in  th is  

case,  I  th ink  w i th  a  b i t  o f  a  wry  smi le ,  tha t  an  ema i l  wou ld  

be  su f f i c ien t ,  bu t  you see,  Ms Kwinana…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On a  l igh te r  no te ,  Ms Kwinana,  you don ’ t  

th ink  tha t  d r iv ing  to  where  the  person is ,  to  de l i ver  i t  

ac tua l l y  wou ld  be  okay.  [ laughter ] .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry,  bu t  tha t  i s ,  ac tua l l y  the  po in t  

because emai l  i s  no t  adequate ,  o f ten ,  fo r  no t ices  under  an  

agreement .  That ’s  why,  spec i f i c  addresses are  g iven fo r  

de l i very  o f  the  no t ice ,  ac tua l l y  your  po in t  h igh l igh ts  how 20 

impor tan t  a  Domic i l ium  o r  an  address a t  wh ich  you ’ l l  

rece ive  no t ices  in  because i t ’s  wha t  c rea tes  the  ob l iga t ions  

be tween the  par t ies  bu t ,  Ms Kwinana,  I  unders tand you to  

say tha t  the  s ign i f i cance o f  i t ,  has  no t  p rev ious ly  been  

drawn to  your  a t ten t ion ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  when you  conc luded th is  S l ipknot  

agreement  w i th  Ms Memela ,  you had to  p rov ide  a  

Domic i l ium  address okay,  you ’ l l  see  tha t  a t  page 374,  have 

you got  i t  there?  

MS KWINANA:    In  DD33?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    In  DD –  oh  sor ry  no ,  we ’ re  back in  DD25 

where  you had the  S l ipknot  ag reement  a  moment  ago,  

DD25A.  

MS KWINANA:    On page 375?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    374 is  where  the  Domic i l ium  add ress is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  ac tua l l y  s ta r t s  a t  370.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  cor rec t  Cha i r  and then I ’m go ing  to  

the  las t  page where  the  Domic i l ium  add ress is .   So I  

unders tand your  ev idence to  be ,  a lbe i t  tha t  you m ight  no t  

have known i t  was ca l led  a  Domic i l ium  address,  you do 

have exper ience o f  be ing  asked to  p rov ide  an  address a t  

wh ich  you ’ l l  rece i ve  no t ices  under  an  agreement ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  th i s  address fo r  the  se l le r  wou ld  20 

have been prov ided by  you,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you gave the  address  o f  92 

Pres ident  Park ,  Midrand,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  tha t  was not  an  address f rom which  

S l ipknot ,  o r  you were  opera t ing  though,  in  Apr i l  2015,  was 

i t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  have to  check when I  -  when did 

we vacate 94 President  Park.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ja I  can tel l  you when i t  was i t  was in  

2013.  Does that  help you wi th your  memory? 

MS KWINANA:   I  am – I  am real ly not  sure Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  we have obta ined an aff idavi t  f rom the 

person to whom you sold 92 President  Park and he took 10 

occupat ion in 2013.  Do you dispute that ,  do you want me to 

take to his aff idavi t?  

MS KWINANA:   I  may not  dispute i t  but  i t  would be good i f  

you can take me there Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sure.   Right .   I  am running out  o f  space 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  just  have to f ind the correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   F i le.   Okay i t  is back in your f i le which is 20 

DD33 and you wi l l  f ind i t  under Tab 18 i t  is page 201.   This is 

an aff idavi t  Chai r  that  the commission obtained f rom a Mr 

Mark David Bates – apologies Chai r  I  see you are not  there 

yet .   I t  is an aff idavi t  f rom Mr Mark David Bates.   He is a 

member of  a part icular  fami ly t rust  and what he detai ls here 
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is that  that  fami ly t rust  purchased the property  at  92 

Presidents Park,  Midrand,  Gauteng.   He ind icates that  i t  was 

purchased in – th is is at  paragraph 4 Ms Kwinana on page 

201.   He says i t  was purchased on auct ion on the 27 

November 2012 for an amount of  6.160 mi l l ion and he says 

that  the previous owner was S l ip  Knot  Investments that  is 

your company.   And then he says on t ransfer in 2013 they 

vacated the property and we have moved onto the said 

property.   That  is  where I  get  that  f rom.  Does that  jog your  

memory? 10 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So Ms Kwinana that  is the – I  suspect… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  jogs your memory and you agree that  

you vacated the property in 2013? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r  for the fol low up quest ion.   

That  Ms Kwinana is the f ina l  feature that  I  am going to put  to  

you suggests that  th is agreement is not  a genuine one.   

Because the domici l l ium address that  is given is  not  an 20 

address at  which you would ever have been able to receive 

not ices under th is agreement.   You had sold i t  two years – 

three years previously.   Somebody else was in  the property.   

Do you have a response to that? 

MS KWINANA:   I  th ink Chair  i t  was because of  my not  
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knowing what I  – what is th is word domi? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Domici l l ium.  

MS KWINANA:   Domici l l ium yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No Ms Kwinana.   You knew that  you were 

giving your address in the agreement is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You knew i f  th is agreement was signed in 

2015 this was no longer your address so therefore you could 

not  have given this address 92 President  Park Midrand.   

Because you cannot te l l  me you did not  know what – where 10 

you l ived because you certainly  were not  l iv ing at  92 

President  Park anymore.  

MS KWINANA:   I  am sure Chair  that  was maybe an omission 

on my part  because that  address has been my address for  

the bet ter part  of  my profession.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No Ms Kwinana but  i t  cannot be.   You 

cannot in 2015 when you are required to put  the address 

where you l ive give an address where you l ived two or  three 

years before.   Because you know where you l ive.   In 2015 

you know where you l ive.   So i t  cannot be.  20 

MS KWINANA:   That  is why I  am saying Chair  maybe i t  was 

an omission on my part  for not  knowing what the meant.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No Ms Kwinana.  Please – you cannot two 

years later – two and a hal f  years later th ink that  you l ive 

where you l ived two years before and you lef t .  I t  cannot be.   
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Right  now you know where you l ive is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  you are asked go to give the 

address of  where you l ive you would give the address of  

where you l ive? 

MS KWINANA:   Maybe Chair  i f  they said – i f  they sa id in  

that  instead of  saying domici l l ium maybe i f  they said where 

do you l ive? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No Ms Kwinana with – wi th al l  due respect  

the great  chal lenge I  put  i t  to you wi th your answer is that  10 

there is  no world in which i f  th is agreement was genuine and 

in 2015 you are asked for the address at  which you are going 

to receive not ices you give an address that  you vacated two 

years previously.    

I  want  to put  i t  to you that  th is error is the type of  

error that  creeps in  when people fabr icate agreements and 

documents.   Because you have to keep so many bal ls in the 

ai r  – you have to keep so many things because you have to 

go back in t ime,  you have to recreate facts that  did not  

happen and these are the l i t t le indicators of  the error.    20 

I t  is akin to the error in the agreement between Mr 

Ndzeku and al legedly Ms Hlohlela that  was a l legedly 

concluded at  the end of  2015 because i t  refers to a clause 

and a dispute resolut ion mechanism that  did not  ex ist  at  the 

t ime.   
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This is the equivalent  in your agreement I  put  i t  to  

you because you just  do not  make this error when i t  is  

happening as a fact .   You make this error when you are 

si t t ing four years later.   The commission is invest igat ing 

matters.   I t  is pursuing corrupt ion and then you make an 

error l ike this.   What is your response to that? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  your – your  – your conclusion on this  

matter is very much incorrect .   This t ransact ion did not  go 

through f i rst ly and secondly why would I  fabr icate the 

address i f  I  knew how important  i t  is as I  now know how 10 

important  i t  is?  In fact  even my postal  address I  st i l l  use the 

postal  address that  I  was using when I  was – I  was at  92 

President  Park.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  that  is because you have not  changed 

the postal  address Ms Kwinana.  You have changed the 

res ident ia l  address.   That  is the di fference.    

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  no longer use that  postal  address but  

in fact  I  do not  have a postal  address now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MS KWINANA:   But  now – but  now i f  they say postal  address 20 

I  say PO Box 3949 hal fway house.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us leave out  the postal  address Ms 

Kwinana.  Here is  what has happened.  On your vers ion you 

signed this agreement in  2015 Apr i l  21 wi th Ms Memela 

where you were supposed to give your  address.   You gave 
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the address where you l ive two or  so years before and not  

where you l ive in  Apri l  2015.   Ms Hofmeyr says to you,  Ms 

Kwinana there is  no way of  explaining this  kind of  error  

because i f  you sign a document  today and you are requi red 

to put  in your address there is no way you can forget  where 

you l ive today.   Okay? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  you do this agreement today but 

want ing to put  i t  as an agreement that  was done f ive years 

ago that  is  when you might  make the mistake and th ink that  10 

f ive years ago you were l iv ing in th is address and i t  turns out  

you made a mistake.    

So i f  you signed this agreement in 2019 but  wanted i t  

to ref lect  that  i t  had been signed in 2015 you might  have 

thought in 2015 you were st i l l  l i v ing in – at  92 President  Park 

and that  is why you put  i t .   But  you cannot make that  mistake 

i f  you are signing the agreement today about where you l ive 

today.   You wi l l  answer that  and then I  wi l l  go to Ms 

Mbanjwa.  But  I  want  you to answer that  f i rst .    

What do you say to that?  That  is what Ms Hofmeyr is 20 

put t ing to you that  the only – the only explanat ion that  can 

be advanced for  th is is that  at  the t ime you signed this 

agreement i t  was not  on the date that  is given there and i t  

was – i t  must  have been much later and you had to t ry and 

remember where you l ived and you got  i t  wrong.    
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MS KWINANA:   Chair  in 2013 I  l ived where I  l ive now.  The 

only th ing that  changed is the off ice.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   Can – sorry can I  just  come in  there?   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  know Ms Mbanjwa wants to speak but  i t  is 

just  important .   You needed to give the address of  Sl ip Knot 

r ight ,  the business.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Where you were operat ing f rom.  So in 

respect  of  a l l  the Chairs quest ions albei t  that  the Chai r  was 10 

emphasising where you l ive i t  is where you would conduct ing 

your business.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Because you – as we have i t  we have gone 

back to google photographs I  assure you.   You were 

operat ing as Kwinana and Associates at  22 President  Park 

for a long per iod but  that  changed in 2013, correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  So the point  st i l l  remains.   I  is just  

that  i t ’s the business address.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes thank you.   Apologies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   One second.  Ms Mbanjwa.  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Thank you Cha i r  i t  has  been answered.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  has  been answered.  
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ADV MBANJ WA:   I  jus t  wanted to  po in t  ou t  tha t  i t  was … 

CHAIRPERSON:   The bus iness ja .   Okay.   The pr inc ip le  i s  

the  same.   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  i t  i s  the  bus iness bu t  the  pr inc ip le  

i s  the  same.   You  unders tand the  p r inc ip le?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   A re  you ab le  to  o f fe r  any 

exp lanat ion  as  to  how i f  th is  agreement  was s igned in  2015  

you cou ld  have g iven an address  fo r  the  bus iness where  

the  bus iness was  not  opera t ing  f rom? 

MS KWINANA:   As  I  sa id  Cha i r  I  am sure  i t  was omiss ion  10 

or  ignorance or  no t  knowing what  domic i l l i um means.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  then move to  

what  I  hope w i l l  be  the  las t  ma jo r  top ic  and then there  w i l l  

jus t  be  a  few l i t t le  po in ts .   Th is  i s  about  you r  ro le  in  SAA 

and the  aud i to rs  tha t  were  appo in ted .   You ant ic ipa ted  

ear l ie r  tha t  you thought  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke ly  go  there  and so  

I  am go ing  there .   Ms Kwinana you were  invo lved  in  the  

dec is ion  taken back in  2011 to  go  ou t  on  tender  fo r  the 

aud i to rs  fo r  SAA,  do  you remember  tha t?  20 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And tha t  was a  t ender  fo r  aud i to rs  to  be  

appo in ted  fo r  the  f inanc ia l  year  2011/2012,  do  you reca l l  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   No.   I  have seen the  –  the  hear ings o f  the 
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aud i to rs  and I  am a lmost  sure  tha t  there  is  no  way tha t  –  

fo r  such a  b ig  en t i t y.   In  fac t  even i f  i t  i s  a  sma l l  en t i t y  

there  is  no  way tha t  we wou ld  appo in t  an  aud i to r  fo r  one 

year.   The reason be ing  tha t  you  see SAA on i t s  own is  

compl ica ted .    

Even i f  you aud i t  fo r  f i ve  years  there  a re  s t i l l  new 

th ings tha t  you are  learn ing  and there fo re  tha t  i s  why most  

o f  the  t ime aud i to rs  a re  appo in ted  fo r  a  per iod  a  m in imum 

per iod  o f  th ree  years .    

So I  was surpr i sed to  f ind  ou t  tha t  the  cont rac t  10 

bas ica l l y  i s  say ing  one year.   I t  a lso  bo i l s  back to  what  I  

have been say ing  about  the  con t rac t  tha t  board  wou ld  

dec ide  Cha i r  and then the  cont rac t  i s  d rawn e lsewhere .    

And in  fac t  the  reason why I  remember  ve ry  we l l  

tha t  i t  was not  one year  i s  because we de l ibera ted  a  lo t  on  

t ransfer  o f  sk i l l  and how the  aud i to rs  shou ld  share  the  work  

go ing  fo rward .    

And in  fac t  we d id  say in  tha t  meet ing  o f  the  

de l ibe ra t ions w i th  the  aud i to rs  –  we d id  say tha t  f i rs t  year  

the  job  shou ld  be  shared on 50/50 bas is  and then  second 20 

year  on  a  s l id ing  sca le  un t i l  in  the  end Nkonk i  ge ts  100%.   

That  i s  bas i ca l l y  what  we sa id  and there fore  the  one year  

how d id  the  aud i to rs  ge t  the  cont rac t  o f  one year  i t  i s  jus t  

no t  poss ib le  espec ia l l y  i t  i s  no t  poss ib le  w i th  most  o f  the  

compan ies .    
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We know tha t  the  aud i to rs  do  ge t  annua l  renewal  

sub jec t  to  the i r  per fo rmance.   Annua l  renewal  a t  the  Annua l  

Genera l  Meet ing  bu t  fo r  SAA to i ssue out  a  tender  o f  one 

year  was a  b ig  m is take but  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i s  what  the 

board  dec ided because i t  i s  no t  p rac t ica l .    

Can you imag ine  the  aud i to rs  aud i t ing  SAA for  one 

year  and then the  fo l low ing year  and then there  needs to  

be  another  tender  p rocess wh ich  takes about  s ix  months  

and then the  o ther  new aud i to rs  come and lea rn  the  

bus iness.   The p rev ious aud i to rs  have not  even learn t  the  10 

bus iness so  I  th ink  tha t  was a  b ig  m is take.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You sa id  two th ings.   You sa id  i t  was a  

b ig  m is take and you sa id  i t  d id  no t  happen.   Which  is  i t?   I t  

cou ld  have happened and you cou ld  now rev iew i t  and say  

i t  was a  b ig  m is take or  you –  I  a lso  unders tood you to  say 

i t  d id  no t  happen.  What  i s  your  ev idence? 

MS KWINANA:   I  w i l l  no t  say  i t  d id  no t  happen  fo r  the  

reason tha t  I  d id  no t  see the  cont rac ts .   So i f  you  have the  

cont rac t  tha t  says one year  then tha t  means i t  d id  happen.   

But  de f in i te ly  tha t  cont rac t  d id  no t  re f lec t  the  d iscuss ions 20 

o f  the  board .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  see .   So your  –  you say the  board  –  the  

cont rac t  d i f fe red  then f rom what  the  board  had conc luded,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:   I  th ink  so .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   You were  on  the  aud i t  commi t tee  

a t  tha t  t ime 2011,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And you became the  cha i r  I  jus t  want  to  

check th is .   When was tha t ,  tha t  was sor t  o f  December  

2012,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   I  have i t  here .   Le t  me jus t  look  a t  my  

notes .   Wel l  can  you he lp  me when d id  you become the  

cha i r?   Oh i t  was November  2012 cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   I  do  no t  know Cha i r  i f  the  Company  

Secre tary  says so  i t  i s  f ine .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Hm those are  ou r  records .  

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  f ine .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.  So you are  a  member  in  2011 and  

you become Cha i r  le t  us  say in  November  2012,  do  you  

accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  f ine  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   You see Ms Kwinana the  cha l lenge  

is  tha t  as  a  member  o f  the  aud i t  commi t tee  you 

recommended to  the  board  tha t  SAA go out  on  tender  fo r  

one year.  20 

MS KWINANA:   No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ja .   Le t  me take  you to  the  m inutes .   You 

w i l l  f ind  them in  DD19[a ] .  

MS KWINANA:   What  page?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We are  go ing  to  –  the  m inute  s ta r ts  –  
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sor ry  le t  me g i ve  the  –  a t  page 54 –  54 .    

MS KWINANA:   54?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   Now th is  i s  a  –  these are  m inutes  o f  

the  meet ing  o f  the  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  o f  South  A f r i can  

A i rways he ld  on  the  17  February  2011.   And i t  i s  a t tended –  

who is  p resent  there  is  l i s ted  and I  see your  name there .   

Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   So th is  ind ica tes  you were  present  

a t  the  meet ing  and i f  you go ove r  to  page 55.  10 

MS KWINANA:   Le t  me read the  [00 :20 :29]po in t  he re .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sor ry  I  w i l l  te l l  you  where  you are .   You 

are  jus t  under  Ms  Nkos i  Thomas.   The 1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  5 ,  6 ,  7 ,  8 ,  

9 t h  person.   Do you see tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then i f  you go over  the  page  to  page  

55 you go down to  C lause 10.  –  we l l  paragraph 10.2  wh ich  

says,  Aud i t  Commi t tee .   Do you have tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  says  a  repor t  and recommendat ion  and 20 

then a t  10 .2 .1 .1  there  i s  a  bo ld  Open Tender  Process fo r  

the  appo in tment  o f  ex terna l  aud i to rs  fo r  the  2011/2012 

f inanc ia l  year.    

“The board  o f  d i rec to rs  rev iewed the  

proposa l  to  commence w i th  an  open tender  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 174 of 243 
 

p rocess to  appo in t  ex terna l  aud i t o rs  fo r  the  

2011/2012 f inanc ia l  year  as  recommended  

by  the  Aud i t  Commi t tee  and tab led  a t  the  

meet ing . ”  

How in  the  face  o f  th is  Ms Kwinana  can you say tha t  

i t  was not  in  fac t  the  recommendat ion  o f  you r  –  the  

commi t tee  on  wh ich  you se rved tha t  the  very  th ing  tha t  

happened happened?  

MS KWINANA:   I  th ink  th i s  was a  very  b ig ,  b ig ,  b ig  m is take 

Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  was a  b ig  m is take?  

MS KWINANA:   A m is take tha t  the  board  rev iewed p roposa l  

to  commence w i th  an  open tender  p rocess to  appo in t  

ex te rna l  aud i to rs  fo r  2011/2012 f inanc ia l  yea r  

recommended by  the  Aud i t  Commi t tee  and tab led  a t  the 

meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  was a  m is take?  I s  i t  –  a re  you 

say ing  tha t… 

MS KWINANA:   To  recommend –  to  recommend fo r  one  

year.   To  recommend fo r  one year.   Maybe Cha i r… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you –  you… 

MS KWINANA:   Do you have the  m inutes?  

CHAIRPERSON:   You accept  –  okay Ms Hofmeyr ’s  quest ion  

as  I  see seeks to  es tab l i sh  f rom you whether  you  accept  

tha t  i t  i s  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  tha t  made tha t  
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recommendat ion .   Do you accept  tha t  now? 

MS KWINANA:   May –  do  you have the  Aud i t  Commi t tee  

m inutes  where  th is  was d i scussed?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana no we do not  have eve ry  

s ing le  record ing  o f  every  s ing le  meet ing  wh ich  when I  show 

you the  record  o f  the  m inutes  you t ry  to  re ly  on  to  g ive  

more  than i s  recorded here .   Ms Kwinana how in  the  face  

o f  what  i s  reco rded here  can you not  jus t  reso lu te ly  accept  

the  commi t tee  o f  wh ich  you were  a  member  recommended 

tha t  the  tender  go  ou t  fo r  on l y  one  year.  10 

MS KWINANA:   Def in i te ly  Cha i r  there  is  jus t  no  way tha t  

we can recommend one year.   In  th is  meet ing  Mr  Zakhe le  

S i tho le  was the  cha i rperson o f  the  Aud i t  and Mr  Zakhe le  

S i tho le  was opera t ing  an  aud i t  f i rm and a lso  there  is  jus t  

no  way tha t  we can recommend one year  –  never  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  d id  you… 

MS KWINANA:   The aud i t  –  never  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  wou ld  you not  have seen these  

minutes  a t  some s tage dur ing  tha t  t ime because then i f  you 

saw the  m inutes  you shou ld  have sa id  th i s  i s  no t  cor rec t ,  20 

th is  commi t tee  d id  no t  make such a  recommenda t ion  or  

cou ld  no t  have  made such a  recommendat ion?  The 

minutes  must  re f lec t  someth ing  d i f fe ren t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  Cha i r… 

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  why –  tha t  i s  why Cha i r  I  need 
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these minutes  o f  th is  aud i t  commi t tee  where  we 

recommended one year.   Because I  am su re  tha t  we  cannot  

recommend one year  w i th  aud i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  Ms Kwinana –  no  –  I  mean even  

before  we get  to  m inutes  you were  present  a t  th is  meet ing .   

I f  you  present  a t  the  meet ing  as  a  non-execut ive  you say 

tha t  was not  the  recommendat ion .   There  is  some er ror  has 

happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You do not  even do tha t .   These are  –  10 

these are  s igned minutes  o f  the  Board  o f  SAA.   In  the  face  

o f  tha t  Ms Kwinana i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  –  I  am put t ing  to  you i t  

i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  unders tand the  bas is  on  wh ich  you res is t  tha t  

the  recommendat ion  came f rom the  commi t tee  and tha t  the 

board  o f  wh ich  you were  a  member  approved the  

recommendat ion .  

MS KWINANA:   The reason Cha i r  why I  am res i s t ing  is  

because I  am sure  tha t  there  i s  no  way tha t  we can 

recommend –  fo r  such an ent i t y  as  b ig  and compl i ca ted  as  

South  A f r i can A i rways and then we approve the  aud i t  fo r  20 

one year  de f in i te l y  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Mban jwa.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  un fo r tunate l y  

th is  i s  aga in  an  [00 :25 :10] .   The way I  unders tand th is  i s  a  

commiss ion  o f  inqu i ry  and I  be l ieve  what  the  commiss ion  
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wants  i s  to  be  ass is ted  w i th  i t .    

I  know tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  c ross -examin ing  and we  

are  no t  ob jec t ing  to  tha t  because we a re  in  agreement  w i th  

the  Cha i r  tha t  a l though tha t  i s  go ing  beyond the  no rmal  bu t  

the  t ru th  must  be  es tab l i shed and there  i s  no  t ime.   But  

where  we are  ob jec t ing  is  when a  w i tness says yes  I  admi t  

tha t  th is  i s  what  i s  wr i t ten  here  bu t  th is  i s  so  improbab le  

g iven the  c i rcumstances and wha t  I  know o f  where  I  was  

lack ing .   Can I  have suppor t ing  documents?    

And then Ms Ho fmeyr  now g i ves  th is  huge outcry  10 

because in  a  way  i t  i s  in t im ida t ing  to  the  w i tness Cha i r  and  

i t  fo rces the  w i tness no t  to  look  fo r  suppor t ing  documents .   

I  th ink  in  any s i tua t ion  when you present  ev idence  you are  

a l lowed to  ge t  suppor t ing  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you see the  d i f f i cu l t y  Ms Mban jwa is  

tha t  the  commiss ion  cannot  be  go ing  and look ing  fo r  every 

p iece  o f  document .    

As  I  unders tand the  pos i t ion  the  lega l  team made  

sure  tha t  you and Ms Kwinana were  no t i f ied  what  

documents  wou ld  be  used dur ing  her  ev idence.   And you 20 

were  g i ven whatever  in fo rmat ion  you wou ld  need in  o rder  

to  access the  in fo rmat ion .  So wh ich  suggests  to  me tha t  i f  

Ms Kwinana had taken the  t roub le  to  read the  documents  

she wou ld  have come across these  minutes  and she  wou ld  

have p i cked up tha t  there  was someth ing  tha t  she  thought  
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they  incor rec t ly  re f lec ted  and wou ld  have ment ioned much 

ear l ie r  to  say,  those minutes  are  wrong I  want  to  t ry  and 

get  more  documents .   Yes what  do  you say?  

ADV MBANJWA:   Thank you Cha i r  I  am go ing  to  say two 

las t  th ings.   I t  does not  mat te r  what  Cha i r.   I f  you  reca l l  

Cha i r  he re  the re  is  even a  le t te r  wh ich  I  wro te  and I  used 

the  word  i r r i ta ted  and i t  i s  because f rom the  very  beg inn ing  

once we were  g i ven the  da te  o f  Ms Kwinana ’s  appearance 

here  we requested the  ev idence by  –  or  to  be  po in ted  out  

and the re  was such a  t remendous de lay  the  le t te r  was –  10 

was ready and I  go t  f rus t ra ted  because we were  ac tua l l y  

g iven these documents .    

I  th ink  on  a  [00 :27 :50]  and we a re  coming here  on  a  

Monday.   The who le  weekend we worked on i t .   And then 

the  second th ing  Cha i r  wh ich  I  want  to  say.   I f  a  w i tness 

says th is  i s  the  o ther  ex t ra  [00 :28 :08]  my unders tand ing  

tha t  tha t  ev idence is  supposed to  be  admiss ib le .   And I  am 

say ing  tha t  because tha t  i s  exact ly  what  Ms Hofmeyr  has 

jus t  done here  be fore  we went  fo r  lunch.    

She had a  th ing  and we d id  no t  ob jec t  to  the  –  to  20 

the  admiss ion  o f  tha t  th ing  because we unders tand tha t  the  

commiss ion  is  dea l ing  w i th  a  huge vo lume o f  in fo rmat ion .   

A l l  we asked was jus t  fo r  t ime to say le t  us  ge t  f i ve  

m inutes  to  read the  document .    

So we are  t ry ing  to  coopera te  w i th  the  commiss ion  
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to  the  best  o f  our  ab i l i t y.   And we are  happy in  the  manner  

the  Cha i r  i s  t rea t ing  us .  But  we have to  take  a  s t rong 

except ion  to  the  fac t  tha t  every  t ime the  w i tness says,  

maybe i f  I  can  get  th is  document  tha t  i s  immedia te l y  

in te rpre ted  by  the  ev idence leader  as  be ing  evas ive  or  

re fusa l .   What  ev idence leader  cou ld  co r rec t l y  say  is  to  say  

yes there  a re  concerns bu t  no t  to  shout  a t  the  w i tness.   

Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.   Jus t  fo r  the  reco rd  Cha i r  

the  request  to  be  prov ided w i th  the  bund le  fo r  Ms 10 

Kwinana ’s  ev idence came in  a  le t te r  da ted  the  16  October  

2020 f rom Ms Mban jwa ’s  f i rm and the  las t  parag raph i t  i s  

unnumbered there  read as  fo l lows:  

“ In  conc lus ion  p lease adv ise  us  as  to  when  

we can expect  the  w i tness bund le  inc lud ing  

the  documents  spec i f i ca l l y  reques ted in  our  

le t te r  incor rec t l y  da te”   

Sor ry  tha t  i s  the  la te r  one.   Le t  me jus t  ge t  he re .   

Sor ry  so  th i s  i s  the  23  October  le t te r.   I t  says :  

Remember  I  to ld  you there  was a  who le  request  l i s t  20 

o f  requested documents  and then tha t  was prov ided in  

add i t ion  to  the  bund le .   What  happens a f te r  the  request  i s  

made is  th is  fo l low ing appears .  

That  happens a f te r  the  request  i s  made is  th i s  fo l low ing 

appears .  
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“ In  conc lus ion  p lease adv ise  us  as  to  when we can  

expect  the  w i tness bund le  inc lud ing  the  documents  

spec i f i c  in  our let ter  incorrect ly  dated 

16 September 2020.   Please note that  we need an 

answer on or before the 28t h of  October 2020. ”  

 So th is was wri t ten on the 23r d and they requi red an 

answer about  the wi tness bundle by the 

28t h of  October 2020.  

 On the 28t h of  October 2020 is  when Ms Kwinana 

through Ms Mbanjwa was provided wi th the wi tness bundle.   10 

So i t  was in compl iance wi th the very date that  had been set  

in the let ter of  the 23r d of  October 2020 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So I  just  wanted to place that  on record.   

Insofar as per  documents are concerned.   The chal lenge is 

simply that  in the face of  s igned minutes of  a meet ing at  

which Ms Kwinana was present  and in respect  of  which there 

was a recommendat ion f rom the commit tee on which she sat .    

 I t  is. . .   I  am put t ing to you Ms Kwinana that  i t  is di ff icul t  

to understand how going to look for the minutes of  the 20 

underl in ing Audi t  and Risk Commit tee meet ing would help.  

 Because as the Chair  was vent i lat ing ear l ier.   I f  you 

have had any concern about what  is recorded here,  that  is  

l ikely to have been ref lected in the minutes.  

 How do you think get t ing those minutes wi l l  assist  us 



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 181 of 243 
 

Ms Kwinana? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe before you respond Ms Kwinana.  

Let  me also say.   I t  just  seems qui te improbable that  the 

recommendat ion forum, the Audi t  and Risk Commit tee,  would 

have been recommending a longer per iod than one year.  

 And when the minute said one year,  not  a s ingle one of  

the members of  the board who would have been what the 

recommendat ion of  the commit tee said.   Recommended 

maybe three years.    

 That  not  a s ingle one of  them, including you,  did not  pick 10 

up to say:   No,  but  the recommendat ion did not  say one year.   

So these minutes do not  ref lect  the t rue posi t ion as to what 

the recommendat ion said.  

 So you can comment on what Ms Hofmeyr said but  

comment on what I  have also said.  

MS KWINANA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   I  would say Chair,  these 

minutes do not  re f lect  the discussions of  the day in  respect  

of  that  one-year audi t .    

 In fact ,  Chai r  and the procurement process would take a 

minimum of  s ix-months.   And then now, af ter s ix-months we 20 

appointed – and then we appoint  the audi tors for one year.  

 That  would mean that  even before they f in ish that  year,  

we would have to start  another  process.   So that  is  why 

Chai r,  I  am almost  sure that  there is no way that  we could as 

a big ent i ty and compl icated and complex l ike SAA, would 
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appoint  audi tors for one year.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    How long in your  understanding were they 

appointed for? 

MS KWINANA :    For f ive years Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    For f ive years? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So your  understanding,  despi te what is 

being recorded in  the minutes of  the meet ing,  is that  in 2011 

a decision was taken to appoint  them for f ive years.   Is that  

correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    That  is correct  Chai r.   And in fact ,  the 

reason as I  said Chai r.   In fact ,  the reason why I  am saying 

f ive years wi th conf idence is the discussion that  we went 

through where basical ly we were saying,  f i rst  year  50%.  

50/50.   Second year,  60/40 and so on and so on.   That  

per iod would be f ive years.  

 And then we even said,  then i f  that  is – i t  happens l ike 

that ,  then when the tender comes again,  now we would be in 

a posi t ion to tender a lone wi thout  being incurred wi th PWC 

because the ski l ls would have been t ransferred over these 20 

f ive years.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So your understanding is that  there was a 

decision to appoint  PWC and Nkonki  for f ive years.   Is that 

r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    That  is correct  Chair.    
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Then why did you t ry and take i t  away 

f rom PWC before the f ive years was up? 

MS KWINANA :    We d id not  t ry to  take i t  away Chai r  f rom 

PWC but  th is  is what happened.   F irst  year,  50/50.   Second 

year,  40/30. . .  40/60.   And then th i rd year,  that  would be 

70/30.    

 And then I  th ink in the thi rd  or fourth year,  when now 

PWC percentage was reducing,  PWC got  uncomfortable wi th  

that  and they said for  the percentage and the r isk we are 

having,  the r isk is  higher than the reward.    10 

 Something l ike that .   And then. . .   So that  was not  – we 

did not  want to remove PWC but  PWC said,  i f  that  is the 

case,  then we are going.   So basical ly,  we did not  remove 

them.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, do you not  remember being 

very vocal  about  the fact  that  Nkonki  should get  i t  a l l  on i ts 

own before the f ive years was up? 

MS KWINANA :    That  recommendat ion Chai r,  I  th ink we even 

wrote that  recommendat ion but  I  am subject  to correct ion.   

We wrote to the Audi tor General  because the Audi tor General  20 

has got  the f i rst  r ight  of  refusal  in terms of  audi t ing the 

SOC’s.    

 So the reason why we wrote – why. . .   You may say we 

were pushing but  PWC said they are wi thdrawing.   So now, i f  

PWC say they are wi thdrawing before the end of  the f ive 
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years,  which means,  therefore that  i t  might  as wel l  be 

hundred percent .   That  was the reason.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  Ms Kwinana that  is now how the 

chronology actual ly played out .   You see,  PWC was not  

sat isf ied wi th going less than 50/50 at  a point .   But  the board 

actual ly resolved to g ive this exclusively to Nkonki  before 

the f ive years was up.   I t  d id so.   I t  went  to the Audi tor 

General  about  that .   And you remember what the Audi tor  

General  said in response? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   What did they say? 10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    They said that  you cannot do so wi thout  

ensuring that  you are going through a proper supply chain 

management process.   Does that  re fresh your memory? 

MS KWINANA :    The supply chain management process 

Chair  was entered into when we appointed them in 2011 and 

our understanding was that ,  that  is going to be f ive years 

and the percentage would be on a reducing scale.   And 

therefore,  i f  PWC does not  want that ,  therefore,  the other 

company can cont inue.   That  was basical ly what our th inking 

were.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Wel l ,  Ms Kwinana again,  I  just  have to put  

i t  to you.   What the minutes of  the meet ings and the 

resolut ion show is  that  over t ime – in the f ive years,  on your 

vers ion,  they were jo int ly appointed for f ive years.    

 But  somewhere in  the middle,  the board decides to just  
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take i t  away f rom PWC and give i t  to Nkonki .   They go to the 

Audi tor  Genera l .   The Audi tor General  says:   You cannot do 

that .   You have to go through a supply chain management  

process because you are procur ing services and you cannot  

just  give i t  to a party.    

 And the board minutes ref lect  the fol lowing – I  wi l l  take 

you there in a moment – i t  was observed that  the request  by 

the Audi tor Genera l ,  that  is the request  to  go on a supply 

chain management process,  was “st range and outside the 

scope of  the Publ ic Audi t  Act ” .  10 

MS KWINANA :    Where are the minutes Chai r? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Let  me show you.   I t  is in the bundle that  I  

th ink that  you have in f ront  of  you.   DD19.  Now, i t  is going 

to be one of  the di ff icul t  ones to f ind because there are lots  

of  sub-numbers but  i f  we could look for 132.16.3.1.    

MS MBANJWA :    [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Ms Mbanjwa.  

MS MBANJWA :    [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    132.16.3.1.   And Chai r,  can I  just  say?  

The only reason I  have not  that  th is get  scrapped is because 20 

I  cannot change the numbering now because the record is  

going to previously have averted.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So I  just  do apologise.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  that  is f ine.   That  is f ine.   I  want  to be 
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the f i rst  one to f ind i t  because I  have a suspicion I  am the 

oldest  of  a l l  of  you in th is room.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    [ laughing]    

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  is good to f ind i t  f i rst .   [ laughing]    

ADV HOFMEYR :    [ laughing]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay.   So these are the minutes of  the 

special  meet ing of  the SAA Stock L imited Board of  Directors 

held on the 28t h of  September. . .   Oh,  sorry Ms Mbanjwa.   

MS MBANJWA :    [microphone on mute]  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Point  3 point  1 .   Sorry.   Please let  me 

know when you have i t .    

MS MBANJWA :    [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  that  is where they start .   Do you have 

that ,  Ms Mbanjwa?  I t  is the minutes . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right  of  the . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Th is . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    [microphone on mute]  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    This was a very signi f icant  meet ing.   You 

recal l ,  i t  is the one I  started wi th on Monday.   I t  is  the one 

where the LSG Sky Chefs’ contract  is taking away and given 

to Ai r  Chefs.   I t  is the one where the CEO’s delegat ion of  

author i ty is cut  f rom a hundred mi l l ion to f i f ty mi l l ion.    
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 And then the other th ing that  happened at  th is happened 

is in  relat ion to audi tors.   And you wi l l  f ind that  at  internal  

page 15 of  17 which is the bundle page, DD19(a),  page 

132.16.3.15.    

MS KWINANA :    Page 15 of  17? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Correct ,  internal  page,  ja.  

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you see against  paragraph 13 there 

the appointment of  audi tors.    

“ I t  was reported that  the board had approved the 10 

appointment of  Nkonki  as the sole audi tor for the 

SAA Group. ”  

 That  happened previously but  th is is where we land in 

September.   The Audi tor General  had wri t ten to SAA, 

request ing proof  that  there was compl iance wi th  the supply 

chain management pol icy before – that  AG was wi l l ing to  

consent to the appointment of  Nkonki  Inc.   And then this was 

recorded:  

“ I t  was reserved that  the request  by the Audi tor  

General  was strange and outside the scope of  the 20 

Publ ic  Audi t  Act . ’  

 So this is the basis Ms Kwinana on which I  say to you.   

Even i f ,  notwi thstanding what the minutes of  the 2011 

meet ing record,  your version is that  there was an 

appointment for f ive years.  
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MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    The di ff icul ty that  th is presents is,  that  at  

a point  wi thin that  f ive year per iod,  the Board of  SAA 

decided to take i t  away f rom one of  the jo int  audi t  partners,  

give i t  to Nkonki  and i t  was the Audi tor General  that  would 

not  approve that ,  unless there was proof  that  there had been 

compl iance wi th supply chain management.  

 So how on even your own recol lect ion of  what was 

decided,  could this have been an appropriate thing to do? 

MS KWINANA :    I  have t r ied to explain and give the 10 

background to th is Chai r.   And in fact ,  I  do not  know, maybe 

i f  I  had explained i t  in Xhosa,  i t  would be bet ter.   But  as I  

said Chai r,  the audi tors,  accord ing to the board,  were 

appointed for f ive years on a s l id ing scale.    

 And therefore,  when PWC refused to take a smal ler 

percentage,  then they decided that  they are wi thdrawing.   

And then now, when they are wi thdrawing,  then the board,  as 

i t  is  stated here,  approved the appointment of  Nkonki  only 

because PWC wanted out  of  the deal .    

 And when the Audi tor  Genera l  says they wanted proof  of  20 

compl iance wi th  supply chain management pol icy.   The 

Audi tor General  d id not  know what  was decided in previous 

years and therefore – and I  a lso do not  th ink that  i t  would be 

di ff icul t  for SAA to be given the assurance that  there was 

compl iance.    
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 But  assuming that  they would have been given the f ive 

years that  the board discussed in the meet ing.   So we real ly  

did th ink that  the Audi tor General ’s  request  was in  fact  

st range because our understanding has been that  the 

audi tors were appointed on a s l id ing scale anyway.    

 So in one way or another,  maybe in the f ive years,  i t  

would end up being 20/80.   And maybe i f  there is an 

extension,  as i t  happens wi th other cont racts,  i t  would end 

up being 10/90.    

 So Chai r,  I  do not  have any other response,  except  that  I  10 

have explained what was the discussion in respect  o f  th is.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, dur ing the per iod that  PWC 

and Nkonki  were jo int ly audi t ing SAA, you entered into a 

jo int  business rela t ionship wi th PWC.  Correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Not  on ly wi th PWC.  As I  have been saying,  

in al l  the meet ings of  SAA.  There is not  a single person at  

SAA who did not  know that  I  operated and audi t .   And 

therefore,  as I  have been saying. . .    

 You know, Ms Hofmeyr maybe you were never involved 

in tendering the way I  have been involved in tendering.   In  20 

tendering,  in the government tender and in  i ts tender,  there 

wi l l  be a whole lot  of  tenders.    

 And then i f  i t  is tendering for audi t  and maybe 

account ing or making sure that  there is c lean audi t ,  you do 

the reconci l iat ions.   This,  th is,  th is  and that .   You enter into 
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jo int  partnerships   

 In fact ,  maybe your. . .   In fact ,  def in i te ly,  your  

invest igat ing team, when they were reviewing our bank 

statements as Kwinana & Associates,  they would have seen 

that  we receive money f rom almost  al l  the audi t  f i rms.    

 We have received money f rom PWC, f rom Delo i t te,  

f rom.. .   I t  is only Ernest  & Young that  we never worked wi th.  

From SMG, f rom Wane, f rom Manase, f rom basical ly  al l  the 

audi t  f i rms.    

 And in fact ,  how we do things.   We enter into di fferent  10 

forms of  arrangements.   We enter into consort ium 

arrangements where the two part ies come together and form 

a consort ium.   

 Somet imes we enter into jo int  venture agreements 

where,  basical ly,  we would register the jo int  ventures.   

Somet imes we enter into a sub-contract ing arrangement 

where,  basica l ly,  one company,  as i t  has happened with  

PRASA, wi th Kwinana & Associates and PWC.   

 So basical ly,  i t  depends on the form of  an arrangement.   

Somet imes,  you enter into a suppl ier development 20 

arrangement.    

 As my understanding is that  you l i f t  as you r ise.   So 

basical ly,  that  is  what we do Chai r  as the audi tors.   And 

therefore,  when you asked that  I  entered into a business 

arrangement wi th PWC.   
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 Kwinana & Associates has entered into business 

arrangements wi th almost  al l  the audi t  f i rms.   I f  you go to 

Ngubane and ask . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  do not  repeat  that  Ms Kwinana.   

MS KWINANA :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  you have ment ioned the var ious 

names.  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    The point  of  the quest ion is to establ ish 

that  the very jo int  audi t  partner who was audi t ing SAA, you 

were in jo int  business relat ionship wi th.   I t  is not  relevant  10 

that  you were in others.    

 The one that  we focus on now, is the one in respect  of  

which you were year-on-year  making decisions to reappoint  

them and determining thei r  fees.    

 So I  just  want to  explain why.   The fact  that  you might  

have had other relat ionships wi th other audi t  f i rms,  is  not  the 

focus for us.    

 Because as a board member in  SAA with decision 

making power,  general ly,  and in terms of  the Companies Act  

we looked at  previously,  you should not  be making any 20 

decisions in respect  of  which you have a personal  f inancia l  

interest .   Do you accept  that? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   In respect  of  the audi tors,  I  

def in i te ly do not  agree wi th that .   The reason being that  

Chai r.   The personal  interest  that  Ms Hofmeyr is ta lk ing 
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about .    

 Of  course,  Kwinana & Associates did receive a benef i t  

but  not  f rom PWC.  Remember that  we were appointed by 

PRASA not  PWC.   

 So whenever these consort iums happened Chai r,  the 

cl ient  would want  to  deal  wi th  one company and the other  

companies,  l ike for instance,  Transnet.    

 Transnet was deal ing wi th ten companies but  now there 

would be one company that  does l ike the invoicing.   And 

therefore,  the benef i t  Chai r. . .    10 

 In fact ,  I  real ly do not  know how to explain this.   The 

benef i t ,  the money,  the monies that  PWC paid to Kwinana & 

Associates and the monies that  were going to get  paid to 

Kwinana & Associates,  were not  the monies that  PWC gave 

to me.  They were . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    They were just  appointment.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on Ms Kwinana.   I  hope I  

am wrong in th ink ing what you – what I  th ink you are saying.   

You are not  saying,  are you,  that  there was nothing wrong 20 

wi th you si t t ing,  whether i t  is at  the Board of  SAA or the 

Audi t  and Risk Commit tee and par t ic ipat ing in decis ions to 

give work,  SAA work to Nkonki  and PricewaterhouseCoopers 

in c i rcumstances where your company was going to be 

get t ing -  Kwinana & Associates was going to be get t ing a 
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benef i t ,  a f inancia l  benef i t  coming f rom the work that  Nkonki  

or Pr icewaterhouseCoopers or both were going to be doing 

for SAA.  That  is not  what you are saying? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What are you saying? 

MS KWINANA :    That  is not  what I  am saying.   Am I  saying 

Chair  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Or let  me go back to Ms Hofmeyr ’s  

quest ion.   Ms Hofmeyr,  do you want to repeat  your quest ion 

so that  I  can understand what the answer is.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed, indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    The issue is that  you are in a decision 

making role wi thin SAA.  You are deciding year-on-year to  

reappoint ,  or not ,  PWC and Nkonki .    

 You deciding what fees they wi l l  earn.   And in the same 

– at  the same t ime that  you are doing that ,  you are in a jo int  

business relat ionship wi th them and you are der iv ing 

revenue f rom that  business relat ionship.    

 That  creates a si tuat ion,  I  want  to  put  to you,  in which 20 

you should not  be making those decisions.   The Companies 

Act  requi res you to declare the interest  and requi res you to  

recuse yoursel f  f rom that  decis ion making.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  now I  th ink I  understand.   So yes,  the 

money that  would have paid to  Kwinana & Associates might  
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not  necessari ly be for work done by PricewaterhouseCoopers 

or Nkonki  at  SAA but  I  th ink the point  being made is.    

 These are your business associates f rom which you 

der ive some benef i t ,  even i f  that  benef i t  is not  connected 

wi th work at  SAA but  you are. . .   

 There is too close a relat ionship wi th them to be si t t ing 

and making and part ic ipat ing in  decisions whether they 

should get  contracts or not .   That  is the point .   Are you 

saying there is nothing wrong with that? 

MS KWINANA :    I  st i l l  th ink Chai r  there is nothing wrong with 10 

that .   And in fact ,  i f  anyone thinks there is nothing wrong 

with that .   In my example,  when I  was answering by emai l .   I  

said Chai r,  for the audi tors that  would be very di ff icul t .    

 That  would mean that  any chartered accountant ,  not  

even a chartered accountant  that  is in  audi t .   A chartered 

accountant  that  is  a CFO there,  cannot make a decision on 

any f i rm.   

 The reason Chai r  why I  am saying that  is because a 

chartered accountant  wi l l  have served art ic les in  one of  the 

audi t  f i rms.   And when you have served art ic les in one of  the 20 

audi t  f i rms and then now . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  do not  make that  example 

Ms Kwinana because the mere fact  that  he or she have 

served art ic les at  some stage or another,  is not  a here not  

there.   I t  happens wi th lawyers,  you know.   
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 The fact  that  you served art ic les wi th law f i rm A 20-years 

ago,  does not  mean that  you cannot act  against  them.  But  i f  

you served art ic les and lef t  yesterday or last  months and 

now you have to s i t  and make a decision in a st ructure where 

they are involved,  that  might  be di fferent .    

 But  i f  you are talk ing about a certa in,  a long per iod that 

might  not  mean anything.   So but  here,  as I  understand the 

posi t ion.   I t  was a business associat ion that  Kwinana & 

Associates had which was ongoing.   Ms Hofmeyr,  am I  r ight? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is about  the two happening at  the same 

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is what creates the conf l ict .   I t  is that  

at  the very same t ime that  you are making the decisions 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . .you der ive benef i ts  f rom your 

associat ion wi th them.  And that  is what creates the conf l ict .   20 

I t  does not  mean you cannot be appointed.   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  does not  mean you cannot serve and 

give your ski l ls and your expert ise to SAA.  I t  means on that  

decision in respect  of  which you have a relat ionship in which 
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you der ive personal  benef i t ,  as def ined,  you just  recuse 

yoursel f .   You say:   I  cannot part ic ipate in th is decision.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  st i l l  do not  see i t  l ike that .   The 

reason why I  do not  see i t  l ike that  is.   As I  said,  I  work wi th 

al l  the audi t  f i rms.   For me, al l  the audi t  f i rms are the same.  

Even,  for instance,  i f  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  you did not  have a current  ongoing 

business relat ionship wi th al l  of  them at  a part icular t ime? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  10 

MS KWINANA :    You may have had in the past  wi th  that  one 

or that  one but  at  the t ime you make a – you have to 

part ic ipate in decision making that  could benef i t  th is  

business associates of  yours,  you have that  business 

associat ion,  relat ionship f rom which you cont inue to get  

f inancial  benef i t .    

 How can you take part  in that  decis ion making?  I  am not  

ta lk ing about  some previous or past  business relat ionship.   I  

am talk ing about current  business re lat ionships f rom which 

you get  f inancial  benef i t .  20 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  in that  case,  that  would mean that  

everybody who is  operat ing an audi t  f i rm cannot si t  in the 

board.   Why I  am say ing  tha t  i s  because I  d id  no t  have the  

bus iness re la t ionsh ip  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime w i th  say  

De lo i t te .   However,  a t  some s tage  I  wou ld  have a  bus iness  
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re la t ionsh ip  w i th  De lo i t te  because  we used to  [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  we are  ta lk ing  about  a  

re la t ionsh ip  tha t  i s  cu r ren t  a t  the  t ime you are  supposed to  

make a  dec is ion .   Do not  make examples  tha t  do  no t  app ly.   

We a re  ta lk ing  about  a  s i tua t ion  where  you par t i c i pa te  or  a  

dec is ion  has to  be  taken and you must  dec ide  whether  you  

recuse yourse l f  o r  you are  go ing  to  par t i c ipa te  where  an  

a f fec ted  pa r ty  who cou ld  benef i t  f rom the  dec is ion  f rom the  

way you vo te  i s  a  cu r ren t  bus iness assoc ia te  o f  yours  and 10 

f rom tha t  bus iness tha t  re la t ionsh ip  you cont inue  to  have 

f inanc ia l  benef i t s .   We are  no t  ta lk ing  about  someth ing  tha t  

has happened and ended.   We are  no t  ta lk ing  about  

someth ing  tha t  cou ld  happen in  t he  fu tu re ,  we are  ta lk ing  

about  someth ing  tha t  i s  ongo ing  a t  the  t ime you have to  

dec ide  whether  t o  recuse yourse l f  o r  to  take  par t  in  the  

dec is ion  tha t  cou ld  benef i t  o r  no t  benef i t  tha t  par ty.  

MS KWINANA:    Le t  me make my f ina l  answer,  Cha i r.   I  d id  

no t  ge t  a  f inanc ia l  benef i t  f rom Nkonk i  and PwC.   I  go t  the  

f inanc ia l  benef i t  o r  my company got  the  f inanc ia l  benef i t  20 

f rom PRASA,  Transnet  and Post  O ff i ce .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana,  I  shou ld  jus t  fo l low up on 

tha t .   I s  i t  rea l l y  your  ev idence before  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  

your  assoc ia t ion  w i th  PwC was no t  par t  o f  the  reason why 

you got  the  PRASA work ,  you jo in t l y  b id  fo r  i t?  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 198 of 243 
 

MS KWINANA:    We have been –  Cha i r,  we have been 

b idd ing  w i th  PwC and o ther  compan ies  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  jus t  the  quest ion  i s  no t  whether  you 

had been b idd ing  w i th  them,  the  quest ion  is  whe ther  you 

are  say ing  tha t  you were  no t  benef i t ing  f rom tha t  

re la t ionsh ip .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  even i f  we  d id  no t  b id  w i th  PwC we  

dec ided to  b id  w i th  anothe r  company but  the  fac t  o f  the 

mat te r  i s  tha t  the  benef i t  d id  no t  come f rom PwC,  the 

benef i t  came f rom PRASA and in  fac t  when you b id  you do 10 

not  know i f  you  are  go ing  to  ge t  the  tender  o r  no t  and  

there fo re  I  wou ld  no t  take  –  in  fac t ,  Cha i r,  my conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t ,  I  d id  no t  have any conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  a t  a l l  

acco rd ing  to  my unders tand ing  and,  in  fac t ,  as  you are  

ask ing  th is  ques t ion ,  I  s t i l l  do  no t  see any conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t  because we wou ld  lose  tha t  tender  to  the  PRASA 

tender  and we wou ld  ge t  anothe r  tender  o r  we wou ld  go 

w i th  De lo i t te  and PwC or  KPMG wi th  another  one.   So,  

Cha i r,  I  rea l l y  do  no t  see any conf l i c t  in  th is  one.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana ,  i t  i s  c lea r,  you see 20 

abso lu te l y  no  con f l i c t .   I  am go ing  to  leave there  po in t .  

MS KWINANA:    No [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you know tha t  Mr  Moth ibe  the  lead  

PwC aud i to r  who  in  your  ev idence ea r l ie r  th i s  week you 

sa id  you had a  h igh  respect  fo r  be l ieved tha t  i t  was a  
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con f l i c t  o f  in te res t   fo r  you and  tha t  you shou ld  have  

recused yourse l f  f rom those meet ing  and dec i s ion-mak ing .  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  h is  own op in ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s ,  indeed.  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  h is  own op in ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  Ms Kwinana,  we migh t  a l l  a t  

one s tage or  ano ther  no t  see a  ce r ta in  mat te r  in  a  cer ta in  

way but  when the re  has been the  benef i t  o f  d iscuss ion  and 

quest ions be ing  asked we might  then beg in  to  see tha t  

mat te r  in  a  d i f fe ren t  l igh t .  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And say you know what ,  tha t  i s  no t  how I  

saw i t  a t  the  t ime but  now tha t  you  are  ra is ing  these  issues  

I  can see,  I  can see,  you know,  i t  was wrong,  I  shou ld  have  

seen i t  tha t  way but  a t  tha t  t ime I  d id  no t  see i t  tha t  way,  I  

am ter r ib l y  so r ry  because I  rea l l y  d id  no t  see i t  tha t  way.    

 Now i f  one i s  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  s i tua t ion ,  one can  

lay  b lame –  maybe not  lay  b lame,  fo r  the  fac t  tha t  a  person 

d id  no t  see a  ce r ta in  in  a  cer ta in  way a t  a  cer ta in  t ime but  

one can –  one m ight  we l l  be  ab le  to  fo rg ive  the  person to  20 

say once th is  was ra ised he or  she saw i t  and she rea l i sed  

tha t  no ,  I  have made a  m is take,  you know? 

 But  where  even when the re  is  d i scuss ions,  there  

are  quest ions,  i ssues are  ra i sed,  somebody s t i l l  does not  

see i t ,  i t  becomes even a  b igger  p rob lem because i f  
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be tween these two peop le  the  one who sees the  prob lem 

tha t  he  or  she d id  no t  see before  in  regard  to  a  cer ta in  

mat te r,  the  one who sees the  prob lem,  you can – i f  he  or  

she says look,  I  am now en l igh tened,  I  can see th is  –  I  w i l l  

make sure  I  do  no t  do  i t ,  you  can work  w i th  tha t  person 

because tha t  person has seen the  l igh t .   But  i f  the  person  

pers is t s  and say I  do  no t  see i t  -  I  mean,  the  o ther  one you  

can say tha t  pe rson can be cons idered to  be  a  board  

member  o f  another  board  because a t  leas t  he  or  she  

rea l i sed tha t  no ,  tha t  was wrong  and now tha t  k ind  o f  10 

m is take w i l l  no t  happen aga in  bu t  w i th  a  person who s t i l l  

does not  see i t ,  i t  i s  too  r i sky  to  appo in t  tha t  person in  the  

fu tu re  to  a  board  or  such a  pos i t ion  because th is  person  

w i l l  con t inue no t  to  see tha t  th is  k ind  o f  s i tua t ion  is  

p rob lemat ic  and there fore  w i l l  cause more  prob lems.    

 So I  jus t  want  –  I  am mak ing  these  examples  to  say 

to  you I  am qu i te  concerned about  the  fac t  tha t  your  

pos i t ion  s t i l l  s tands tha t  you do not  see any prob lem wi th  

tha t  s i tua t ion .   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.    The to ta l  amount  tha t  20 

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  b i l led  PwC for  on  tha t  PRASA 

mat te r  was in  the  orde r  o f  6 .1  m i l l ion .   Do you  conf i rm 

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And in  respec t  o f  tha t  6 .1  m i l l ion  you 
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were  on ly  ab le  to  en ter  in to  tha t  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  PwC 

accord ing  to  i t s  po l i cy  i f  tha t  amount  d id  no t  const i tu te  

more  than 5  or  10% of  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes ’ revenue.   

Were  you aware  o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime? 

MS KWINANA:    I  remember  tha t ,  Cha i r,  in  pa r tnersh ip  

they w i l l  come wi th  the i r  po l i c i es .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    We wi l l  a lso  be  hav ing  our  own po l i c ies  

and the re fore ,  tha t  does not  mean  tha t  in  a  par tnersh ip  you  

have to  take  a l l  the  po l i c ies  o f  the  o ther  pa r tner  tha t  i s  10 

coming,  you need to  s i t  down and d iscuss and see wh ich  

po l i c ies  a re  app l i cab le ,  no t  app l i cab le ,  wh ich  po l i c ies  are  

acceptab le  fo r  bo th  par t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    One second,  I  have run  out  o f  water  

here .   Ms Kwinana,  do  you s t i l l  have water  the re?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  have asked fo r  

somebody to  g ive  me wate r.   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wou ld  you l i ke  to  take  a  moment ,  Cha i r,  

o r  a re  you …[ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no  …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Can I  have a  f i ve  m inutes  break,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  we …[ in tervenes]  

MS MBANJWA:    I  do  no t  know i f  –  i s  Ms Hofmeyr  –  are 

you s t i l l  –  I  jus t  want  an  ind i ca t ion ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MS MBANJWA:    I  thought  tha t  we wou ld  be  asked in  45  

m inutes  so  I  want  to  know now are  we go ing  on  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    How far  we are  f rom f in ish ing .  

MS MBANJWA:    P lease.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am on my las t  top ic ,  i t  has  jus t  taken a  

b i t  longer  and w i th  a l l  due respec t  to  you,  Ms Kwinana,  I  

unders tand tha t  you a re  want ing  to  g ive  exp lanat ions bu t  I  

cannot  an t ic ipa te  how long they are  go ing  to  be ,  so 10 

apo log ies  fo r  tha t .   I t  i s  th is  one and then i t  i s  two 

quest ions,  so  I  th ink  about  twenty  more  m inutes ,  f i f teen  

even,  poss ib ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  i s  tha t  f ine ,  Ms Mban jwa? 

MS MBANJWA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   Le t  me jus t  say,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  

no t  tha t  [ ind is t inc t  –  fa r  f rom mic ]  I  jus t  wanted  to  be  

granted the  ba throom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MS KWINANA:    I f  we are  go ing  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe –  I  th ink  Ms Kwinana wants  to… 20 

MS KWINANA:    F i ve  m inutes  break p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .    

MS MBANJWA:    Sor ry  about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  –  le t  us  make i t  ten .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  indeed,  Cha i r,  because i t  i s  a  b i t  o f  
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a  way to  go .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja , .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am go ing  to  take  advantage.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we w i l l  resume a t  ten  past  four.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  cont inue on the  las t  m i le .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed.   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Kwinana,  10 

jus t  be fore  the  break we had es tab l i shed tha t  PwC had a  

po l i cy  in  te rms o f  wh ich  i t  cou ld  no t  en ter  in to  a  jo in t  

bus iness re la t ionsh ip  w i th  a  par tner  un less  i t  was less  than  

10% of  tu rnover  and I  unders tood your  answer  to  tha t  to  be  

we l l ,  tha t  m ight  have been PwC’s  po l i cy  bu t  we had our  

own po l i cy,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you accept  tha t  inso far  as  PwC 

choos ing  to  pa r tner  w i th  you tha t  you wou ld  no t  have been 

ab le  to  par tner  w i th  them i f  the i r  own po l i cy  d id  no t  a l low 20 

i t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  i f  the i r  po l i cy  says they cannot  

en ter  in to  the  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  your  f i rm i f  what  your  f i rm 

is  go ing  to  der i ve  f rom i t  i s  more  than 10% of  tu rnover  t hen  
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they  cannot  en te r  in to  the  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  you.   Do you 

accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  depend 

on the  c i r cumstances.   And another  th ing ,  Cha i r,  in  respect  

o f  these par tnersh ips  and consor t iums tha t  I  have  

exp la ined,  i t  i s  no t  on ly  the  b ig  b ro ther ’s  dec i s ion ,  a lso  the  

smal l  s is te r ’s  dec is ion  is  taken in to  account .   So when you 

say PwC wou ld  no t  have pa r tne red  w i th  us ,  th is  becomes a  

mutua l  re la t ionsh ip  where  PwC wants  to  tender  w i th  us  and 

we a lso  want  to  tender  w i th  them.   So bas ica l l y  i t  i s  fo r  10 

tha t  reason tha t  we meet  each o ther  ha l fway because we 

need each o the r,  much as  PwC wou ld  be  our  b ig  b ro ther  

bu t  in  the  end we  meet  ha l fway and there fore ,  i f  you say i f  

the i r  po l i cy  was say ing  then we wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  –  they 

w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  tender  w i th  us .   They wou ld  be  ab le  to  

tender  w i th  us  i f  they  want  regard less  o f  the i r  po l i cy.    

 We wou ld  a l so  tender  w i th  them i f  we want  

regard less  o f  our  own in te rna l  po l i cy.   So bas ica l l y  i f  they  

say 10% of  the  revenue and we say –  l i ke ,  fo r  ins tance,  in  

our  po l i cy  wh ich  bas ica l l y  I  wou ld  be  ab le  to  cha l lenge the  20 

po l i cy  tha t  wou ld  say i f  the  fees w i l l  be  more  than  10% of  

your  revenue you cannot  tender  because tha t  w i l l  impa i r  

your  independence.    

 Now what  about  the  compan ies  tha t  have got  a  zero  

tu rnover?   Does i t  mean tha t  PwC wi l l  never  en te r  in to  a  
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bus iness re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them?  I f  our  po l i cy  i s  say ing  5% 

and then now does i t  mean tha t  we  cannot  up l i f t  a  company 

tha t  i s  fa i r l y  new tha t  does not  have a  revenue a t  a l l?   So 

i t  i s  fo r  tha t  reason tha t  we meet  each o ther  ha l fway 

because we need  each o the r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  Ms Kwinana,  tha t  may  happen 

in  cer ta in  re la t i onsh ips  w i th  d i f fe ren t  par t ies .   PwC’s  

ev idence before  th is  Commiss ion ,  cor robora ted  by  the i r  

po l i cy  w i th  wh ich  –  tha t  they prov ided to  the  Commiss ion  

sa id  they cou ld  no t  have entered in to  th is  PRASA jo in t  10 

bus iness re la t ionsh ip  w i th  you i f  the  revenue to  be  der i ved 

f rom i t  was any th ing  more  than  10% of  Kwinana and  

Assoc ia tes ’ revenues.   So can we jus t  work  w i th  those  

fac ts  because those are  the  fac ts  t ha t  they have p resented  

to  the  Commiss ion .   Okay,  there  m ight  be  o ther  s i tua t ions 

where  ar rangements  are  made but  PwC sa id  tha t  they w i l l  

no t  and they ac tua l l y  fo r  tha t  reason communica ted  w i th  

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  be fore  you entered in to  the  

re la t ionsh ip  to  ask  p rec ise ly  how much o f  Kwinana and 

Assoc ia tes ’ revenue th is  was go ing  to  compr i se .   A re  you 20 

aware  o f  tha t  communica t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Le t  me g i ve  you a  background in fo rmat ion  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  cou ld  we jus t  s ta r t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  hang on,  the  quest ion  is  a re  you 
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aware  o f  tha t  communica t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am aware  o f  the  communica t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  I  want  to  exp la in ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS KWINANA:    The ver i f i ca t ion  o f  f i xed  assets  o f  PRASA 

was done by  Combined Systems.   Combine Systems is  a  

subs id ia ry  o r  was  a  subs id ia ry  o f  PwC.   So now I  de f in i te ly  

was not  aware  o f  the  Combined Systems po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Ms Hofmeyr?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  the  communica t ion  tha t  PwC 

sent  to  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  you w i l l  f ind  in  DD19 a t  

page 132.  

MS KWINANA:    Page 132?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  19A? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    19A a t  page –  we a re  s ta r t ing  a t  page  

132 because i t  i s  an  emai l  cha in  aga in  so  we have to  s ta r t  

a t  the  end.   Thank you.  

MS KWINANA:    So  i t  i s  132 what?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Jus t  132.   For  once we jus t  have none 

po in t ,  po in t ,  po in t  number.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you have tha t ,  Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  have got  i t  too .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  so  th is  i s  a  quest ion  sent   -  

do  you see f rom jus t  above m idway down f rom Nicky  

Wayne o f  PwC to  va r ious peop le  and i t  says  –  oh  so r ry,  

th is  i s  in te rna l  to  PwC,  the  one a t  the  bo t tom,  r igh t?   I t  

says :  

“H i  Koos…”  

Has asked the  fo l low ing:  

“P lease can you he lp  w i th  a  rep l y  to  h im: ”  

I t  says :  10 

“H i  N icky,  p lease conf i rm the  fo l low ing w i th  your  

contac t  a t  Kwinana.   As  per  the  DD submi t ted ,  

Yakhe Kwinana  has no o the r  shareho ld ings or  

d i rec torsh ips .   However,  as  per  the  CIPC in fo  she i s  

a  d i rec tor  a t  South  A f r i can A i rways or  SAA 

Techn ica l ,  a  PwC order  c l ien t .   P lease see i f  she i s  

s t i l l  a  d i rec tor  there .   P lease determine i f  the  

JVR…” 

That  s tands fo r  jo in t  bus iness re la t ionsh ip  on  the  ev idence 

o f  Mr  Moth ibe .  20 

“…wi th  PwC wi l l  be  mater ia l  fo r  Kwinana.  ( I f  the  

fees fo r  Kwinana fo r  the  cur ren t  JVR re la t ionsh ip  or  

engagement  w i th  PwC exceeds 10% of  the i r  annua l  

tu rnover  the  re la t ionsh ip  w i l l  be  deemed mater ia l  

fo r  them. ”  
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Okay.   Now tha t  i s  then sent  by  N ishan Pershad -  you are  

now a t  the  top  o f  the  page,  on  the  9  December 2015 to  

Lumka Gon iwe.   That  i s  your  daughte r  who works  a t  

Zanospark  w i th  you,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  en t i t led :  

“Depar tment  o f  Educat ion  In te rna l  Aud i t  Kwinana 

JVR query. ”  

And i t  says :  

“Good morn ing ,  I  t rus t  a l l  i s  we l l .   As  d iscussed,  10 

p lease f ind  the  quer ies  f rom our  r i sk  management  

sect ion . ”  

So tha t  i s  the  query  you saw prev ious ly  and i t  is  been 

fo rwarded to  your  daughte r.   And then what  your  daughter  

responds w i th  –  and now you have go back to  page 131,  in  

an  emai l  ha l fway down here ,  Ms Kwinana,  da ted  the  9  

December  2015 to  Mr  Persad is :  

“Good morn ing ,  N ishan,  we have ca l cu la ted  ou r  

fees to  be  in  the  reg ion  o f  6 .1  m i l l i on  exc lud ing  VAT.   

I  conf i rm tha t  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes ’ tu rnover  i s  20 

more  than 50 mi l l ion . ”  

And then they go  on to  dea l  w i th  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry,  you sa id  6 .1  

m i l l ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ja ,  I  sa id  6  –  I  apo log i se .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    They ended up  rece iv ing  6 .1 .   I  made 

the  er ror,  I  apo log ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  th is  i s  your  daughte r  jus t  ca lcu la t ing  

an  es t imate ,  as  I  unders tand i t .   

“We have ca l cu la ted  our  fees to  be  in  the  reg ion  o f  

4 .1  m i l l ion  exc lud ing  VAT.   I  conf i rm tha t  Kwinana 

and  Assoc ia tes ’ tu rnover  i s  more  than 50 mi l l ion . ”  

And then she dea ls  w i th  BEE ce r t i f i ca tes  and conf i rms tha t  10 

you are  a  non-execut ive  d i rec tor  o f  SAA.   Were  you 

invo lved in  ass is t ing  your  daughter  w i th  th is  emai l  

response a t  the  t ime?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No because we went  to  go  and check the  

tax  re tu rns  o f  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  wh ich  pu ts  the  

tu rnover  a t  a  much lower  f igure  than tha t .   A re  you aware  

o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am not  aware ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  i t  pu ts  -  the  Kwinana and  20 

Assoc ia tes  tax  re turns  sa id  tha t  the  tu rnover  was 10.5  

m i l l ion  fo r  the  year  end ing  February  2015.   So when your  

daughte r  sent  th is  emai l  and was  a le r ted  to  the  fac t  tha t  

the  PwC requ i rement  was tha t  i t  must  no t  be  more  than 

10%,  she s ta ted  here  tha t  the  tu rnover  i s  someth ing  tha t  i s  
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very  d i f fe ren t  to  the  tu rnover  tha t  appears  i n  Kwinana  and 

Assoc ia tes ’ tax  re turns .   Why wou ld  she have made –  and  

i t  i s  an  er ror  o f  cons iderab le  magn i tude because i t  i s  f i ve  

t imes.   She says the  tu rnover  i s  f ive  t imes more  than what  

appears  in  the  tax  re turns .   How cou ld  she have made such 

a  g la r ing  er ror?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  because o f  tha t  fa lse  

rep resenta t ion  o f  the  tu rnover  i t  fe l l  w i th in  the  po l i cy  and 

so  the  a r rangement  cou ld  cont inue.   I f  she  had gone back  10 

and g iven the  tax  re turn  in fo rmat ion  tha t  Kwinana and  

Assoc ia tes  represented to  SARS,  then you wou ld  no t  have 

been ab le  to  en ter  in to  the  re la t i onsh ip .   Do you  accept  

tha t  because 4 .1  o f  10  is  much more  than 10%.   Do you 

accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  accept  i t .   As  I  have 

s ta ted  the  reason,  i t  depends on  a  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  you 

want .   There  is  a  compromise  in  any re la t ionsh ip  and,  

there fo re ,  i f  they  wanted to  tender  w i th  us ,  as  I  sa id ,  even 

i f  we had zero  tu rnover  and in  fac t  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  I  th ink  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  ask ing  th i s  

quest ion ,  on  the  bas is  o f  the  cor respondence f rom them to  

say they had a  po l i cy  tha t  went  th is  way.   I f  you  fe l l  ou ts ide  

o f  -  the  tu rnover  o f  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  fe l l  ou t s ide  o f  

tha t  b racket  tha t  they were  ta l k ing  about  then in  te rms o f  
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tha t  po l i cy  Kwinana wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  en ter  in to  an  

ar rangement  w i th  them.   Whether  i n  te rms o f  some 

d iscuss ions tha t  cou ld  fo l low tha t  they m ight  no t  en force  

tha t ,  I  do  no t  know,  bu t  in  te rms o f  tha t  po l i cy,  do  you not  

accept  tha t  Kwinana wou ld  no t  have qua l i f ied  to  cont inue  

w i th  them? 

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  these re la t ionsh ips ,  i t  is  no t  a  

mat te r  o f  qua l i f i ca t ion  or  qua l i f y ing  or  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  ra ise  your  vo i ce  p lease?  

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   Th i s  re la t ionsh ip ,  i t  is  no t  a  10 

mat te r  o f  qua l i f y i ng  o r  no t ,  the  10% thresho ld  may be in  

fac t  the i r  gu ide l ine  bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  say i f  there  was no  

overs ta tement  o f  revenue or  unders ta tement  o f  revenue,  

we wou ld  no t  have entered in to  th i s  re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  accept  tha t ,  Ms Kwinana.   Do you 

accept  tha t  tha t  your  daughter  m isrepresented to  PwC by  

f i ve  t imes the  re levant  annua l  tu rnover  fo r  tha t  year? 

MS KWINANA:    I  cannot  conf i rm tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You cannot .  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So i f  I  show you the  tax  re turn  w i l l  you  

be ab le  to?  

MS KWINANA:    I  w i l l  s t i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  conf i rm i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you cannot  conf i rm.   I f  I  show you  
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the  tax  re turn  i t  shows 10 mi l l ion  and I  have shown you an  

emai l  in  wh ich  your  daughter  communica ted  50  mi l l ion .   

You w i l l  no t  conf i rm tha t  she mis rep resented the  pos i t ion  

f i ve  t imes to  PwC? 

MS KWINANA:    I  w i l l  no t  conf i rm,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  say tha t?   You 

wou ld  have a l l  the  fac ts  in  f ron t  o f  you.  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  have,  Cha i r,  to  conduct  my own 

independent  aud i t  and then come back to  the  Commiss ion  

and conf i rm but ,  as  I  am s i t t ing  here ,  I  am not  go ing  to  10 

conf i rm tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  bu t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  in fo rmat ion  re f lec ted  in  the  tax  

document  wou ld  i t  no t  be  the  cor rec t  in fo rmat ion?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  have to  conduct  my own 

invest iga t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  m ight  no t  be  necessar i l y  the  

cor rec t  in fo rmat ion ,  the  one in  the  tax  document .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  may have to  conduct  my own 

invest iga t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  I  am ask ing ,  the  tax  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  you have put  in to  the   -  you have g iven to  SARS,  

wou ld  i t  no t  be  the  co r rec t  in fo rmat ion?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  have to  recheck i t ,  Cha i r,  because  

a lso ,  even w i th  SARS,  fo r  ins tance,  you may put  some 
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inco r rec t  in fo rmat ion ,  you may have omi t ted  someth ing  and 

there fo re  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  I  am not  go ing  to  conf i rm,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  leave out  the  f i ve  t imes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  you not  concede tha t  what  your  

daughte r  –  the  in fo rmat ion  she gave was not  cor rec t  in  

te rms o f  the  tu rnover  o f  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  and tha t  

t ime?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  be fore  I  say  the  i n fo rmat ion  tha t  10 

she submi t ted  i s  cor rec t  o r  incor rec t ,  I  wou ld  have to  be  

g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  go  and aud i t .   I  do  no t  want  to  say 

i t  i s  cor rec t  o r  incor rec t ,  I  am say ing  I  need to  go  and aud i t  

be fore  I  can answer  th is  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  she sa id  50  mi l l ion ,  

tha t  does not  sound to  you l i ke  tha t  cannot  be  t rue?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r ,  I  need an oppor tun i ty  to  go  and do  

my own ver i f i ca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you d id  no t  make sure  when the  tax  20 

re turn  was submi t ted  a t  the  t ime tha t  the  requ is i te  

check ing  had been done?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r ,  I  am go ing  to  go  and do  my own 

ver i f i ca t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana,  tha t  was not  my quest ion .   
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My quest ion  was,  a t  the  t ime tha t  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  

to ld  the  South  A f r i can revenue  Serv ice  tha t  i ts  annua l  

tu rnover  fo r  tha t  year  was R10 567 581,  d id  you no t  check  

tha t  be fore  you submi t ted  the  tax  re turn?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  submi t  the  tax  re turns  fo r  

myse l f ,  I  do  no t  do  the  tax  re turns fo r  myse l f .   I  do  check 

the  tax  re turns ,  however ,  I  am say ing  I  need to  go  and  

aud i t  and conf i rm  i f  the  f igure  tha t  i s  s ta ted  here  is  cor rec t  

o r  the  f igure  tha t  i s  s ta ted  in  the  tax  re turn  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why d id  you not  check be fore  today?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  those documents  no t  have 

someth ing  tha t  says I  cer t i f y  tha t  the  above in fo rmat ion  is  

cor rec t?   And is  i t  no t  s igned by  her?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Th is  one is  no t ,  i t  i s  an  e lec t ron ic  f i l i ng .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  –  oh  we have –  th is  i s  someth ing  we  

have encounte red before ,  we have to  go  and check,  who  

was the  Kwinana  and Assoc ia tes  rep resenta t i ve  fo r  SARS 

purposes?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  have to  go  check and phone them 20 

and f ind  ou t  who was the  represen ta t i ve  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cou ld  i t  have been you?  

MS KWINANA:    I  cou ld  have been me,  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed because tha t  i s  the  pe rson who  

dec lares ,  Cha i r .   But  le t  us  leave the  po in t .   I  see  tha t  Ms 
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Kwinana  is  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  con f i rm fo r  us  today tha t  her  

daughte r  made a  m isrep resenta t ion   in  tha t  emai l .   How 

wou ld  your  daugh ter  have come to  tha t  50  m i l l ion  f igure?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  one o f  the  

th ings tha t  I  wou ld  have to  aud i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am sure  tha t  i s  someth ing  tha t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry ,  Ms Mban jwa has got… 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh,  sor ry .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa?  10 

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i rperson,  a l l  the  same,  I  am a  b i t  

puzz led  w i th  th is  l ine  o f  ques t ion ing  inso far  as  the  

daughte r  i s  supposed to  have misrepresented the  fac ts ,  

Cha i r .   I  jus t  want  to  ge t  conf i rmat ion  tha t  Ms Ho fmeyr  i s  

s t i l l  work ing  w i th in  the  mandate  o f  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  sure ly  she  is .   Yes,  go  ahead,  Ms 

Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.    

MS MBANJWA:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And jus t  in  te rms o f  you r  ea rn ing  ou t  o f  20 

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  fo r  the  per iod  dur ing  wh ich  you  

d id  the  jo in t  bus iness work ,  do  you have any idea o f  how 

much you persona l ly  der ived f rom Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  

over  tha t  year?   That  i s  December  2014 to  December  2015.  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  have an idea.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    We prov ided in  your  bund le  a l l  o f  your  

persona l  bank account  records  fo r  th is  pe r iod  because i t  

was impor tan t  fo r  us  to  es tab l i sh  no t  on ly  tha t  Kwinana and 

Assoc ia tes  had der i ved benef i t  f rom th is  re la t ionsh ip  bu t  

a lso  to  g ive  some quant i f i ca t ion  o f  the  mon ies  tha t  came 

f rom Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  to  you and we ca lcu la ted  tha t  

a t  about  1 .5  m i l l ion  fo r  tha t  per iod .   Does tha t  sound about  

r igh t  to  you?  

MS KWINANA:    I  a lso  cannot  conf i rm,  Cha i r ,  I  need to  

check.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in ly .   Wel l ,  i f  a t  any po in t  you want  

to  d ispute  tha t ,  you do have the  reco rds,  you can do the  

pa ins tak ing  ca l cu la t ion  tha t  we d id  and cer ta in ly ,  Cha i r ,  I  

wou ld  inv i te  Ms Kwinana to  g i ve  us  a  fu r ther  submiss ion  i f  

she  th inks  ou r  ca l cu la t ion  is  wrong.  

MS KWINANA:    Where  is  tha t  –  where  is  your  ca lcu la t ion?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  in  your  bund le  and i t  i s  jus t  a  ser ies  

o f  bank s ta tements  f rom December  2014 to  December  

2015.  

MS KWINANA:    Oh,  so  i t  i s  in  the  bank s ta tements?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   Okay.   A l r igh t ,  now Nkonk i  –  I  am 

so c lose  to  the  end I  am get t ing  exc i ted .   Now Nkonki  you  

a lso  had a  jo in t  because re la t ionsh ip  w i th ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And there ,  as  I  have i t ,  be tween 
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September  o f  2015 and Ju ly  o f  2016 there  was work  tha t  

you d id  together  a t  Transnet  and Eskom and Kwinana and  

Assoc ia tes  was pa id  about  850 000.   Does accord  w i th  your  

reco l lec t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   But  the re  was a lso  a  pa r t i cu la r  

payment  tha t  Nkonk i  made to  Kw inana and Assoc ia tes  in  

August  o f  2015.   Now I  jus t  want  to  pause there  fo r  a  

moment .   Remember  we looked a t  the  28  September  2015 

board  m inutes  a  moment  ago?  Remember  I  sa id  t ha t  was 10 

an impor tan t  day because a  lo t  was happen ing  on tha t  day 

in  the  board .   You were  dec id ing  to  cance l  the  LSG Sky  

Chefs  award ,  you were  cu t t ing  the  CEO’s  de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y  and we saw you were  dec id ing  to  g ive  the  who le  

aud i t  work ,  a l l  o f  the  aud i t  work  t o  Nkonk i .   Do you reca l l  

look ing  a t  those minutes  a  moment  ago?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  tha t  i s  28  September  2015 and 

a  month  be fore  tha t  there  is  a  payment  tha t  i s  made to  

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  in  a  round f igure  o f  R300 000.   Do  20 

you have any knowledge about  tha t  payment?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r  and in  fac t  tha t  payment  f rom 

Nkonk i  was go ing  together  w i th  o ther  payments  f rom the  

o ther  aud i t  f i rm.   What  happened,  there  was a  fundra i s ing  

event  where  you wou ld  buy cab les ,  depend ing  on the  
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money tha t  you want  to  buy the  tab les  depend ing  on the  

prox im i ty  o f  the  person or  the  key person in  the  fundra i s ing  

event .   So tha t  money f rom Nkonk i  was not  the  on ly  money  

tha t  we rece ived,  we a l so  rece ived  monies  f rom o ther  aud i t  

f i rms.   You may have seen the  who le  lo t  o f  o ther  mon ies  

tha t  was the  fundra is ing  event .   So bas ica l l y  the  aud i t  

f i rms were  buy ing  the  tab les  fo r  the  fundra is ing  event .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  was the  fundra is ing  event?  

MS KWINANA:    The fundra is ing  event  was fo r  the  Jacob 

Zuma Foundat ion  who was the  Pres ident  a t  the  t ime.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you were  do ing  fundra i s ing  as  

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  fo r  the  Jacob Zuma Founda t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  sor ry.   

MS KWINANA:    The foundat ion  was do ing  the  fundra is ing .   

I  was …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  donat ing?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.   Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  a l so  

donated …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS KWINANA:    And the  b lack  aud i t  f i rms a l so  donated.   

So Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  was do ing  the  fundra i s ing  

event  and the  aud i to rs  were  buy ing  the  tab les  bu t  now 

because we –  l ike  we do not  have a  conso l ida ted  bank  

account  and there fore  i t  was dec ided by  the  B lack  F i rms  
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Forum –  we  ca l led  ourse l ves B lack  F i rms Forum or  ABA 

SA’s  Pract i t ione rs  Forum,  so  i t  was dec ided tha t  the  money  

w i l l  be  depos i ted  –  the  mon ies  w i l l  be  depos i ted  to  me and  

I  wou ld  pay the  money to  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  fo r  the 

tab les  tha t  were  have pu rchased,  so  tha t  was the  reason 

fo r  the  money.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you .   I  apprec ia te  tha t  

exp lanat ion .   I t  i s  d i f fe ren t  to  the  exp lanat ion  tha t  Ms 

Masasa was ab le  to  ge t  f rom the  then CEO of  Nkonk i .   She  

–  bu t  i t  i s  no t  –  in  fa i rness to  you,  Ms Kwinana,  i t  i s  no t  10 

vast ly  d i f fe ren t  f rom yours .   What  t roub led  us  about  the  

exp lanat ion  we got  f rom Nkonk i  i s  tha t  they sa id  i t  was a  

subscr ip t ion  fee  tha t  Nkonk i  was pay ing  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  

APS.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  there  was a l so  a  subscr ip t ion 

fee .   There  was a  subscr ip t ion  fee  where  a l l  the  f i rms were  

pu t  in  togethe r  and then in  add i t ion  to  the  subscr ip t ion  fee 

there  was a lso  now the  ac tua l  money fo r  the  tab les .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  I  unders tand tha t  because  we then  

invest iga ted  th is  who le  APF and the  fund and we  20 

uncovered tha t  there  was no such fund a t  the  t ime.   Were  

you jus t  us ing  tha t  te rm loose ly?  

MS KWINANA:    Me?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes when you sa id  now tha t  i t  was the  

APF because we then went  to  ABA SA’s  Pract i t ioners  Fund 
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and we found tha t  they were  dereg is te red before  th is  

payment  was made.   So was th is  some o ther  a r rangement  

tha t  a rose out  o f  i t?  

MS KWINANA:   I  sa id  the  B lack  F i rms Forum which  used to  

be  APF before .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   So in  fac t  a lso  the  B lack  F i rms  

Forum is  no t  a  reg is te red name,  so  to  say,  you w i l l  no t  go  

to  the  CIPC and check the  B lack  F i rms Forum.   That  i s  how 

we ca l l  ourse lves  as  the  advocacy group o f  the  b lack  f i rms.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  unders tand.   I  unders tand,  thank you  

fo r  tha t .   R igh t ,  then I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  go  to  two f ina l  

smal l  mat te rs  be fore  conc lud ing  aspects ,  Ms Kwinana,  and 

these pa r ts  a re  go ing  to  be  re levant  to  ev idence  tha t  we  

t raversed w i th  Ms Myen i .   I  unders tand f rom Ms Mban jwa 

tha t  you may not  have fo l lowed tha t  c lose ly  bu t  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  re la ted  to  mat te rs  tha t  you were  asked about  in  

your  Regu la t ion  10 .6  d i rec t i ve .    

 The f i rs t  one re la tes  to  the  a l legat ion ,  I  w i l l  pu t  i t  

b road ly,  tha t  Ms Myen i  used to  p repare  fa lse  wh is t l e  b lower  20 

repor ts  and you were  asked in  your  10 .6  d i rec t i ve  to  te l l  

the  Cha i rperson and the  Commiss ion  your  knowledge about  

tha t  and le t  us  take  you to  what  you sa id ,  i f  we can?  That  

i s  in  your  a f f idav i t  be fore  the  Commiss ion  in  response to  

the  10 .6  d i rec t i ve .   So you need  to  go  to  DD33 and i t  i s  
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page 5  o f  DD33.   Now we asked in  the  10 .6  d i rec t i ve ,  the  

Cha i rperson asked fo r  you to  address the  a l legat ions tha t  

Ms Duduz i le  Myen i  –  I  am a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 5  p repared  

fa lse  wh is t le  b lower  repor ts  aga ins t  employees and  

management  o f  SAA whom she w ished to  remove and your  

response to  tha t  in  your  a f f idav i t  i s :  

“ I  have no way  o f  knowing whether  the  wh is t le  

b lower  repor ts  a l leged ly  p repared  by  Ms Myen i  a re  

fa lse  or  no t . ”  

I s  tha t  you r  ev idence tha t  you –  you do not  know whethe r  10 

the  repor ts  a l leged ly  p repared by  her  a re  fa lse  o r  no t?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  Ms …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  is  t he  quest ion  o f  knowing  

whethe r  the  repor ts  she prepared were  fa lse  o r  no t .   There  

is  the  quest ion  whether  you have knowledge tha t  she 

prepared cer ta in  repor t s .   Which  one o f  the  two do you  

know,  wh ich  one do you not  know? 

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know any one o f  them,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  Ms Nhants i  –  do  you know Ms 

Phumeza Nhants i?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you fo l low her  ev idence before  the  

Commiss ion?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  she sa id  –  and I  am jus t  go ing  to  

quote  now f rom her  a f f idav i t .    Cha i r,  i t  i s  one paragraph,  I  

do  no t  th ink  we need to  go  there  bu t  fo r  reco rds  i t  i s  DD2 

page 22,  paragraph 71.   I f  you  want  to  go  there ,  Ms  

Kwinana,  we w i l l .   Bu t  le t  me read i t  in ,  i t  i s  jus t  her  

account .   She sa id  -  oh ,  apo log ies ,  DD2 a t  page 22  

paragraph 71.    You see we asked Ms Nans i  the  same 

quest ion  and in  her  a f f idav i t  she sa id :  

“Ms Yakhe Kwinana w i l l  be  the  r igh t  person to  10 

address th is  as  she was the  one  who in fo rmed us  

about  Ms Myen i  a lso  go ing  to  the  in te rnet  ca fe ,  

d isgu ises as  ano ther  pe rson and send ing  damning  

wh is t leb lower  repor ts  about  anyone she wanted out  

o f  the  way.    

A f te r  the  wh is t le  b lowing repor ts  she wou ld  

pressur i se  S iyaku la  Vi lakad i ,  the  in te rna l  Ch ie f  

Aud i t  &  R isk  to  i nvest iga te  those imp l ica ted  in  the  

repor t  o r  ins t ruc t  h im to  appo in t  one o f  the  f i rms,  

fo r  example  EY or  ENS to  invest iga te  whoever  was  20 

ment ioned in  the  repor t .     

A f te r  a l l  the  invest iga t ions she wou ld  push fo r  those 

peop le  to  be  suspended and d ismissed. ”  

Now tha t  i s  Ms Nans i ’s  account  o f  someth ing  you to ld  he r.   

Do you conf i rm tha t  you to ld  her  tha t?    
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MS KWINANA:    No Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You don ’ t?   So is  she jus t  mak ing  th is  

up?  

MS KWINANA:    She is  mak ing  i t  up  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you remember  say ing  the  same th ing  

a t  an  in te rv iew wi th  OUTA abou t  e igh t  days a f te r  you 

res igned f rom SAA? 

MS KWINANA:    I  remember  hav ing  an  in te rv iew Cha i r  and  

I  don ’ t  remember  say ing  tha t  Ms Myen i  d id  p repare  fa lse  

wh is t leb lower  repor ts .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  do  you remember  say ing  to  them 

on th is  top i c?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  have to  ge t  the  –  I  wou ld  have to  

ge t  the  t ransc r ip t ion  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay  but  as  you s i t  here  now can you 

jus t  he lp  me wi th  your  memory,  what  do  you remember  

hav ing  sa id  on  th is  top ic?  

MS KWINANA:    I  remember  cha i r  about  the  wh is t leb lower  

repor ts  and bas ica l l y  tha t  i s  a l l  I  remember  tha t  we  used to  

rece ive  a  lo t  o f  wh is t leb lower  repor ts  f rom the  Ho t l ine  or  20 

f rom Ms Myen i  herse l f  and she  wou ld  bas ica l l y  ge t  the  

Whis t leb lower  repor t s  f rom the  peop le ,  o ther  peop le  wou ld  

re fer  to  g ive  he r  the  in fo rmat ion ,  bas i ca l l y.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  they –  i t  was the i r  in fo rmat ion  and 

then they wou ld  g ive  the  Whis t leb lower  repor ts  to  her,  i s  
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tha t  what  you r  unders tand ing  was?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay tha t  wou ld  tend to  ind ica te  tha t  

there  was noth ing  fa lse ,  tha t  exp lanat ion  says the re  is  a  

genu ine  wh is t leb lower,  they have  got  the i r  fac ts  bu t  fo r  

some reason they  want  to  ge t  them to Ms Myen i  ra ther  than  

put  them through  the  anonymous sys tem tha t  was crea ted,  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay so  in  tha t  scenar io  t here  wou ldn ’ t  10 

be  any reason to  suspect  them be ing  fa lse ,  do  you  accept  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r,  tha t ’s  why Cha i r  I  am say ing  I  

have no knowledge i f  the  Whis t leb lower  repor ts  were  t rue  

or  fa lse .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And is  tha t  what  you reca l l  hav ing  

conveyed to  OUTA a t  tha t  meet ing?   

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  now tha t  meet ing  as  I  unders tand i t  

was you had requested to  meet  w i th  OUTA is  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then they subsequent ly,  there  was a  

second meet ing  tha t  was a  fo l low up meet ing ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why d id  you request  to  meet  w i th  OUTA? 
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MS KWINANA:    The reason why I  wanted to  meet  them,  to  

meet  w i th  OUTA is  because they wanted to  make an 

app l i ca t ion  fo r  me,  o r  a lso  myse l f  to  be  dec lared a  

de l inquent  d i rec tor  so  the  reason  why I  went  to  them,  in  

fac t  I  was adv ised by  one o f  my  lawyer  f r iends to  say I  

need to  go  to  them so tha t  I  can c lear  the  th ings tha t  they 

may have aga ins t  me,  and in  fac t  I  managed to  c lear  the  

who le  lo t  o f  wrong in fo rmat ion  tha t  they had aga ins t  me,  so  

i t  was a  good th ing  tha t  I  d id  go  and c lear  i t  w i th  them,  and  

in  fac t  I  to ld  them tha t  the  reason why I  am go ing  to  them 10 

is  no t  because I  w i l l  be  dec la red a  de l i nquent  d i rec to r,  the  

reason why I  am go ing  there  is  tha t  o f  course  I  wou ld  have 

to  p ro tec t  myse l f  lega l l y,  bu t  the  reason why I  am go ing  to  

OUTA is  because  I  w i l l  no t  have money to  i ncur  t he  lega l  

cos ts  to  ge t  to  the  end resu l t ,  wh ich  end resu l t  I  know tha t  

I  am not  go ing  to  be  dec la red a  de l inquent  d i rec tor.   That  

was the  reason why I  went  there .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  unders tand.    Now Ms Kwinana we  

prev ious l y  had ev idence admi t ted  on  a f f idav i t  in  Ms Nans i ’s  

case when she  gave ev idence  f rom OUTA and OUTA 20 

conf i rmed tha t  you het  met  w i th  them and every th ing  you 

have sa id  now is  cons is ten t ,  tha t  you ca l led  fo r  the  f i rs t  

meet ing ,  tha t  there  was a  fo l low up meet ing ,  bu t  they had 

long record ings f rom the  meet ing  and they had –  bu t  the  

they had a  summary,  the i r  own summary o f  i t ,  in  wh ich  
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the i r  summary records  tha t  you to ld  them someth ing  very  

d i f fe ren t  to  what  you have tes t i f ied  about  today.    They 

sa id  a t  tha t  meet ing  you to ld  them tha t  Ms Myen i  used to  

pu t  in  fa lse  wh is t leb lower  repor ts ,  does not  jog  your  

memory.  

MS KWINANA:    I  am sure  they m isunders tood me Cha i r,  

maybe I  wanted to  say someth ing  bu t  now because I  sa id  i t  

in  Eng l ish  the  i t  los t  the  mean ing  because I  speak  Xhosa 

f luent ly.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  as  you s i t  here  today you can 10 

conf ident ly  say  you d id  no t  convey to  them tha t  Ms Myen i  

wou ld  pu t  fa lse  in fo rmat ion ,  incor rec t  in fo rmat ion  in  

Whis t leb lower  repor t s  tha t  she p repared,  cor rec t?   

MS KWINANA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  you see I  am somet imes ab le  to  

an t ic ipa te  what  –  based on what  you have to ld  us  and our  

invest iga t ions are  l i ke ly  to  be  the  approach you take  in  the  

ev idence.   On th is  one I  thought  you might  say  someth ing  

l i ke  tha t ,  so  what  we d id  i s  we went  and got  the  record ings  

f rom OUTA and we had them t ranscr ibed,  so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  20 

hand up those  t ranscr ip t ions .   We d idn ’ t  have them 

prev ious ly,  and I  have to  te l l  you  I  am go ing  to  ask  you 

about  two aspects  o f  OUTA,  tha t  OUTA in te rv iew,  and I  can  

te l l  you  Cha i r  we have managed  in  the  t ime ava i lab le  to  

t ranscr ibe  one bu t  no t  the  o the r,  we do have the  record ing  



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 227 of 243 
 

o f  the  o ther  bu t  a l l  I  can  show Ms Kwinana today  is  the 

t ranscr ip t ion  o f  the  one dea l ing  w i th  wh is t leb lowers .  

 So i f  I  can  hand  tha t  in  and copy cer ta in ly  a lso  to  

Ms Mban jwa,  and to  apo log i se  fo r  tha t  e r ro r  ear l ie r.    

Thank you.   Have I  g iven you the  wrong one,  sor ry,  there  

you go.   Cha i r  i f  I  can  request  tha t  we enter  th is  as  Exh ib i t  

DD33A,  no t  there ’s  no  A ,  I  have made tha t  e r ro r,  DD33.26.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say 53?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No 33.  

CHAIRPERSON:    33?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes thank goodness we are  no t  f i l e  53 .   

CHAIRPERSON:    33  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes po in t  26 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    26 .   The t ransc r ip t  o f  a  meet ing  w i th  Ms 

Yakhe Kwinana a t  OUTA o f f i ces ,  Johannesburg ,  30  August  

2016 w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT DD33.26.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So there ’s  –  i t  i s  a  very  lengthy  

record ing ,  what  we d id  was we ex t rac ted  tha t  par t  tha t  

dea l t  w i th  the  Whis t leb lower  d iscuss ion  and i f  you  tu rn  to  

page 3  o f  10  you w i l l  see  tha t  t ha t  i s  where  i t  i s  –  sor ry  20 

in te rna l  page 3  o f  10 ,  do  you have tha t  Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay so  th is  i s  the  sect ion  o f  the  

Whis t leb lower  d i scuss ion  and Ivan s ta r ts  speak ing  and  

then Ms Kwinana and then there ’s  anothe r  person 
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ident i f ied  as  Rethab i le  and what  happens is  th i s  i s  where  

the  top ic  o f  the  wh is t leb lower  d iscuss ion  is  be ing  

in t roduced and there ’s  an  issue tha t  occurs  where  peop le  

are  ta l k ing  about  them fee l ing  a  b i t  scared ac tua l l y  and i f  

you go over  the  page to  page 4  o f  10  you w i l l  see  there  

Ivan says,  in  the  4 t h  l ine ,  

“ I  have death  th rea ts ,  I  have  rece ived death  

th rea ts . ”  

And then Ms Kwinana you say the  fo l low ing:  

“One o f  the  reasons why I  am scared is  tha t  I  do  no t  10 

know the  powers  tha t  be  beyond,  bu t  the  o ther  

reason is  t ha t  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  b r i ng  a  proof  l i ke  fo r  

ins tance Dudu has got  he r  h i t  l i s t  o f  peop le  tha t  she  

wants  to  remove and br ing  her  own peop le .   We’ve  

go t  tha t  and how she opera tes .    How she opera tes ,  

she w i l l  go  to  in te rne t  ca fe  and wr i te  whatever  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  she knows are  cor rec t  and incor rec t  

in fo rmat ion  and  then she w i l l  emai l  i t  to  SAA 

Whis t leb lower  f rom the  in te rnet  ca fe . ”  

And then Ivan says:  20 

“Which  in fo rmat ion?”  

And you say:  

“L ike  fo r  ins tance  –  l i ke  fo r  ins tance she w i l l  wr i te ,  

okay le t  me make an example ,  she w i l l  go  to  

in te rne t  ca fe  wha tever  she knows about  me,  she w i l l  
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the  cor rec t  in fo rmat ion  together  w i th  the  incor rec t  

in fo rmat ion  and now okay i f  I  am an SAA employee  

she w i l l  send tha t  to  Whis t leb lower  tha t  i s  how she  

opera tes ,  she w i l l  send tha t  to  Whis t leb lower  and 

a f te r  send ing  i t  to  Whis t leb lower. ”  

Ms Kwinana tha t  I  pu t  to  you is  ve ry  d i f fe ren t  to  what  you 

sa id  j us t  now i s  what  you conveyed to  OUTA,  do  you  

accept  tha t  i t  i s  very  d i f fe ren t?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  very  d i f fe ren t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you have any reason to  d ispu te  th is  10 

t ranscr ip t?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  th is  t ranscr ip t  I  see tha t  i t  i s  ed i ted .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    And so  –  and I  d id ,  I  was not  tak ing  the  

m inutes  myse l f  and there fo re  I  w i l l  de f in i te ly  no t  be  ab le  to  

conf i rm wi th  cer ta in ty  i f  th is  i s  what  was d i scussed,  bu t  

what  I  am say ing  is  I  w i l l  no t  be  in  a  pos i t ion  as  I  sa id 

be fore ,  I  w i l l  no t  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  know i f  the  

wh is t leb lower  i s  t rue  o r  fa lse .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but  tha t  i s  no t  what  . . . [ in te rvenes]  –  20 

sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  le t ’s  s ta r t  here ,  you have accepted  

tha t  what  you have sa id  about  what  you know wi th  regard  

to  Ms Myen i ’s  connect ion  w i th  wh is t leb lowers  repor ts  i s  

d i f fe ren t  f rom what  i s  sa id  here ,  wh ich  one is  t rue ,  i s  i t  
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what  you sa id  ea r l ie r  on  he re  or  i s  i t  what  i s  re f lec ted  he re ,  

wh ich  one is  t rue? 

MS KWINANA:    Th is  i s  what  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  here  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  i s  t rue?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you say ing  tha t  you never  sa id  what  

i s  re f lec ted  he re  when you met  w i th  OUTA? 

MS KWINANA:    I  may have sa id  i t  Cha i r  no t  want ing  to  

convey the  message as  i t  i s .   As  I  was say ing  maybe i f  I  

was in te rv iewed by  OUTA in  Xhosa I  wou ld  be  in  a  pos i t ion  10 

to  a r t i cu la te  myse l f  and re f lec t  what  I  have jus t  sa id  in  th is  

Commiss ion  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No Ms Kwinana  p lease,  I  have l i s tened  

to  you speak ing  Eng l ish  on  Monday,  Tuesday and  today,  

you speak Eng l ish  very  we l l ,  I  unders tand what  you are  

say ing ,  I  don ’ t  have a  prob lem,  I  th inks  Ms Hofmeyr  

unders tands you.   We unders tand you and when we  speak 

to  you,  you unders tand us ,  i t  cannot  be  a  quest ion  o f  

language.   I t  can ’ t  be .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  i t  cou ld  be  a  quest ion  o f  language,  20 

a lso  in  th is  Commiss ion .   Ms Ho fmeyr  has been ask ing ,  

inc lud ing  you Cha i r,  many t imes i f  I  head Ms Hofmeyr,  i f  I  

unders tood what  she was t ry ing  to  say.   You w i l l  be  

exp la in ing  Cha i r  a  who le  lo t  o f  t imes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  I  don ’ t  th ink  i t  i s  because o f  the  
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language,  i t  has  no t  been because o f  the  language,  your  

command o f  Eng l ish  i s  ve ry  good ,  your  unders tand ing  o f  

Eng l ish  when somebody e lse  is  speak ing  Eng l ish  i s  very  

good.     

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  be tween th is  record ing ,  OUTA 

record ing ,  and what  I  have jus t  sa id  in  th is  Commiss ion  I  

s tand by  what  I  have sa id  in  th is  Commiss ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  then –  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  i t ’s  f ine .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Then I  wou ld  l i ke  to  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  10 

you went  to  OUTA wi th  an  in ten t ion  to  t ry  and avo id  be ing  

one o f  the  de fendants  in  the  de l inquent  d i rec to r  app l i ca t ion  

tha t  they were  cons ide r ing  br ing ing  and then sa id  

someth ing  fa lse  to  them about  Ms Myen i  to  t ry  and put  

yourse l f  in  a  good l igh t  to  avo id  tha t ,  what  i s  your  

response?  

MS KWINANA:   I  don ’ t  th ink  the  reason fo r  me to  be  

exc luded in  the  app l i ca t ion  is  because  o f  the 

wh is t leb lowers ,  i t  i s  because o f  the  c la r i f i ca t ion  o f  the 

inco r rec t  th ings tha t  they heard  about  me,  l i ke  fo r  ins tance  20 

one o f  them was BNP Cap i ta l  where  they were  th ink ing  tha t  

I  knew who the  d i rec to rs  o f  BNP Cap i ta l  because the  

d i rec tor  o f  BNP Cap i ta l  i s  a  co-d i rec tor  in  another  company  

w i th  my cous in ’s  b ro the r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  Ms . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MS KWINANA:   So bas ica l l y  those are  the  th ings tha t  they 

had mis in fo rmat ion  about .   I  don ’ t  th ink  they are  reason fo r  

them to  exc lude me is  because o f  my lack  o f  Eng l i sh .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  no  Ms Kwinana tha t  i s  no t  what  I  

was say ing  a t  a l l .   I  am not  ac tua l l y  ask ing  you about  the i r  

reason,  you cou ld  never  know the i r  reason,  I  am ask ing  

about  what  you went  there  to  ach ieve,  because what  has 

been revea led  now is  tha t  there ’s  a  t ranscr ip t  o f  a  meet ing  

tha t  you had w i th  OUTA,  e igh t  days a f te r  you le f t  SAA,  in  

wh ich  you on two occas ions make i t  very  c lea r  tha t  what  10 

Ms Myen i  was inc lud ing  in  these wh is t leb lower  repor ts  was  

“ incor rec t  in fo rmat ion” ,  you say in  your  ev idence today tha t  

i s  fa lse ,  tha t  you  d id  no t  say  tha t ,  and tha t  you have not  

ever  I  unders tand your  ev idence to  be  had tha t  knowledge  

tha t  she was do ing  th ings  and pu t t ing  fa lse  in fo rmat ion  in  

Whis t leb lower  repor t s ,  bu t  i f  tha t  is  the  t ru th  then I  pu t  i t  to  

you,  you –  your  mot iva t ion  fo r  t hen mak ing  up what  is  

fa lse ,  a  l ie ,  served your  in te res t s  because i t  pu ts  you as  an  

adversary  to  he r,  pa in ted  he r  in  a  worse  l igh t  so  tha t  you  

cou ld  escape be ing  one o f  the  de fendants  in  the  de l inquent  20 

d i rec tor  app l i ca t ion .  

 I f  tha t  i s  no t  i t  Ms Kwinana how e l se  do  you exp la in  

i f  th is  i s  accu ra te  the  l ie  tha t  l ies  he re .   You were  then 

ly ing  tha t  she  used incor rec t  in fo rmat ion  in  the 

Whis t leb lower  repor t s .  
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MS KWINANA:    Le t  me respond Cha i r  fo r  the  las t  t ime.   I  

am say ing  th is  document  you have jus t  conf i rmed tha t  i t  i s  

ed i ted ,  tha t  i s  number  one,  and number  two you have 

asked me tha t  be tween what  I  have sa id  here  and what  i s  

in  th is  document  wh ich  s ta tement  do  I  s tand fo r,  I  am 

say ing  Cha i r  fo r  the  las t  t ime I  am s tand ing  by  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  have sa id  in  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  i t  were  to  be  found tha t  you d id  

ac tua l l y  say  wha t  i s  re f lec ted  here  wou ld  you ag ree tha t  

then i f  what  you have to ld  us  i s  t rue ,  namely  tha t  you don ’ t  10 

know whethe r  Ms Myen i  was invo lved in  p repar ing  fa lse  

repor ts  w i l l  you  not  accept  tha t  then  you were  un t ru th fu l  

when you spoke to  OUTA i f  i t  were  to  be  found tha t  you d id  

say th is?  

MS KWINANA:   Chai r  you know wi thout  f i rs t l y  I  wasn ’ t  

even in fo rmed tha t  I  am recorded  and second ly  he re  I  am 

speak ing  under  oa th ,  there  was no oath  here  Cha i r,  and 

there fo re  when you say be tween what  I  am say ing  here  

today and what  i s  s ta ted  here  I  am say ing  Cha i r  I  s tand by  

what  we have heard  here  be fore .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  tha t  does not  answer  my  

quest ion .   The fac t  tha t  you may not  have been speak ing  

under  oa th  a t  OUTA o f f i ces  cannot  change whether  what  

you sa id  i s  t rue  or  no t  i s  i t?   Even i f  –  in  o ther  words 

someth ing  doesn ’ t  become t rue  on ly  because you a re  under  
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oa th .   When you are  no t  under  oa th  you can te l l  someth ing  

tha t  –  you can be unt ru th fu l  o r  you can be t ru th fu l .   Now 

my quest ion  to  you was i f  i t  were  to  be  found tha t  you d id  

says th is  a t  OUTA as re f lec ted  here ,  bu t  now you a re  

say ing  tha t  i s  no t  t rue ,  what  i s  t rue  tha t  you do not  know 

anyth ing  about  Ms Myen i  mak ing  fa lse  wh is t leb lower  

repor ts ,  wou ld  you accept  tha t  you were  there fo re  

un t ru th fu l  when you sa id  th is  to  OUTA,  i f  i t  i s  found tha t  

you d id  say th is?  

MS KWINANA:   Chai r  th is  OUTA repor t ,  th is  repor t ,  as  I  10 

sa id  i t  i s  ed i ted ,  tha t  i s  number  one,  number  two Cha i r  th is  

repor t  I  was never  in fo rmed tha t  I  am be ing  reco rded,  and 

th i rd ly  Cha i r  I  was never  in fo rmed tha t  th is  repor t  w i l l  be 

used aga ins t  me in  any fo rum and  there fore  Cha i r  I  do  no t  

recogn ise  th is  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have asked you the  same quest ion  two  

t imes,  and each t ime you have not  answered the  quest ion .   

I  am go ing  to  ask  i t  fo r  the  th i rd  t ime and the  las t  t ime,  and 

see whether  you  are  go ing  to  g i ve  me an answer.   The 

quest ion  is  i f  i t  were  to  be  found  tha t  you d id  say  what  i s  20 

re f lec ted  in  th is  repor t  and now g iven the  ev idence tha t  

you have now g iven here  wou ld  you accept  tha t  there fore  i t  

wou ld  mean tha t  you were  un t ru th fu l  in  what  you  sa id  to  

OUTA about  Ms Myen i?  

MS KWINANA:   Chai r  I  beg not  to  answer  tha t  ques t ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  have a  r igh t  no t  to  answer  the  

quest ion  Ms Kwinana,  bu t  we are  go ing  to  move ahead,  th is  

does not  do   you any good Ms Kwinana,  i t  does not  do  you 

any good.   Cont inue Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r  I  rea l l y  don ’ t  want  to  

take  more  t ime,  i f  we had t ime I  wou ld  suggest  tha t  we p lay  

the  reco rd ing  bu t  I  am not  go ing  to  suggest  we do tha t  

now,  we have been here  the  who le  day.   What  I  want  to  

p ropose is  tha t  we g ive  Ms Kwinana the  record ing  and she  

l i s tens to  i t ,  she  gets  he r  own t ransc r ibe r  and i f  there  i s  10 

any par t  o f  th is  t ranscr ip t  tha t  she says is  inaccura te  she 

cou ld  le t  us  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  she can do a  supp lementa ry  –  an  

a f f idav i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed because when t ranscr ibers  say  

ed i ted  a t  the  top  i t  means they have gone th rough and they 

have changed scar red  wh ich  appeared w i th  two  r ’s  in to  

scared,  they are  ed i t ing  i t  fo r  ensur ing  tha t  there  are  no  

typograph ica l  e r ro rs ,  they are  no t  ed i t ing  to  change the  

task  wh ich  is  t o  have an accura te  re f lec t ion  o f  the 20 

document ,  bu t  I  can see Ms Kwinana is  no t  comfor tab le  

re ly ing  on  th i s ,  so  we w i l l  make the  reco rd ing  ava i lab le  to  

her  and she can le t  us  now in  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  i f  

she  d isputes  the  t ransc r ip t  tha t  has become EXHIBIT 

ED33.26.     
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 The las t  aspect  o f  you r  in te rv iew there  Ms Kwinana  

is  what  you  had  sa id  about  Ta len te  Myen i ,  Dudu  Myen i ,  

Duduz i lo  Myen i ’s  son,  in  h i s  invo lvement  in  BNP,  do  you  

remember  what  you to ld  OUTA what  i s  Mr  Myen i ’s  

invo l vement  in  BNP? 

MS KWINANA:    No Cha i r  I  don ’ t  remember.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  because your  a f f idav i t  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  –  le t  me jus t  dea l  w i t h  tha t ,  g ive  me a  moment  

–  i t  i s  a t  page 6  o f  Exh ib i t  DD33 ,  you were  asked aga in  

about  the  a l lega t ions tha t  Ms Myen i ’s  son,  Mr  Ta len te  10 

Myen i ,  was in  a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Masotsha Mgad i ,  Mr 

Masotsha Mgad i  was the  person who was invo lved in  BNP,  

d id  you know tha t ,  tha t  Mr  Mgad i  was invo lved in  BNP? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  the  quest ion  was what  do  you  

know about  the  a l legat ions tha t  Ta len te  Myen i  had a  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Masotsha Mgad i  and your  answer  there  

on  a f f idav i t  was  I  have no knowledge o f  the  a l leged  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween Mr  Myen i  and Mr  Mgad i .   So d id  you 

not  te l l  OUTA any th ing  about  tha t  re la t ionsh ip?  20 

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  remember  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay so  you cou ld  have.     

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  know,  I  rea l l y  do  no t  know,  I  don ’ t  

know what  i s  i t  tha t  I  wou ld  have to ld  OUTA because I  

rea l l y  do  no t  know.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you remember  te l l ing  them tha t  you  

had seen Mr  Ta len te  Myen i  and Mr  Masotsha Mgad i  

together  a t  SAA? 

MS KWINANA:    Def in i te ly  no .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you remember  te l l ing  them tha t  they 

are  l i ke ly  –  tha t  they are  assoc ia tes ,  bus iness par tners?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  don ’ t  know tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you remember  te l l ing  them tha t  you  

had seen them in  Sandton togethe r?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  tha t  is  what  appears  in  the  

record ing  o f  the  meet ing  w i th  OUTA.   We d id  no t  ge t  i t  

t ranscr ibed,  there  was insu f f i c i en t  t ime,  we got  the  

record ing ,  we w i l l  p rov ide  i t  to  Ms Kwinana and she can te l l  

us  why today she  conf i rms under  oa th  tha t  she d id  no t  say  

those th ings whereas the  reco rd ing  ind ica tes  tha t  she d id .  

 Cha i r  I  wou ld  then l i ke  to  jus t  go  to  the  conc lud ing  

aspects  i f  I  may,  un less  there  is  someth ing  fu r the r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana we w i l l  make l i ke ly  –  we w i l l  20 

l i ke ly  make submiss ions i n  due course  th rough  the  

Cha i rperson tha t  seek to  summar ise  the  e f fec t  and content  

o f  your  ev idence  over  the  las t  th ree  days,  and th i s  i s  the  

oppor tun i ty  where  I  ind ica te  to  you what  the  submiss ions 

are  l i ke ly  to  be  and you have an oppor tun i ty  to  respond.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe before  you do tha t  Ms Ho fmeyr,  I  

am so r ry,  maybe  I  shou ld  jus t  dea l  w i th  th is  one th ing  

wh ich  cont inues  to  be  a  mat te r  o f  concern  to  me,  w i th  

regard  to  Ms Kwinana ’s  ev idence.    That  i s  about  tha t  

agreement  Ms Kwinana between S l ipknot  and Ms Memela  

and the  fac t  tha t  you gave a  wrong address the re .   I  heard  

you say  someth ing  l i ke  maybe the  reason why you put  a  

wrong address was tha t  you d id  no t  unders tand domic i l ium ,  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r,  p lus  the  fac t  tha t  we have been  10 

there  fo r  many years  and there fo re  bas ica l l y  tha t  i s  what  

wou ld  come to  my mind.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  mean  tha t  be tween 2013 and  

2015 whenever  you were  requ i red  to  wr i te  your  bus iness 

address you wou ld  have wr i t ten  92  Pres ident  Park ,  tha t  i s  

no t  what  you mean,  i s  i t  what  you mean?   I f  we go and  

check a l l  documents  be tween the  t ime when you vacated 

92 Pres ident  Park  and 21 Apr i l  2015 a re  we go ing  to  f ind 

tha t  whenever  you were  requ i red  to  pu t  in  your  bus iness 

address or  S l ipknots  address th is  i s  the  address you  put  a l l  20 

the  t ime?  

MS KWINANA:   Maybe Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You th ink  you may have done tha t?  
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MS KWINANA:  I  may have done tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  bu t  in  tha t  case i t  wou ldn ’ t  have 

been about  domic i l ium  wou ld  i t  have been?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  wou ld  be  the  bus iness address.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  wou ld  be  the  bus iness address Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  wou ld  have been the  bus iness? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  wou ld  be  the  bus iness address.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  your  bus iness wou ld  no t  have 

been opera t ing  f rom tha t  address fo r  qu i te  some t ime isn ’ t  10 

i t?    

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r  bu t  as  I  sa id  I  have been there  

fo r  a  long t ime,  hence I  haven ’ t  even fo rgo t ten  the  

bus iness address  as  i t  i s  now inc lud ing  i t s  posta l  address.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you th ink  you wou ld  have fo rgo t ten  

the  most  recent  address o r  the  cur ren t  address  where  

S l ipknot  was opera t ing  f rom,  and you remember  tha t  o ld  

address?  That  can ’ t  be .  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  poss ib le  Cha i r  because in  2015 I  

th ink  our  –  the  o f f i ces  o f  Kwinana &  Assoc ia tes  the  o f f i ces  20 

o f  Kwinana &  Assoc ia tes  were  in  Lynnwood and S l ipknot  

Investments  the  address tha t  we had been us ing  fo r  

S l ipknot  Investments  i s  the  o ld  address.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  when  Mr  Ndzeku was g iv ing  

ev idence and he had in i t ia l l y  I  th ink  sa id  tha t  the  
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agreement  be tween h imse l f  and Ms Memela ’s  mo ther  had  

been entered in to  in  2015,  when cer ta in  th ings were  

po in ted  out  to  h im by Ms Hofmeyr  he  conceded tha t  tha t  

agreement  cou ld  no t  have been conc luded in  2015,  as  I  

reca l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He conceded tha t  i t  was conc luded in  

2019.   A re  you go ing  to  concede tha t  th is  agreement  cou ld  

no t  have been conc luded in  2015 Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    The agreement  Cha i r  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  one?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  was conc luded in  2015 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   Ms  Kwinana so  I  am go ing  

to  pu t  the  propos i t ions  to  you to  g i ve  you an oppor tun i ty  to  

respond.  We wi l l  l i ke ly  make submiss ions in  due course  

tha t  wh i le  you served a t  the  Board  o f  SAA par t i cu la r l y  

dur ing  the  per iod  la te  2014,  2015 you crea ted a  c l imate  o f  

fear  and in t im ida t ion  in  SAA aga ins t  those who opposed 

you.   Do you d ispute  tha t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    I  d ispute  tha t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You accused those who s tood in  the  way  

o f  the  un lawfu l  30% set  as ide  po l i cy  o f  insubord ina t ion  and 

t reason,  do  you d ispute  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry  what  i s  you r  quest ion  Cha i r?  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    You accused those who d id  no t  –  sor ry  

you accused those who s tood in  the  way o f  the  un lawfu l  

30% set  as ide  po l i cy  o f  insubord ina t ion  and t reason.  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  no t  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You unfa i r l y  favoured AAR and JM 

Av ia t ion  in  the  components  tender,  do  you d ispute  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d ispute  i t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You awarded  a  tender  to  them wor th  

more  than R1b i l l i on  when they shou ld  have  been 

d isqua l i f ied  in  tha t  tender,  do  you accept  tha t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    I  d ispute  i t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You got  payments  fo r  favour ing  them in  

th is  way to  the  tune o f  R4.3mi l l ion ,  do  you d ispute  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d ispute  i t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You rece ived –  sor ry  you have made up  

a  s to ry  tha t  i s  c lear ly  fa lse  invo l v ing  conf ident ia l i t y  po l i c ies  

and hand de l i vered s ta tements  in  o rder  to  t ry  and  

leg i t im ise  the  benef i t s  tha t  you rece ived fo r  favour ing  AAR 

and JM Av ia t ion  i n  th is  way,  do  you d ispute  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d ispute  i t  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you he lped  Ms Memela  to  h ide  the  

fac t  tha t  she a lso  go t  a  benef i t  f rom th i s  because  o f  the  

way in  wh ich  she ass i s ted  JM Av ia t ion ,  do  you d ispute  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d ispute  i t  Cha i r.   



07 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 301 
 

Page 242 of 243 
 

ADV HOFMEYR:    We wi l l  a lso  argue in  due course  tha t  

you have been a  d ishonest  w i tness Ms Kwinana,  do  you  

have a  response to  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  a lso  d ispute  tha t  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And f ina l l y  tha t  as  an  accoun tant ,  an 

aud i to r,  you benef i t ted  persona l ly  f rom payments  tha t  the  

jo in t  aud i to rs  o f  SAA made th rough bus iness re la t ionsh ips  

w i th  you,  your  company,  wh i le  they were  aud i t ing  SAA and 

wh i le  you were  mak ing  dec is ions  to  keep appo in t ing  them 

wi thout  go ing  th rough a  tender  p rocess,  do  you  d ispute  10 

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d ispute  tha t  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r,  those are  our  f ina l  

quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much.   Ms Mban jwa I  am 

gra te fu l  fo r  you tha t  you came up w i th  the  proposa l  tha t  

you came up w i th  in  te rms o f  no  re -examinat ion  bu t  you w i l l  

be  submi t t ing  someth ing ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  he lp fu l  par t i cu la r l y  

because we have  f in ished much la te r  than we thought  we  

wou ld ,  bu t  Ms Kwinana thank you  very  much fo r  coming to  20 

g ive  ev idence and thank you fo r  your  coopera t ion  bo th  you 

and Ms Mban jwa  in  te rms o f  ass i s t ing  the  Commiss ion  to  

s i t  even on a  Sa turday to  t ry  and  f in ish  i t s  work  because 

there  is  no t  much  t ime le f t .  

 Thank you ve ry  much to  Ms Hofmeyr  and he r  team 
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fo r  a l l  the  hard  work  and mak ing  yourse l ves ava i lab le  even  

on a  Saturday,  thank you very  much.  

 We are  go ing  to  ad jou rn ,  on  nex t  week I  w i l l  be  

hear ing  ev idence  re la t ing  to  Dene l ,  tha t  i s  jus t  fo r  the  

in fo rmat ion  o f  the  pub l i c .  

MS MBANJWA:    Apolog ies  Cha i r,  I  jus t  wan ted the  

t ime l ines about  those submiss ions  on  re-eva lua t ion ,  i s  i t  in  

o rder  i f  we submi t  them on or  be fo re  the  end o f  November?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  wou ld  be  f ine .  

MS MBANJWA:   Thank you.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  we ad jou rn .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 9  NOVEMBER 2020  


